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About RREEF China
Commercial Trust

FETEBEFMHE

REEEESHN

The Manager’s Corporate Structure EIE A ¥ 5248

Deutsche Bank /

BETRIT

T

Asset Global Transaction Private and Private Wealth
Management Banking Business Clients Management

EETHEER BRSuXHEE | RANIHERERT | BANRESEEE

Global Markets Global Banking

IRBR TSRS IRIRERITHRES

SR

RREEF

£E

RREEF Alternative Investments

BESERE

RREEF China REIT Management Limited"
(G E=ETEERESERERAE

Note Lo
* Wholly owned by Deutsche Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd. * fhDeutsche Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd. 2 &# A& ©
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RREEF China Commercial Trust is a real estate investment trust
established to invest on a long-term basis in a diversified portfolio of

institutional quality office and mixed-use properties located in major

cities in Greater China'.

BETERXEHEREERESRE FUZTHKREAGRAREN KT E MR
IT2RMREEERAERZ ARV EMANEREREEREE

RREEF China Commercial Trust (“RREEF CCT" or “the Trust”) is a
real estate investment trust (“REIT") established to invest on a long-
term basis in a diversified portfolio of institutional quality office and
mixed-use properties in major cities in Greater China'.

Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") on
22 June 2007, RREEF CCT provides investors with exposure to the
dynamic Chinese real estate market and aims to deliver risk-
adjusted returns over the long term.

Its asset — Gateway Plaza (the “Property”) — is a Premium Grade A
office complex situated in Beijing’s sought-after Lufthansa
submarket, one of the four established business districts in Beijing.

RREEF CCT is managed by RREEF China REIT Management
Limited (the “Manager”), which is owned by RREEF Alternative
Investments, through Deutsche Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd2.
("DAPH").

RREEF Alternative Investments (“RREEF") is the global alternative
investment management business of Deutsche Bank's Asset
Management division. RREEF consists of three businesses: Real
Estate, Infrastructure and Private Equity. Headquartered in New
York, RREEF employs more than 1,400 investment professionals in
16 cities around the world to help investors meet a wide range of
objectives — from diversification, to preservation of capital, to long-
term performance. Named one of the world's largest alternative
investments managers in Global Investor/Watson Wyatt's
Alternative Survey, June 2008, RREEF has €53.3/US$75.4 billion in

" Includes Hong Kong and Macau.
2 An indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Deutsche Bank AG.

EETEREFHERECHEES ((FEFITE
He |3 [M55E]) E—RAU S TILIREES KRR
BRARPEBRERRT REEERAERS
RBmEMRILAEEREEFRES -

R-ZTELFENA-+_BEEBHARZHA
RAR (B £ - EEFHEESAIKE
ERE2ENEDNTEFHETSOKSE - I
EHERERBEHAERBECIR o

HEE —H285 (M%) Rt B ED
WSS R (L RAKAE X R 2 —) EEF
B AERE -

BEERHEEATHEETEREESERAR
RAEI([EEBADER EERARETESER
&i#iBDeutsche Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd2.
([DAPH) HEEB 2 EKIB AR

EESRRE (BB RREFRRITEEE R
BHNERABRETEER - BENE=8X
% BHE  BRRERILERE - BRRER
X BEERFRTANERTEA-THAEZAKR
BT BPREEBEREOMIRE  RELAS
NEFREREXRRESERERR - RE-ZFZF
NEFERANRBRREE EEEUHBRREH
B EERARERRANZRREETEAZ
— HEZTT)N\FF+-A=+—H FEKZ

1 BEEBIORM -
2 Deutsche Bank AGFEHA M2 EHIBMAT °
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About RREEF China Commercial Trust
FETEHEXEHEREGERESEN

assets under management worldwide as at 31 December 2008.

Experienced in investing across Asia Pacific markets, RREEF has
been an active investor in Asia Pacific for over a decade. The
Manager has access to the experience and resources of RREEF in
the Asia Pacific region, which is backed by a pool of professionals
with a depth of investment, risk management, corporate
governance and finance experience.

The Manager's operations are further supported by the robust
infrastructure of the Deutsche Bank organisation. Certain functions
such as internal accounting, human resources, information
technology and in-house legal are supported by and/or outsourced
to relevant departments within the Deutsche Bank Group.

Global Reach of RREEF Alternative Investments’

London 3y A V\?rsav;;iiﬁ
. Frankfurt 7
Chicago Z s Paris B 'le?lar:jgkﬁ
® s New York &%

N Madrid BRE

San Francisco =3

Note
* As at March 2009.

HERNEEERA =T =BT tAA+m
fB3ETT

BAERENRTATSNRELR  EEEBETZ
FR-ERTAMMEBENERKREE - EFEAAF
REEETSARNEREER  ERERZAEMH
RE  ERERE  CXELGRESREHRNES -

EEANEBOREERETRITAMA SR ER
RIEIERRE - REEE - ANER - BB
RAREREESE TR HEEERITER
MEBAERA RIS R RSk T Lt AR A RRP

FESERENEREE"

Seoul B
$ _ieTokyo R

L]
Shanghai £/&

L
L) 3
umbai ZE Hong Kong &%

Singa.pore b2

»Sydney &E

FsE
* R=ETNE=A-
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Financial Highlights

MBRE

Performance Summary for the Reporting Period 2008 2007"
* This is an abridged version of the table on page 20. Please refer to the Financial Statements in this report HK$'000 HK$'000
for more details. (unless specified) (unless specified)
HEMBNRRAYE Fit FHT
* AF20ERBMEA o« FAERFLHAREFEAMBRE - (BRIEBHEH) (BIESHEH)
For the year/period ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HILEE HH
Income Statement Wik
Turnover LR 225,124 107,762
Property operating expenses bIES b (23,156) (9,947)
Net property income LIEL O 201,968 97,815
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of investment WEMENR R EECRLD) (430,530) 7,280
property e il
(Loss)/profit after taxation and before MRFIIAR R ARG ERE S BN (173,584) 264,612
transactions with unitholders BHARSH (B518) = 5F
Distribution B D13
Total distribution DR ABEE 169,205 86,8643
Final distribution per unit FEESEMNKIEDIK HKS$0.1774 #8t* HK$0.1793 BTs
Interim distribution per unit BEESEMNTEHIK HK$0.1871 % T ° N.A. ~@E A
Total/annualised distribution per unit FRES BN D IRBEE
/BB S IR HK$0.3645 ¢  HK$0.3391 /7S
Closing unit price as at 31 December R+=ZA=+—HK HK$2.64 7T HK$3.7678 7T
WmE
Total/annualised distribution yield per unit R+—A=+—8H 13.8% 9.0%
as at 31 December FEESBEMED KRR
S EEEM D IRk R
As at 31 December K+=—HA=+—H
Valuation 148
Investment property BEME
(2008: RMB3,197 million; (ZZTENF -
2007: RMB3,580 million) AREEZ197E BT
ZETLF
AR¥36580EETT) 3,631,153 3,822,187
Net Asset Value Attributable to Unitholders BEEFE
Net asset value attributable to Unitholders B BB ARLEEFE HK$2,445,172 HK$2,750,734
Net asset value per unit BEESEMNEEFE HK$5.27 % T HK$5.68 7T
Trading discount to net asset value as at R+=ZA=+—AH (49.9%) (33.8%)
31 December AREREEFENTE
|

Notes P
' As RREEF China Commercial Trust was listed on 22 June 2007, the income, expenditure and distribution T AREERTERERNEREERESN LA t-ALT &

figures for the financial period ended 31 December 2007 were for a period of 193 days. +F+ZA=+—BIEMBHENRA - BXRDREFTEZ193
2 The 2008 distribution of HK$169.2 million comprised of a net distributable income of HK$100.7 million and

an additional distribution of HK$68.5 million from cash reserves. Further details are available in the 2 169 2BBE N _FT/\FHREFEADRKAFEI00.78BETRKE
distribution statement in this report. R FENRBINDR68.5BEHET « E— HERFUMNERENDIRERA ©

3 The 2007 distribution of HK$86.9 million comprised of a net distributable income of HK$38.4 million and an 3 86.9EEEITH S HFE SR SRR AERE8 4H BA T RIREE
additional distribution payment of HK$48.5 million from cash reserves. SRENTWINDIRABSABETT ©

4 Based on 464,161,000 units in issue as at 31 December 2008. e F+=A=1+—HBE%1T#464,161,000{EE S B -

5  Based on 484,400,000 units in issue as at 31 December 2007. 5 F+= A=+—HE %{7#9484,400,000 B £ £ B o

6 Based on 464,161,000 units in issue as at 11 November 2008. 5 RER=-FTN\E+— A+ BB %17M464,161,000fEEE EA7 -
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Financial Highlights
MREE

Unit Performance Table
HEeBNREER

For the reporting
period from

1 January 2008 to

31 December 2008

HKS (unless specified)
H=Z2ZEN\F-HA—HZE
—E2N\F+ZA=+—H
L3R EHAE

BT (BIERFHER)

For the period from

22 June 2007 (Listing Date)
to 31 December 2007

HK$ (unless specified)
H-ZELFRA=+=H
(EmAMZE=22+4F
T A=+—HIEREHME
BT (B IEBHIEH)

Unit price as at the end of the period

The highest unit price traded
during the period

The highest premium of the unit price
to the net asset value

The lowest unit price traded
during the period

The highest discount of the unit price
to the net asset value

Market capitalisation as at the end
of the period

Public float as at the end of the period

end of the period

Total number of units in issue as at the

KRS EES ELER
AR BURaKRE

BW

S B i AR HE
VB E

(e

?

&

HIRNE S B REKR(E

A BNEREEEFE
E’]E*m?ﬁuﬁ
REIRATH{E

RERNARREE

REPRE HTES B AN

2.64
4.06

N.A. FiEH

1.51

(71.3%)

1,225.4 millionBE &

More than 25
per cent

HBiB25%

464,161,000 units
EESEN

3.76
5.26

N.A. i A

3.18

(44.0%)

1,821.3 million & &

More than 25
per cent

HBi#H25%

484,400,000 units
EEE BN

2008 Final Distribution Calendar
—EZN\FRPDIKERER

Reporting Period

2008 final results
Ex-date

Book closure dates

Payment of 2008 final distribution Around 26 May 2009

1 January 2008 to s AR “TENF—H—HZE
31 December 2008 —EEN\F+=-A=1+—H
19 March 2009 “EE)N\FRPEE —TTHE=AT+NE
28 April 2009 %A —ETHFMA=T)N\AR
30 April to 6 May 2009, Ei=HHE AP ER —ETAFNA=+RHE
both days inclusive —ZETNFRARAE
BIEEEME
TR =TT NE —EEAFERA—+H
KEFS IR IEES
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Net Propety Income Distribution Per Unit
L EL O BEESENSIK
HKS million $202 million L
BRET 202EHE T e
200 0.40
$185 million’ $0.3645?
185E @ - $0.3391"
9.2% 75%
175
0.30
0.25
150
0.20
125 015 2007 Annualised Distribution 2008 Total Distribution
) . —SRLEFELAR 2T \FHREH

] |
Note  Ffi&E Notes HizE

' The net property income of HK$97.8 million for the period 22 June 2007 to L
31 December 2007, was HK$185 million when annualised.
B-EELFARA-FTRE_TTLF+-_A=1+—FILHEMI7 8BBETHERA

FHE  KEFE(LRISSEEETT °

Based on the 2007 annualised distribution of HK$164.3 million and

484,400,000 units in issue as at 31 December 2007.

RE-ETLFFRE(HIKI64IEBBTIN _TTLF+_A=+—HEBRTNES
#{i7484,400,0001E5t# -

Based on 464,161,000 units in issue as at 31 December 2008.

REN-FFTN\F+ A=+ HEEITNESER464,161,000EH -

A 1
Average Passing Rent Average Spot Rent'
FHERTHEE FIHRERS
RMB per sq m RMB per sq m
per month per month
BAGFEK FATFIK
ARM AER RMBAR¥ R'\z"gﬁ%m
300.0 300.0 274.65% 2
250.0 250.0
200.0 180.07t 200.0
150.0 150.0
71%
100.0 100.0
50.0 50.0
0.0
As at December 2007 As at December 2008 o June to December 20072 July to December 2008*
R-ZBEF+A R-BBNF+-A —B2BLEXAZRE —2F)\FLAEt=A

Note Bz Notes  Hif&

' Average passing rent denotes the monthly gross rent of the Property at a d

specific point of time, excluding management fee and other miscellaneous
income.
FHRTHSENERTE —EERHANG A ESER (TeEER B REAMBERA) -

Average spot rent denotes the monthly gross rent of the Property, excluding
management fee, transacted during a defined period of time, excluding leases
which had contractual renewal rights with a pre-determined rental review
mechanism.

FHREHLEVENEEPAFENEARSAR (TRETER) - AR TaERNE
RIARRTRE M I HEFT A AR RO AD -

For the period from 22 June 2007 to 31 December 2007.

A-EELF A+ _HE-TELF+-_A=+—HIEHHRE -

For the period from 1 July 2008 to 31 December 2008.
A-TEN\FLtA—BE_TT/\F+-A=+—B LK -

07




A Year in Review

FEOE

Looking back on 2008, the Manager and the
Property Manager achieved the following
milestones for RREEF CCT and Gateway Plaza.

24 January 2008

The Manager launched the tenant liaison program
to the tenants of Gateway Plaza.

18 February 2008

Deutsche Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd. became
100 per cent owner of the Manager.

2 April 2008

The Manager announced the 2007 final results
and issued the 2008 Distribution Guidance.
The Manager also announced its intention to
explore a retail asset enhancement strategy.

14 May 2008

Annual general meeting. Unitholders of RREEF
CCT units (“Unitholders"”) approved the general
mandate to repurchase RREEF CCT units
(“Units"”) from the open market.

28 May 2008

Payment of 2007 final distribution.

2 June 2008
Unit repurchase commenced.

Launch of tenant liaison program on 24 January 2008.

EEARRENF A+ WAKHEFB&TE

BE-_ZETN\F EEARMEEEARES
WEES RERESERIA T RIZME -

—2F/N\F-A=1MOA
EEINGIEZS ShElat i T e T

—EENFZ=A+NH
Deutsche Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd. B A&
BAZBREZOFRA °

—EF/\FHA=H
ERABM-TTLFRPEEIFIR =TT
FHIRIEE| - FRANEHRETEERERL
B -

—E2ZN\FHATTH
BEESELHTABEAR - RERLELS
BES BA A (RS BAHAAD BE—8
B HARTSEREEENELSNESE
fir (4 8 ) -
—EENFHA=+NH

XM= FELERBAR -

—EENFRAZH
FIREIEE S BN -

Analysts’ briefing on 2007 final results.
BB LFERPEEBTOIIERS
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341 July 2008

Mr. So Tak Young, Chief Financial Officer of
RREEF Asia Pacific, was appointed to the Board
of the Manager as a non-executive director.

13 August 2008

The Manager announced the 2008 interim results.

14 November 2008

Real estate agents’ event held in Beijing.

26 November 2008
Payment of 2008 interim distribution.

21 January 2009

The Property Manager introduced the retail asset
enhancement plan to the tenants of Gateway Plaza.

7 March 2009

On-site renovation works for the retail asset
enhancement commenced.

19 March 2009

The Manager announced the 2008 final results
and that the 2008 Distribution Guidance was
met.

Real estate agents’ event held on 14 November 2008.
R-ZEZENF+-A+HARTHEHENRETE -

—E2Z2/\FtA=t+—H
BETARNMBRERESEEREEAES
BEERFWTES -

—sENENA+=A
EEAEM_TTN\FHHYEE -
—BB/\E+-A+HA
MERBTEHERIEEE -
—2B/\F+-A=tAR
XN=TRN\FFHDIE -
—EENF-A=+—8
MEEEARERESHAFPNATEEERLET

£l -

—EFENFE=A+tH
BRATEEEE(LFSNERETE -
—EZAFE=A+NE

ERAXM_EENFRPES - UEZFTN
FRIRFAES|

Briefing on retail asset enhancement plan held on 21 January 2009.
REZBAF A=+ RETHTELEE L EMEE -
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Letter from the Chairman
FEHREE

Dear Unitholder,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (“the Board"”) of the Manager,
| am pleased to present the 2008 annual report of RREEF CCT for
the financial period from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008
(“Reporting Period”).

The year 2008 will be remembered as one of the most volatile and
difficult environments that investors have faced in many years. The
decline of housing markets in many countries, coupled with
inadequate risk management controls in the financial markets,
subsequently evolved into a crisis of global proportions that has
distressed capital markets and financial institutions. These events
have had a strongly adverse impact on nearly all economies,
industries, corporations and consumers, resulting in most
economists forecasting the first global recession in decades.

In such an environment, RREEF CCT has benefited greatly from
the strong market position of its asset, Gateway Plaza, as well as
the Trust’s past and present adherence to conservative principles in
its finances, operations and governance. The Trust's long term
financing and low leverage level has helped insulate it from the
current market's distress and will provide further resilience to face
any worsening economic and property market conditions which
might occur in Beijing. As in the past, the Board's active oversight
and support will help the Manager proactively address and
overcome the challenges ahead.

BENREE

FAERRBEEANESS ([EFE]) - MAR
BN EREEEHEESHA—TEN\F—A—R
E-TENFT A=+ BYBEHRE ([FHREH
M) —TT/\FFH -

—REN\FHERKEESFRMAERNE R
RRENRERREZ — - ZABRRNEHMETS
TR ESRmENRREREETRE &R
BEKEREREE 5 THEZEATSERE
B - GLEMHHETSMARLE 7% &
EROHBEDEREETE - BHKRZ BCHEM
BN SEE T FRERNHREREERE -

EEHNRRT  BEFREESREEERERR
BESMTiSHAIERTE - A RIEFERBARERY
EORTHPE - 2 EFRERTHMZERE
= o FRENRPREREERKFEHERRR
AR TORIEES - WS BRI R
YIETIZ A B INBIEEAIER T » SR RGE—
FHERN - —NBE  EFTSNEBERES
¥ BAEBEE AR R RAR KPS -
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China’s significant global trade orientation has drawn it directly into
the global crisis. Yet the Chinese economy has fared better than
most economies due to its favourable financial position, high
income growth, a young and growing urban workforce and
increasing domestic consumption. These dynamics will provide
collective long-term support for Beijing and China's other first-tier
real estate markets as well as the long term performance of
Gateway Plaza and the investment strategy of RREEF CCT.

In the short term, however, Beijing’s office market will weaken due
to significant supply delivery just as tenant demand for office space
softens as a result of postponed or reduced corporate expansion
plans. RREEF Research forecasts a correction of 15 per cent for
Grade A office rents in Beijing by 2010. Fortunately, Gateway Plaza
benefits from several defensive characteristics. Its diversified
tenant profile minimizes industry sector risk and, its average
passing rents are below forecasted market rent levels. This
provides the Manager with the flexibility to meet more competitive
market conditions through an aggressive tenant retention program.

Annual Report 2008
—TENFEFER

B\ \ VS
-t lllll I|'|| \'nl 1 2 alh
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PRI ERNRRE HEEBAGEEHRNEES
A ARPENHBGRRER - WAEES
WA QFEL AR - ARKNLHESN
B R EEEBINELBERRAE - L
N & Rt R R BaE M — R EHAETS - A
EERESNRERAREEFHWEESNRE
RIS TR R HIAOSHRS -

AT FEHARER - MR EEAIE - M RIEA
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M - ERRDETHE S - = B
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FPH®EE - RENBEFEBIRNTR o
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Letter from the Chairman
ETEHREE

The Manager has been and will continue to focus on overall strong
tenant relations, tenant services and new building amenities, the
key of which is the conversion of part of its mezzanine level into a
retail zone as announced in the last annual report. In respect to this
last point, | am pleased to inform you that renovation work for that
retail zone commenced on 7 March 2009 and is on schedule for
completion by mid-2009, drawing keen interest from reputable
food and beverage operators.

All of these efforts work together to strengthen the appeal,
positioning and financial performance of Gateway Plaza. The
Manager is able to pursue this attractive organic growth project
and its overall vigorous asset management strategy because of
RREEF CCT's financial stability and significant cash balance.

Acquisition prospects are not yet attractive. Projected rental and
occupancy declines have not yet caused liquidity-strapped
developers and investors to capitulate and offer their quality assets
at properly adjusted prices. RREEF's acquisition specialists are
closely monitoring the markets and expect market repricing activity
to begin in late 2009 and to continue throughout 2010. Against this
backdrop, the Manager's objective is to remain vigilant and position
RREEF CCT well to facilitate appropriate acquisitions when asset
yields and returns become attractive in the future.

BEEA-BYHERETINEERIFNEFE
& - BEEP R EFETRE - EXREREN
E—EHRARRM - BEDFEEERERT
BRE - pTE - AAMASH BT - ZTE
BENRETEER_FTNF=_A AT
YIRHRN =TT NFERRT - DRI MBERK

Pt IRRER BIRTHERE SRS - 5
TEAL R TERIA - BIEABLSHEITULIR AR S|
MERERAEIREEE PERNEEER R
it - DEEEFMEESHERR - WHEREK
EIR AR o

MiHMRERIRARRRS - @EHEAESEBHE
ROE - DASHESRERENERBIIRE
ENEREINEAEAENEROIEEEEY
X - AEFMEERSHNEBEES @RIERMS
A - WEMATSENEEETHRN _ETNF
ERRA - T —BFEZ-Z—TF - MEMLH
N ERARBEREREENRA - W0 E R
BEWRSE R OHREFR|FE - BEEFHES
SETRENKE -
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#

Since the inception of RREEF CCT, the Manager and the Board BEEEEHEESKIYUR BEEAREEER
have adhered to a culture of performance, integrity and exceptional EHIBSRRE C  BTHIE  YEEHERMLEES
standards in corporate governance and transparency. | wish to KERERE - RAZRIESS  FAKE
thank the Board which has provided unwavering commitment, ERSEHUEITERE  BITREASE AR
guidance and far-sighted vision through their years of rich industry IRAtEE R .

experience.

Most importantly, on behalf of the Manager and the Board, | ZEREENRE  AAERREBEAREZERL
extend our sincere gratitude to all of our stakeholders, such as our RN P B T AERE - R MIES - 5
tenants but especially our loyal investors, who have strongly FIRRMHEEREE  BE=EHEEEN S
supported us since our listing in June 2007. TEHFENA ETUAR—ER NI FR -

Sincerely yours,

Kurt William ROELOFFS, Junior Kurt William ROELOFFS, Junior
Chairman and Non-executive Director FHERIENTES

19 March 2009 N
D=

—TENF=ATHHE
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The Manager’'s Report
EEARE

Dear Unitholder,

In the year 2008, RREEF CCT's performance was within the expectations of
the Manager. Although RREEF CCT operated in a more challenging
environment since the fourth quarter of 2008, the Trust made the following
achievements for the year.

Key Performance Highlights

Total distribution of HK$169.2 million met the 2008 Distribution
Guidance®, representing a distribution per unit of HK$0.3645.

Net property income increased by 9.2 per cent compared with 20074,

The average passing rent® increased by 7.1 per cent to RMB192.8 per
sg m per month as at 31 December 2008 and the average spot rent®
increased by 4.7 per cent to RMB287.4 per sq m per month’.

An occupancy rate of 88.6 per cent was achieved for RREEF CCT's asset
- Gateway Plaza - a level above Beijing's average occupancy rate of 82.1
per cent® for Grade A office buildings®.

The Trust also maintained a prudent gearing ratio of 33.5 per cent'®.

Being the distribution guidance for the year 2008, disclosed in the final results announcement for
the period ended 31 December 2007.

Based on the 2007 annualised net property income of HK$185 million.

Average passing rent denotes the monthly gross rent for the Property at a specific point of time,
excluding management fee and other miscellaneous income.

Average spot rent denotes the monthly gross rent of the Property, excluding management fee,
transacted during a defined period of time, excluding leases which had contractual renewal rights
with a pre-determined rental review mechanism.

For the period from 1 July 2008 to 31 December 2008.

Knight Frank, Greater China Quarterly Report, Fourth Quarter 2008.

Refer to the glossary in this report.

Based on total borrowings of HK1,400 million as a percentage of total assets.

L

BENREE

R-ZZENF  EEFHEESNRATESERE
ARTEH - BERERMERESE —TTN\FH
POERFEMBEE VIR E T 25& - SRR EAE
SLATEIRRA o

IE%E%E

DIRBKEE169.2B BB FFEEEN\EFES
,JE?E%IB IS EES B HIK0.3645/8TT °

MERNFER TR FENBF S 2 NE— -

R_EENF+_A=1+— ElE’J%@IE«ﬁH‘ﬁS
BEBEASTHAARK1928T  EAEHZ
Z— MELHBRERS L AZEASE iﬁ?ﬁ)\
R¥287.4707 » FHIREE S 2 M+ o
éa%imE%ﬁZQE FERESHHER

A WA AN fil:,?ﬁ'f’-&##AEQE’\J¥i’:]
ﬁfﬁ’zﬁ PZNT B —RE -
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RREEF China Commercial Trust
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RREEF CCT also faced the following challenges during the Reporting
Period.

e The Trust made a loss after taxation of HK$173.6 million for the
Reporting Period, resulting predominantly from a valuation loss of
HK$430.5 million.

e Net asset value per unit decreased to HK$5.27, a decline of 7.2 per cent
from 31 December 2007.

e The fair value of the Property declined 10.7 per cent from RMB3,580
million as at 31 December 2007 to RMB3,197 million as at 31 December
2008.

Financial Performance

RREEF CCT's key competitive advantage is in its sound balance sheet.

At the beginning of 2008, the Manager developed a strategy to optimise
the Trust's cash reserves to enhance unitholder value, whilst maintaining a
judicious approach to treasury management. During the Reporting Period,
cash reserves were primarily used to fund two key strategic initiatives.
First, to fund the unit repurchase program and second, to fund additional
distribution to the unitholders of RREEF CCT. These initiatives enhanced
the Trust's distribution per unit.

By the end of the Reporting Period, the Trust's cash reserves were
maintained at a strong level of HK$531.6 million. RREEF CCT also
continued to benefit from the appreciation of the Renminbi against the
Hong Kong Dollar. The 2008 turnover of HK$225.1 million, surpassed the
2007 annualised turnover of HK$203.8 million. The higher turnover in 2008
comprised of HK$12.3 million in net exchange gains while HK$9.0 million
was derived from an increase in rental revenue. In addition to this, net
property income for 2008 increased by 9.2 per cent to HK$202 million,
compared with the 2007 annualised net property income of HK$185 million.

Consequently, in an environment characterised by declining equity values
and high leverage, RREEF CCT has maintained a sound gearing ratio of 33.5
per cent.
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The Manager’s Report
EEARE

RREEF CCT reported a net loss of HK$173.6 million for the Reporting
Period, predominantly due to a decrease in fair value of the investment
property by HK$430.5 million. Accordingly, the net asset value attributable
to Unitholders also declined, by 11.1 per cent to HK$2,445.2 million as at 31
December 2008. The net asset value per unit however, declined by a lesser
extent from HK$5.68'" as at 31 December 2007 to HK$5.27"? as at 31
December 2008 due to a reduction in the number of units in issue.

NIREHRH - BEEFHEESHSERFHE173.6
BEETL  T2HARKREMEALEE 4305
BEBTHAE - At R=EENF A=+
—B - E2EURAARGEEFE TKAESZ
TH—E24452B 8B - AT BEESE
UEEFEKRERD A-_ETLF+ A=+
—H#5.688 T THER=ZZZN\F+=A=+
—HI5.2787T?  JIE BEITES B E R
FREKL

Net Propety Income
EL NS

HKS$
million $202 million
BEET 202EET

200

$185 million’
185EE T
9.2%
175

150

125
2007 Annualised 2008
“2RLFFEL —BBN\E

Note Bz

' The net property income of HK$97.8 million for the period 22 June 2007 to 31 December 2007, was HK$185 million when annualised.
HoEREFARA-+T-HE-TTLF+-_A=+—HILHHMN78ERBTYERAFR - BFEERISBAESET

Distribution Per Unit
BEELENNDIK

HK$
BT
0.40
$0.3645’

0.35 $0.3391"
75%

0.30
0.25

0.20

0.15
2007 Annualised 2008

“ETLEFEL —ERN\E

Notes i

' Based on the 2007 annualised distribution of HK$164.3 million and 484,400,000 units in issue as at 31 December 2007.
BRE-ETLF+_A=+—BN T LFFELIRIAIABEETRN T LF+ A=+ —HERITHE S E1484,400,000H5 & -

2 Based on 464,161,000 units in issue as at 31 December 2008.
BER =TT\ F+=A=+—HERITNES EN1464,161,0008 5 -

1 Based on 484,400,000 units in issue as at 31 December 2007.
12 Based on 464,161,000 units in issue as at 31 December 2008.

T+ 4+ = A=+—H#)484,400,0001E 5 175 & BhIst

2 RE-ZFTN\F+-A=1+—H#464,161,000E2 #fTEE Bt
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Notwithstanding the diminution in the fair value of the Property, the
distribution policy of RREEF CCT excludes any adjustment to the net
increase or decrease in the fair value of the investment property and
consequently, a distribution for 2008 will be made in accordance with the
2008 Distribution Guidance. The total distribution was HK$0.3645 for the
year ended 31 December 2008, representing a 7.5 per cent increase over
the 2007 annualised distribution of HK$0.3391'2.

During the Reporting Period, the Manager also engaged in other major
initatives with the objective of enhancing and extracting value for
Unitholders.

Enhancing Value through the Unit Repurchase Mandate

During the Reporting Period, the Manager repurchased 20,239,000 units,
representing 4.2 per cent of the total number of units in issue as at 31
December 2007. As a result of the reduction in the total number of units in
issue, the unit repurchase had, in part, contributed to the enhancement of
the Trust's net asset value per unit and distribution per unit.

Future Growth through the Enhancement of Retail Space

In a Retail Asset Enhancement and Positioning Strategy study conducted in
2008, the Manager identified an opportunity to convert some of the
common area space on Level Three of the Property into retail space.
Renovation works commenced in March 2009 and are expected to
complete in mid 2009. This phase of retail enhancement is expected to
yield an additional 650 sq m of lettable area, predominantly for food and
beverage outlets.

The Manager is currently reviewing further opportunities to enhance rental
income by commercialising more common area space in the Property.

2008 Distribution Guidance Met

In addition to the above initiatives, in April 2008, RREEF CCT elected to
issue distribution guidance for the year 2008. Through prudent financial
management, the distribution of HK$169.2 million for 2008 met the 2008
Distribution Guidance with a moderate increase of three per cent from the
2007 annualised distribution of HK$164.3 million.

The three per cent distribution growth and the reduction of units through
the unit repurchase in 2008, had the combined effect of improving the
distribution per unit by 7.5 per cent from the 2007 annualised distribution of
HK$0.3391 to HK$0.3645 for the Reporting Period.

Summary of Real Estate Sales and Purchases

No acquisitions or disposals were made during the Reporting Period. At the
time of this report, the Manager had not entered into any negotiation to
acquire further properties on behalf of RREEF CCT. Although it is
challenging to raise equity and debt in the current capital markets, the
Manager believes that acquisition opportunities at distressed levels may be
available throughout 2009 and into 2010. In this regard, the Manager will
continue to identify and evaluate such opportunities for RREEF CCT.

The following sections describe the detailed financial and operations
overview as well as the outlook for RREEF CCT.

3 Based on the 2007 annualised distribution of HK$164.3 million and 464,161,000 units in issue as
at 31 December 2008.
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Financial Overview
BT TE ML E

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
(unless specified) (unless specified)
Key financial results FHT FAT
TERBEE (B3 )
For the year/period ended 31 December BEt-A=t-ALFE 8
For Income Statement (in HK$'000, unless specified) WER(FET BRESHEHR)
Turnover EEE 225,124 107,762
Property operating expenses MECER (23,156) (9,947)
Net property income VIELIUNG 201,968 97,815
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of investment property BEAMENARBERD),/ M (430,530) 7,280
Other revenue A 14,091 7,463
Net exchange gains S M 3 117,346 73,599
Administrative expenses' THHX (32,824) (13,576)
(Loss)/profit after taxation and before transactions MBTIBRE
with Unitholders L) (173,584) 264,612
As at 31 December W+=A=t+-H
For Balance Sheet (in HK$'000, unless specified) BESB/R(TER  BESHEHR)
Investment property &ﬁ#’/ﬂi( TTN\F : ARK3197HE
(2008: RMB 3,197 million; 2007: RMB3,580 million) TTtHF: AR¥3 580 BETT) 3,631,153 3,822,187
Net Asset Value (in HK$'000, unless specified) ﬁEE{E( FER BRESHESR)
Net asset value attributable to Unitholders ESBREAREEEFE 2,445,172 2,750,734
Net asset value per unit BAESEMNEEFE HK$5.27 &2 HK$5.68 B 7T°
For the year/period ended 31 December BE+T-A=t—ALFE Y
Distribution (in HK$'000, unless specified) PK(FER BESHESR
Distribution 169,205* 86,864°
Final distribution per unit HK$0.1774 & 2 HK$0.1793 #&7r?
Interim distribution per unit HK$0.1871 & 7. ® =
Total/annualised distribution per unit ) HK$0.3645 /& T2 HK$0.3391 &2
Total/annualised distribution yield RS R
per unit as at 31 December’ 13.8% 9.0%
Financial Ratios
(Loss)/earnings per unit before £ VES L= _ o
transactions with Unitholders _E 2 (HK$0.37 &7z )® HK$0.55 7T °
Gearing ratio as at 31 December'® i [Er= 33.5% 30.8%
Debt service coverage ratio as at 31 December! i &S 3.55 2.30
|

Notes [
Administrative expenses include the Manager's fees, the trustee’s fees, the auditor’s remuneration, legal and other ﬁEﬁ(FﬁiE%“EA%ﬁi ZREAEA  REMBE  ERREMEESR -
RR= £+

1
professional fees. z ZA=+—H#464,161,000{A2 BT E S Bz H o
2 Based on 464,161,000 units in issue as at 31 December 2008. E +— E#9484,400,0001E 2 BT E & Bzt H o
3 Based on 484,400,000 units in issue as at 31 December 2007. 4. N\ESREAEASREAEE100.7AEETRER S RER
4 The 2008 distribution of HK$169.2 million comprised of a net distributable income of HK$100.7 million and an A53.5E§:/§7’E o E—SERFRNAFRODIRE °
additional distribution payment of HK$68.5 million from cash reserves. Further details are available in the Distribution & % TEE‘j TTLFHREEIDRRAFHEBAEBETRER S HERT
Statement of this report. K48.5E BT
5 The 2007 distribution of HK$86.9 million comprised of a net distributable income of HK$38.4 million and an additional g N\F+—A+—H#464,161,000182 81 TE L BRIFTH ©
distribution payment of HK$48.5 million from cash reserves. C NER_EFLF+T A=+ BRNESBUKRTESFIASEES BN
° Based on 464,161,000 units in issue as at 11 November 2008. 2647376/
7. Closing unit price as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 were HK$2.64 and HK$3.76 per unit respectively. 5 RS INGE IS BB BT E & $17473,786,858fE & o
8 Based on the weighted average of 473,786,858 units in issue during the Reporting Period. s BIER-TTLEXRA BE=TE+F+-A=+—BIEFSRENE R
% Based on the weighted average of 484,400,000 units in issue from 22 June 2007 to 31 December 2007. 175 % §8{i1484,400,00( °
9 Based on total borrowings of HK$1,400 million as a percentage of total assets. o RIETREEER1, 4008 BT HRABE DA E -
"

Debt service coverage ratio denotes the ratio of net cash flow to finance cost less upfront fees amortised for the U EBEELRISERSREH
Reporting Period.

RYE R AR &S MR e TR SR TR R AL X -
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Turnover

For the Reporting Period, turnover totalled HK$225.1 million, which
was 10.5 per cent higher than the 2007 annualised turnover of
HK$203.8 million. This increment was a result of a higher rental
income amounting to HK$9 million and the net exchange gains
resulting from the appreciation of the Renminbi against the Hong
Kong Dollar.

Property Operating Expenses

The property operating expenses for the Reporting Period totalled
HK$23.2 million, higher than the 2007 annualised property
operating expenses of HK$18.8 million. The higher expense was
predominantly due to an increase in leasing commissions resulting
from a higher volume of lease renewals and higher transacted
rents in 2008. The property operating expenses mainly consisted
of property management fees, urban real estate tax and land use
tax.

Net Property Income

Net property income for the Reporting Period was HK$202 million,
approximately 89.7 per cent of turnover, after the deduction of
property operating expenses. The 2007 annualised net property
income was HK$185 million.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses for the Reporting Period totalled
HK$32.8 million, compared to the 2007 annualised administrative
expenses of HK$25.7 million. The administrative expenses mainly
consisted of the Manager's fees, the trustee'’s fees, the auditor’s
remuneration, legal and other professional fees. Of the total
administrative expenses, the Manager's fees were HK$22.8
million.

Loss After Taxation

RREEF CCT's loss after taxation for the Reporting Period was
HK$173.6 million, mainly due to a reduction in the valuation of the
investment property by HK$430.5 million.
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Financial Overview
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Property Valuation

The Property recorded a valuation loss of RMB383.0 million
(HK$430.5 million) during the Reporting Period. This was based on
a formal valuation performed by the principal valuer, DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ"), who valued the Property at
RMB3,197.0 million (HK$3,631.2 million) as at 31 December 2008,
a decline of 10.7 per cent compared with the valuation of
RMB3,580.0 million (HK$3,822.2 million) as at 31 December 2007.

The Property, with an aggregate carrying value of HK$3,631.2
million, is mortgaged to The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc, Hong
Kong Branch, to secure the bank loan facilities of the HK Gateway
Plaza Company Limited (“HK Property Company”) which totalled
HK$1,400 million, as at 31 December 2008.

Net Assets

As at 31 December 2008, net assets attributable to Unitholders
totalled HK$2,445.2 million, compared with HK$2,750.7 million as
at 31 December 2007. As a result, the net asset value per unit was
HK$5.27 as at 31 December 2008.

Distribution

It is the Manager's policy to distribute to Unitholders at least 90 per
cent of RREEF CCT's annual distributable income for each financial
year pursuant to the trust deed of RREEF CCT (the “Trust Deed”)
and in compliance with the Code on Real Estate Investment Trusts
("REIT Code"). The Manager also has the discretion to distribute
additional amounts if RREEF CCT, in the opinion of the Manager,
has funds surplus to its business requirements.

Distribution for 2008

The total distribution for 2008 was HK$169.2 million, equivalent to
a distribution per unit of HK$0.3645. This represented an increase
of 7.5 per cent in distribution per unit compared with the 2007
annualised distribution per unit of HK$0.3391. The distribution
comprised a combination of the total distributable income being
HK$100.7 million for the year and the additional distribution of
HK$68.5 million made available from cash reserves. (Further details
are available in the Distribution Statement of this report.)

The final distribution' of HK82.3 million, representing HK$0.1774
distribution per unit, will be paid around Tuesday, 26 May 2009, to
Unitholders whose names appear on the register of Unitholders on
6 May 2009.

4 For the period from 1 July 2008 to 31 December 2008.
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Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2008, a total of 464,161,000 units were in
issue. During the Reporting Period, a total of 20,239,000 units
were repurchased for a total consideration of HK$79.2 million.

RREEF CCT has in place a loan facility of HK$1,400 million which
was drawn on 22 June 2007 (the “Listing Date"”). The loan has a
term of five years from the Listing Date and the interest rate is
Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rates (“HIBOR") plus 1.2 per cent per
annum.

Financial Ratios

As at 31 December 2008, the gearing ratio of RREEF CCT, defined
as total borrowings as a percentage of gross assets, was 33.5 per
cent, compared with 30.8 per cent as at 31 December 2007.

For the Reporting Period, total borrowing costs amounted to
HK$63.0 million including amortisation of an upfront fee of HK$4.2
million.

The debt service coverage ratio as at 31 December 2008 was 3.55.

Both the Trust's gearing and debt service coverage ratios as at 31
December 2008 were within the limits stipulated in the loan facility
agreement.

Liquidity

RREEF CCT had a total bank and cash balance of HK$531.6 million
as at 31 December 2008, compared with HK$715.1 million as at 31
December 2007. The current cash position provides sufficient
financial resources to satisfy its current working capital, distribution
payment and committed capital expenditure requirements.

Closure of Register of Unitholders

The register of Unitholders of RREEF CCT will be closed from
Thursday, 30 April 2009 to Wednesday, 6 May 2009, both days
inclusive. During this period, no transfer of units can be effected.

To qualify for the 2008 final distribution and the attendance of the
2009 annual general meeting, Unitholders must lodge all unit
certificates together with the completed transfer forms with the
office of the unit registrar of RREEF CCT, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen's Road East, \WWanchai,
Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
29 April 2009.

The final distribution will be paid to Unitholders around Tuesday, 26
May 2009.

Annual Report 2008
—ZETNEER

BEARZEE

R-ZEZNF+_A=+—0  BETESEN
£ 3£464,161,0001E o FARE SR - DIEES BN
A 2£20,239,0001F @ BAR(EF/79.2EEB T °

BERMEESHEE 11,4008 BB THNERE
B ZERER-_ETLFA=-1+=A (rtﬁ
BDEA - ExaLtmAE  AHAF X
BEBBITRIEREN = -

IR

R-ZBENF+-_A=+—RH EEFHEES
MEARBELL R REFTERIEREENE DL
BREDZ=T=FA " MR -_ZTZTLF+_-A
=t —AMERRREXRASED 2 =T/ -

HEHRNEERABERCI0ES BT - HP4.2
BERTAEMNRITEREREH -

RZZZENF+_A=+—0  BEBEELXS
=HAA -

REZZBZNF+=ZA=+—8 " ETHELRERE
bR R EEEELROFEERBE N6 A
HYFRIE ©

RBES
N=2F\E+-F=1—F  EEEHELD

HISRTT IR S A% A531 6B BB c M- F
T+F+—A=+—HAIA715.188%T - BA

VIR BRI R R4 O 75 B R DA B (S REER Y
VEEES  DIRNAREAXENERHT

EENEESENREABFER
FEENEESHE-_TTNFNA=+A (24
ME=TTAFHAXNE (BES) BHEEER
) EEHHR A S BAIBF B TF A - REZHRT
EWREMBSER -

REEEBBMZZZNFREDRREE T
fﬂi%‘i\%jﬁﬁ)\ﬁiﬁ’“ FrEERBA
FEBERBEZNBPRENEANRZZTNFN
AZ+hABEH=) TFER=1+27 - RE&F
E%ﬂt?ﬁ/\mﬁ/i\ﬁ BF R EFHFERLH
AT - it AEBEFERRKER_T/\KE
ﬁE/E':P’Df‘f/\@

REDEER —ZTTNFRAA=-T/H((EHD)
AN TERESBMFEA

23

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII



Operations Overview
KERE

Unless otherwise indicated, all currency values contained in the Operations Overview are stated in Renminbi.

IRIESEIER  CEBERMEERSEHAAREIIE -

Property Portfolio as at 31 December 2008
REZBENE+=A=+—-HHWFEESE

Average passing rent RMB192.8 per sqg m per month

Average spot rent! RMB287.4 per sqg m per month

88.6%
RMB3,197.0 million (HK$3,631.2 million)

Occupancy rate

Valuation?

FHRITHE BRFFEHK
AR 192.87C
TR EHE " BABFEREK
AEREE287.47C
A= 88.6%
HE? ARE3197.0 88T

(3,631.2 HEHBIT)

Notes

' For the period from 1 July 2008 to 31 December 2008.

2 Valuation of the Property as at 31 December 2008 based on the valuation report issued by DTZ
dated 11 March 2009.

Rent Improvements

The average passing rent increased by 7.1 per cent, from
RMB180.0 per sg m per month as at 31 December 2007 to
RMB192.8 per sg m per month as at 31 December 2008.
Meanwhile, the average spot rent increased by 4.7 per cent, from
RMB274.6 per sg m per month as at 31 December 2007® to
RMB287.4 per sg m per month as at 31 December 2008'¢. Rent
reversions to the market rent'” were achieved for both new leases
and lease renewals.

'® For the period from 22 June 2007 to 31 December 2007.
6 For the period from 1 July 2008 to 31 December 2008.
7 Refer to the glossary in this report.

U

L A=EE\FLA-RE=FF\F A=+ ALOBM -

* ORBEERTR-TENF= AT BRMER-TENEL-AS
+— B B AT R A A RS -

HERFA

FHRTHEA _TTLF+_A=+—BNE
ABFHARARE180.0T » EAASZEEH—Z
—ERENFT A=+ —HHNBASFTHARAR
#192.87C - AR - FHREMESHE —TTLF
TA=T—BPHNEBASTFIRARK274.6
T LB ECRRNFE T A=+
— R EFAGTHIARARK287.47T - HIELHR
BRENNESHRAZTSHESKF

v ATEREFANACT CHECTTEF T AT B AR -
© R-RFN\FLA-HEFENFTA=1+—HILMHH -
7 2ERBFENNRE -



RREEF China Commercial Trust Annual Report 2008
FETEREFHEREERES 2

Average Passing Rent

FHRTHEHE
RMB per sq m
per month
BAGFEK
ARM
200.0

RMBAK¥192.87T
190.
%00 RMBAK#184.07t
RMBAR#179.07C RMBAK#180.07t
180.0
170.0
160.0
150.0
30 June 2007 31 December 2007 30 June 2008 31 December 2008
—BBLFXA=TA —2FTtF+=-A=+-A8 —2B/\FXA=tAH —BEN\F+=A=t+-AH

Average Spot Rent

FHREHEE
RMB per sq m
per month
BAGFEK
ARM
300.0 RMBA R#274.65T RMBAR280.17T RMBAR#287.47
250.0
2000 RMBARM181.27%
150.0
100.0
50.0
oo Prior to June 2007 ' June to December 20072 January to June 2008° July to December 2008*
REBBLFEARAMUF R=BBLEXAZE+=R’ R=BBNFE-AZEXA® REZBN\FLAZE+=A
________________________________________________________________________________________|

Notes izt
" For the period prior to 22 June 2007.
ZETEFRNAS T BRI EAR -
2 For the period from 22 June 2007 to 31 December 2007.
BB FARA-+T_HE-TTLF+-_A=+—HIHNEH -
3 For the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008.
BT N\F—A—BE-TT/\FRA=THILHHH -
4 For the period from 1 July 2008 to 31 December 2008.
H-EEN\FtA—HE-TT/\F+_A=+—HIEHHH -
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Operations Overview

Leasing Activity

During the Reporting Period, 23.1 per cent of the leases by lettable
area were due to expire. The majority of these lease expiries
occurred in the second half of 2008 when the Chinese economy
experienced a rapid slow down after the 2008 Olympic Games. By
the end of the Reporting Period, approximately 66.1 per cent of
these expiring tenancies renewed their leases.

The tenants in the Property from the industrial and information
technology sectors were most affected by weaker consumer
demand and exports. Some of these tenants elected to relocate to
less expensive and lower quality buildings in order to rationalise
occupancy costs during this difficult period.

Conversely, tenants who have secured contracts in Chinese
government projects tended to expand their leased area within the
Property. These tenants expanded by a total of 1,879.0 sg m during
the Reporting Period. Going forward, the Manager will increase its
leasing efforts towards these local and foreign companies which
are contracted by the Chinese government for local projects in
China.

HEES

RNBREHE - R HERERE Aoz -t=
H—HEOKWEIR - KBS ERENE—ZTZ
NETHFEH  EREETRSEESZN\FR
BERARNE - RREHAR - HAEH 2T
BE-NBEHIBAEFERBLES -

HEF LR AR - MENT EREARHE
HEFEEEE - 0 HBHEFEESRFRES
HeREZRENBT - BRI R AR 2R
B EMBEAAKAR o

A - BUSH BIATIR B & AR R SR TR
SRYEANEERE - RREHE - REHEP
EERETEH1,879.0F 5K « REARNR - EEA
BB AR FIRZ S AR ERAFALIER #
ARINE R R ABHEP

Note
' For tenants with contractual rights to surrender part or all of their leased area.

Bt

Leasing Profile for the Reporting Period
wEHENHEEER
Lettable Area % of Total % of Total
(sq m) Lettable Area Monthly Rent
A KA EE 1A A E S EERBEES
(FFHK) WEZDL WED L
Lease Expiries BHEAEN
Renewal B 16,221.0 15.3 15.2
Attrition mK 8,333.1 7.8 7.0
Total #Et 24,5541 23.1 N.A. TiE A
New Leases FHEL
— new tenants — e 818.3 0.7 1.3
— expansion by existing tenants —RAEHPER 1,879.0 1.8 2.8
Total #Et 2,697.3 2.5 4.1
Early Surrender’ RERMA" (2,540.9) (2.4) 2.8
Net Change in Occupancy AR B FRE (8,176.7) (7.7) N.A. 7~

' BAEAORENRERENS XD HEEMENES -
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Property Income

As at 31 December 2008, revenue from office tenants contributed
85.8 per cent of total property revenue while retail occupiers
generated 11.9 per cent. Revenue from the car park facility was
generated by a combination of long term tenancy contracts and
hourly parking for visitors.

Composition of Property Income
as at 31 December 2008
REBZENF+Z A=+ —HHWYWERAER

2.3% —|

W Commercial & f
M Retail &
Car Park f#E1x

Occupancy Rate

The Property’s 88.6 per cent occupancy rate at the end of the
Reporting Period surpassed the 82.1 per cent average occupancy
rate in Beijing as well as the 84.6 per cent average occupancy rate
for Grade A office buildings in the Lufthansa submarket'.

The Property’s occupancy rate was relatively stable at 96.3 per
cent for the first half of the year. Towards the remaining half of
2008 and largely due to the deterioration of the global economy,
there was pressure amongst the existing tenants to reduce their
occupancy costs. As a result, some tenants elected to relocate to
lower grade office buildings or to other regional locations.
Consequently, the occupancy rate declined.

'8 According to the independent report by Knight Frank dated 11 March 2009, reproduced in this
report.

Annual Report 2008
—ZETNEER

ZE L ON

R-ZFTN\F+-A=+—B  RABIEHES
HIRAEMERRANES 2 \+HH\ - T
EMPEENZ T8N - REFERIEHRA
To R BT R & RN 5 3 = A B
A °

HE =R
MENBRERAROEEXRRSEAZNT/NEK
BB RFERABE D 2\ +H—FHH
HEe . ARFTREFERAEE S 2\
NI HAE e o

YMERAFE LFFHOHBEBHRE - BED
ZHTRE= - REZZENFHTH5F - @R
EHEEER - WAMEPAZHIRIE KA B
71 WES P RRBERERERNMABRIE
flzf2i% - WAL R R T

© RERGR-TEAES A+—BRRNBIWE - RS TRAR
FHA -
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Occupancy Rate

HiE xR
100% 95.2% 96.0% 96.3%

88.6%
90%
7.7%
80% \
70%
60%
30 June 2007 31 December 2007 30 June 2008 31 December 2008
—BELFRA=TA —BBLFt-A=1+-H —EEN\FRA=1+AH —Z22\F+=-A=t+-H

Top Ten Tenants +X#EF

As at 31 December 2008, the Property’s top ten tenants accounted HR=-_Z=ZNF+—A=+—H WEH+AES
for 51,010 sq m of lettable area. Collectively, these tenants {5 A HAAEES1,010F /53K » RIREERR - 2%
represented 51.8 per cent of the total rental income and 47.9 per EARERAS R GBS 2 B+ N\ RA]
cent of the total lettable area for the Reporting Period. As at 31 HREEBEES - F+Eh c R-EBEENEL
December 2008, there was a reduction of 3.7 per cent of the —H=+-0 SfFE-—TT+E+—F=+—
lettable area leased collectively by the top ten tenants, as BIFERRSARE - +ATASA SR A LA ERE
compared with the period ended 31 December 2007. THRES Y =2+ o

As a result of rent reversions, there were two new entrants to the HREeHAE  R_ETENF+A=+—1H "
ranks of the top ten tenants as at 31 December 2008 — Posco TREFPHEEMEGHBERS —REER R
Group and Terex Corporation, where the latter also leased BRATAR - MEEINER T EINFABER o

additional office space.

As some major tenants’ leases are due for renewal in 2009, the BRSO EFZEFPNENN _ZEZNFONFE
profile of top ten tenants may alter in the coming year. EER - BT R R B S ATRE R SR IR &
) o
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Top Ten Tenants as at 31 December 2008
REBENE+ZA=+—HWTKHEF

16.0%
145%

13.2%
12.0%

8.0% 6.9%
5.5% o, 5.4% 6%
5% 4.4% 43% 0
AT 4% 37% 36% 37% 54 37% o _
21% 25% 26% 19, B % of Total Monthly Rent
I EEAESRENESL
i BM W' BOC2 Cummins* Sony ° Hurray®  SPX Cooling”  Posco® Terexs Doosan % of Total Lettable Area
m@) B 2E HRUE  HAEHAD HE BEXHA Shy B HASEER DL
—
Notes FKfzE
T BMW Group China 5 Sony (China) Ltd. 8 Posco Group
EEFH ZE(RE)BRAR THEEE
2 Bank of China 6 Hurray Solutions Ltd. 9 Terex Corporation
REIERTT FERULBAERAR HERITD R
3 SK Group China 7 SPX Cooling Technology (Beijing) 10 Doosan Infracore (China) Investment Co., Ltd.
SK(FRENRERRAR Co., Ltd. o SHL (B REBRAE
4 Cummins (China) Investment s s A2 HR (L) AR A A
Co., Ltd.
R (FE)RAFRAR
Lease Expiry Profile A ERER
In 2008, a total of 23 tenancies representing 23.1 per cent of total RZZBENF  GH-T=HHENEBATE
lettable area were due for renewal. The tenant retention rate was H o EEAEEEREE S 2 ZT=8— o &
66.1 per cent in terms of lettable area. AEMAEETE  HERBRATD 2N+ N2

— o

In 2009, a total of 43 tenancies representing 32.4 per cent of total

lettable area are due for renewal. A proactive lease renewal MRoBEAE  AHN+=HBEYIEETE

strategy has been implemented by the Manager to maximise HY (G A ERAERE S =+ =2 - S
tenant retention and lease renewal negotiations will be held at an AR T RGBS AR - SR H
earlier stage to better accommodate the changing needs of P RREREaS IR « ML E RS 7T
tenants. SERRREBET  BRELEARS BN

& o
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Summary of Lease Expiries as at 31 December 2003

REZFZBNET-A=+-HHAYEREREE

No. of % of Total % of Total % of Total

Tenancies No. of Lettable Monthly

Expiring Tenancies Area Rent!

Lease Expiry Schedule REAER 1R Al A EE B AHEE

HAEm R R EmBLEE WE B2 EENEDL

2009 43 50.0% 32.4% 37.5%

2010 25 29.1% 19.0% 22.6%

2011 15 17.4% 27.4% 29.1%

2015 1 1.2% 5.5% 6.9%
Total 842 97.7%? 84.3%2 96.2%?2

Notes faE

T Based on the monthly gross rents excluding management fees, for the month of December 2008 ' BITT )\ G+ _ANSAESRE TEEEER) =T
as a percentage of the entire December 2008 rent roll. NEFE+—FHALKRENE D RAE -

2 Excludes the leases with Beijing Bestride Gateway Leisure Club Co., Ltd and Beiing Bestride 2 e SRR E B LI A IR A T R AL SRR
Estate Development Co., Ltd. The valuation report by DTZ dated 11 March 2009 stated a total of ERRERATNALY - §E2TR-_EShAE=A+—H®
B iR, nlleling it e sad eses, EERETIHA £ N\HAORL - BF LARGEE -

Lease Expiry Profile as at 31 December 2008
R-ZBENF+-A=1+—BHANERER

40% 375%
32.4%
29.1%
30% 274%
22.6%
20% 150
0% 9% ¢ 595 B % of Total Monthly Rent
| (S AEEBEHEAL
0% 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 % of Total Lettable Area
TR AL
e
Tenant Diversity #HEZ b
The Property’s tenants remain diverse, covering a myriad of METBERERITRYE  BIFLT(CES o b
industries. This minimises the risk to rental revenue and helps to S ARERSEL WA RS RSB EEET S
maintain a stable income stream. N
Tenant diversity remains largely unchanged since the reporting AEZT(tARE—_EE+E+—A=+—HI

period ended 31 December 2007. The largest tenant concentration s34 HARS LA S A BU A 125 NG o 32 AR S U A J AT H
by rental income and lettable area comes from the industrial goods  fAEREZ DM GEATE P ER{TE AT 52T
sector, followed by the banking and finance sector. The third ¥, HBRBITRARITE - B AITEARE

argest sector is the automotive sector. T
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The tenants from the industrial goods and information technology
sectors in the Property were most affected by the global
recession. Consequently, the Property’s exposure to these sectors
declined 2.8 per cent and 2.2 per cent respectively by total leased
area and 2.4 per cent and 2.5 per cent respectively by total rental
income.

Tenant Mix by

Rental Income as at

31 December 2008
R-EBNEFE+=-A=+—H
RESWAESHWHEFHES

6.7% _I
4.0%

Tenant Mix by

Leased Area as at

31 December 2008
R-BENFE+=-A=+—H
REEEEESNEFES

5.9% _I
6.8%

4.6% 3.7%

17.4% 16.7%

14.6% 14.9%

The Manager places great importance on tenant quality and will
continue to enforce stringent standards during the tenant selection
process. This is to ensure the creditworthiness of the tenants, and
is consistent with the high-end positioning of the Property. The
targeted tenant profiles are international and domestic
multinational companies as well as domestic small and medium
enterprises with good credit standing.

Top Five Real Estate Agents and Contractors

During the Reporting Period, the following real estate agents and
contractors were engaged to provide services to RREEF CCT.

Annual Report 2008
—ZETNEER

MERARETIXERTERERABMRITENEP
EEREBETROTESR o Bt - ME Lt
MIETTENEEREES B THRA D 2 =8\ Kk
BAZ —#—  MESEBARDHITH®RES Z
—HOUFESZ=#A -

M Industrial Goods T
Banking and Finance {7 R &5t
Automotive J5E
M Others Hfth
[T/Software &R/ 8t
I Professional and Business Services E¥ K T ¥R
B Electronic Goods BF &
Conglomerates #R& A8

B Energy and Natural Resources 88Kk B AER

ERAEEEEPHBIETEREF BRI #
BHTRIRIEE - R HEREPNEEE - AR
MEAEHEMER - HF BEREERERERNE
BERRUREERFOBEAR/NEIRE -

AEREHENREREER

R EHRE - A TEHMERE RAEHERES
BB R MEESIRHER -

Value of Services % of Property
Contractors Nature of Services (HK$’000) Operating Expenses
A PRAEME RIFEE (FExT) MYELLERINEILL
Beijing Jones Lang LaSalle Property Property management, leasing and 2,222 9.6
Management Services Co. Ltd. marketing, tenancy management,
rental collection and repatriation,
and entity accounting
IR EBITYEETERBER DR YHEER  HERTSHEE  HABEE -
WA RER ~ &5
Benoy Limited Retail architecture and interior design 638 2.8
TERBEREANRT
Beijing Institute of Architectural Design Architecture and construction 90 0.4
IR E BRI R LR HHAAR] applications and submissions
BN R IER R BRERR
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The Outlook
R

THE OUTLOOK

Prospects for Equity and Debt Markets

The global economic downturn deepened significantly in the fourth
quarter of 2008 as collapsing housing markets in Western Europe
and the US rippled through the worldwide financial system. The
fallout included frozen credit and liquidity that undermined the
confidence of businesses, investors and consumers. In Asia,
shrinking external demand for manufactured goods and
commodities is likely to continue to weigh on the economic and
capital market outlook for 2009.

As a result of the combined effects of continued outflow of capital
from Asia, de-leveraging, international banks withdrawing their
cross border lending and the growing risk aversion in the current
uncertain climate, raising both equity and debt particularly from the
international capital markets, will be challenging in 2009.

Although global credit markets remain tight, the increasingly
mature Asian banking system born out of the experience of the
Asian financial crisis, seems to show resilience against the global
financial crisis. Chinese banks are encouraged by the government
to extend credit as part of the Chinese economic stimulus
measures. China’s declining inflation rate also allows the Chinese
central bank and Chinese policymakers to focus solely on growth
and financial stability by easing monetary policies. At the same
time, the concerted approach by policymakers worldwide is seen
as a strong attempt to restore financial market liquidity and boost
investor confidence.

RE

B R AT HAT R
BEETRAXBEEMETSAEN R 2R FE
% —EENFENENRREBEZERRZE
Bl o B  EEEEERREREZA - Y
BTER  REEMHEENEL - £ENE
SUEZER K B RSN B R SRUHE - AT BEARAE R
B_TTNFHOKERERTISHR °

HRERFERLIN - I EEEHE - BERR
TREBRER - AR BN TNMEERRS AR
RBOEERR  BE_ZTNF  FH=EH
BREARTS - BIRERES - HRAE -

BESHEEMSERER - TNERBEAL
BTDMERITERRER - EHHEHREH
EE T ERERRERE N © FERTER
THREE  (ERRELEREE . — - HERKR
RIS ERNPRBITRAREFAERES
BHR - BIESREER MR SRMIZHE
JE o HULRIE - 2IRIE SR A i DT A
e LR AN ERESB TSR LIRS
REERF DR -
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The Beijing Office Market

(This is an abridged version of the Overview of the Beijing Grade A Office Market
prepared by Knight Frank dated 11 March 2009, reproduced in this report.)

During 2008, declining global economic conditions and the impact
of the Sichuan earthquake had a negative impact on the pace of
economic growth in China. Year on year gross domestic product
growth was recorded at nine per cent for 2008, the lowest
recorded growth rate since 2001. China's economy is predicted to
come under further pressure during 2009, a view supported by the
World Bank, which has reduced its 2009 gross domestic product
growth forecast to 7.5 per cent, the lowest forecast in nearly two
decades.

The construction and fitting-out restrictions imposed before, during
and after the 2008 Olympic Games, had resulted in 0.85 million sq m
of Grade A office buildings originally scheduled for completion in
2008, being postponed to 2009. If the reported completion
schedules are met, this will result in 1.8 million sq m of new Grade
A office space entering the market in 2009 and a further 0.7 million
sgq m in 2010. However, due to current global economic conditions,
further delays to such completions can be expected.

The Ping An International Financial Centre, an average Grade A
office building completed in 2008, competes directly with the
Property. From 2009 to 2010, the new supply of office space in the
Lufthansa submarket - the third largest office submarket in Beijing,
will be limited to two buildings totalling 196,800 sgq m.

Annual Report 2008
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The Outlook

BR

The new average Grade A and Premium Grade A office buildings
expected to come on stream in 2009 and 2010, are primarily
located in the Central Business District and the Beijing Finance
Street. With projected new supply within the Lufthansa submarket
expected to remain limited in 2010 and beyond, the Property is
expected to retain its position as the only Premium Grade A office
building in this submarket.

Tenant demand for Grade A offices declined significantly during
2008, with a recorded net take-up of 0.53 million sg m in 2008
compared with 1.04 million sg m in 2007. This was contributed by
the construction and renovation moratorium imposed by the
Beijing government before, during and after the 2008 Olympic
Games and the deepening global financial crisis, resulting in a
standstill in new leasing activities. Throughout 2009, the leasing
trend is expected to continue to slow down.

The average market rents exclusive of management fees for both
average Grade A and Premium Grade A office buildings in Beijing,
peaked in the third quarter of 2008 at RMB197.0 (USD28.8) per sq m
per month and RMB238.2 (USD34.8) per sg m per month
respectively. By the fourth quarter of 2008, the average market
rents exclusive of management fees declined to RMB187.3
(USD27.4) per sq m per month for average Grade A office buildings
and RMB230.9 (USD33.8) per sg m per month for Premium Grade
A office buildings. In 2009, the average market rents of Grade A
offices are projected to decline a further 10 to 15 per cent across
the board.

9 Refer to the glossary in this report.
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Outlook for the Property

In an increasingly more difficult economic environment, tenants are
demonstrably more price-sensitive and therefore more likely to
consider contraction of existing office space or relocation to lower
quality buildings, in an attempt to substantially reduce their
occupancy costs.

In the next 12 months, the combined effects of the continued
deterioration of the global economy and the existing and new
supply of office space in Beijing, are expected to exert downward
pressure on the Property’s average spot rent and occupancy rate.
In view of these market conditions, the Manager has adopted
competitive projected rental rates and has increased tenant
incentives in its leasing activities in 2009. In addition, commissions
to third party leasing agents have also been increased to attract
more introductions and referrals.

The Manager expects the Property to operate in a challenging
environment in 2009.

Paul Thomas KEOGH
Executive Director
19 March 2009
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Adding Value through
Asset Enhancement

BILEE - RITEE



Shaping a first-class tenant REZEEF RS
experience is an integral part of our eHRMAEFBERN
value-addition process BEE-IR
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Our Asset

Gateway Plaza

Gateway Plaza is one of the 12 Premium Grade A office buildings
in China'’s capital, according to Knight Frank, and is the only
Premium Grade A office building in the sought-after Lufthansa
submarket — one of the four established business districts within
Beijing.

The Property comprises a 25-storey twin-tower office building
connected by a three-storey retail podium. With a total gross
lettable area of 106,393.8 sq m, Gateway Plaza has a strong tenant
base of multinational corporations and domestic enterprises,
including the BMW Group China, Bank of China, Cummins (China)
Investment Co., Ltd., Sony (China) Ltd. and Posco Group China.

The first three storeys of the Property form an atrium which
houses the Beijing Chaoyang branch of the Bank of China and a
BMW showroom. The fourth to 25th storeys of the twin office
towers house the office portion of the Property with typical floor
plates ranging from 1,474.8 sqg m to 2,289.0 sq m in area. Level
Three of Gateway Plaza is currently undergoing renovation to
create additional retail and food and beverage space of about
650 sg m.

The Property is managed by Beijing Jones Lang LaSalle Property
Management Services Co., Ltd.

Annual Report 2008
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Building Statistics as at 31 December 2008
REBENF+ZA=+-HHNEFHE

No.18, Xiaguangli, East Third Ring North Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing

Completion date August 2005

50 years from
26 February 2003

Land use term

Site Area 17,690.2 sg m

Gross floor area 130,488.1 sg m

Total gross lettable area

- Office (5th to 29th storey') 94,714.7 sqgm

— Retail (1st to 3rd storey) 11,679.1 sgm

Total 106,393.8 sqg m

Additional retail lettable area under construction Approximately 650 sq m

Number of car park lots (Basement One to Three) 675

ERTHEER=IRIEELE 1855

¥% T H & —ETHRENA
- Hb {5 A EARR BE-ZTT=F_A8
—t+NBRRFARTE
AR 17,690.2 ¥ 753K
1R EEE IR 130,488.1 F 77K
A H AT
/N 94,714.7 F 75K
(BRZE=1THE")
- T8 11,679.1 75K
(BF—=2=E)
#st 106,393.8 F 773K
R EEEINTEEE #6560 FHK
FEMNEE 675
HE—FE=F)

Note
" Floors 4th, 13th, 14th and 24th are excluded.
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The Four Major Business Districts of Beijing

Beijing is the second largest and the capital city of the People’s
Republic of China. It is recognised as the political, educational,
cultural and economic centre of China. Beijing is also a major
transportation hub served by major international flights via the
Beijing Capital International Airport. As the host city of the Beijing
2008 Olympics, Beijing has gained international recognition as a
global city. There are four major business districts within Beijing.

Central Business District (“CBD”)

The CBD is the primary business district for finance, business and
media services with an excellent infrastructure of local and
international hotels and shopping centres.

Finance Street

Finance Street is a vibrant community of luxury hotels, high-end
residential units and upscale shopping centres that cater to the
well-heeled crowd. It is fast gaining prominence as the core district
for China’s financial activities as Beijing establishes itself as an
international financial centre.

Lufthansa Submarket

Named after the Youyi Shopping City, Beijing Lufthansa Centre, one
of the earliest integrated mixed-use developments in Beijing, the
Lufthansa submarket is a part of the larger Chaoyang District.
Bordering the Third Ring Road at the Sanyuan Bridge, the Lufthansa
submarket is enroute to the CBD from the Beijing Capital
International Airport. The precinct is in proximity to many
international embassies, luxury apartments and international hotels.

Zhongguancun

Known as “China’s Silicon Valley”, Zhongguanchun is a technology
hub in Beijing's Haidian District in the northwest part of the city and
home to many Chinese and international technology companies.
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The Four Major Business Districts of Beijing
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Retail Asset Enhancement Plan

The Manager recognised the opportunity to extract more value
from the Property by enhancing and expanding the retail facilities
within the Property. In 2008, a study conducted by the Manager's
retail consultant identified several opportunities to improve the
utilisation of the Property’s common area on Level Three of the
retail podium and the ground floor lobby area.

The Lufthansa submarket currently lacks retail facilities. Therefore,

there is great potential to increase rental income by offering retail
facilities to the tenants of Gateway Plaza, and the larger
community in the Lufthansa submarket.

The renovation works of Phase 1 of the retail enhancement
commenced in March 2009 and involved the creation of 650 sg m
of new additional retail space. The intended retail offerings for
Phase 1 consist of a good mix of high quality food and beverage
outlets and retail tenants. These tenants are expected to
commence operations progressively in the second half of 2009.

The Manager is currently reviewing further opportunities to
commercialise dormant common area space in the Property.

SEEER{LE

ERABRES  ERECRERNENNTE
RiE - AMERBESEE - R-FF\F &
EANTE@EEITHER  BRETHENE
METETAZBRIGTAZALERNER
o

DR ERILRDTERE © B - WtiRET
&Rt T EIR RS RE P RFD 7 B e E A
& - HEWARTEIEN -

BB ETRHBE—HOREIRER 2T
NE= BRR - 1650 T KM BTN T
i - - HNTEHROESRARIRTE
E - ZREMPEMR - BTAE T L FHER
B -

BEARERGE - FREVMEARER LR
HHHE -




RREEF China Commercial Trust Annual Report 2008
EETERERHEREERES \FEH

Top: Artist’s impression of the Lobby, Gateway Plaza
F o ERRESAENEEE

Left: Artist’s impression of the common corridor at Level
Three, Gateway Plaza

T ERESE-ZEARERNEEE

Right: Artist’s impression of a typical shopfront at Level
Three, Gateway Plaza
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Overview of the Beijing
Grade A Office Market

B/ AR HSHRE

. o
nght & & As at 11 March 2009 —FENF=A+—H
Frank .‘ iﬁ Prepared by Knight Frank FR AT B R AR Y
Summary - Beijing Property Market Performance WME-EYETISRIRIEEZ
Indicators
Grade A Office Market Indicators 2008 vs. 2007
—EE N\FE_ZEZLFERKHNETHEFREL
2008 2007
Amount Y-0-Y Amount Y-0-Y
HE RLER B RLER
New Supply GFA (sq m) it tEREmE (FhK) 0.75 million B & -477% 145 milion B8 +412.9%
Total Stock GFA (sq m) BEEREEE (THK) 6.16 million B & +139% 541 milion BE +36.3%
Market Rent (RMB /sqm /mth gross)  Ti5H& (RBRERBARYE /FHX/8A) 202.4 0.5 2016 ”
Market Rent (USD/sqm /mth gross) iM% (RREERER/F5k/8A) 295 AU 266 il
Capital Value (USD / sq m gross) BAE (RREEEEL/TAR) 3,298 +6.8% 2,832 -0.6%
Net Take-up GFA (sq m) FREERE (TAR) 0.53 million & -496%  1.04milion BB +106.7%
Viacancy Rate FEX 17.9% +1.8% 16.1% +4.1%
Yield gz 7.8% 7.9%
|
Source: Knight Frank Research BARAR : FAH R B
2008 Grade A Office Market Indicators Beijing vs. Lufthansa
“EEZ \FFREESEHERARAETSEZEHL
Beijing Lufthansa
ER -3
Amount Y-o-Y Amount Y-o-Y
“E ELER faE RLER
New Supply GFA (sq m) MEERERR (THK) 0.75 million B & -47.7% 91,000 -17.3%
Total Stock GFA (sq m) prERERE (YAK) 6.16 million B & +13.9% 738,147 +14.1%
Market Rent (RMB /sq m / mth gross)  Mi5#& (EREEEARE/FHA/SA) 202.4 , 175.6 ,
Market Rent (USD /sqm /mth gross)  hi8#84 (RREEEET/ Tk, /58) 295 +04% %7 -25%
Net Take-up GFA (sq m) FRaEEEE (EAK) 0.53 million B & -49.6% 37,278 -59.1%
Viacancy Rate FEX 17.9% +1.8% 15.4% +22%

Source: Knight Frank Research ERRR ¢ FH B B
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2008 Premium Grade A Office Market Indicators Beijing vs. Gateway Plaza

BEERERR(CETK)
miHsHe
(FRERBRARY THK/8R)

Total Stock GFA (sq m)
Market Rent (RMB / sg m / mth gross)

Market Rent (USD / sq m / mth gross)

Net Take-up GFA (sq m)

Vacancy Rate'

Vacancy Rate for Stabilised
Properties

FRARETR (THK)
FEE
BEMENEES

Premium Grade A Gateway Plaza

mistHe (RRERExL/ FhK/ 88)

BERE ERES
Amount Y-0-Y Amount Y-0-Y
#E [ERER HE G535
1.61 million B& +12.4% 106,394 —
230.9 240
338 -2.2% 35.1 -7.7%
168,200 -43.2% -8,177 =
(o) _ 0
20.7% 5.4% 11.4% +7.6%
5.8% -0.6%

Source: Knight Frank Research

Note:
' This vacancy rate includes new Premium Grade A office buildings completed in 2008.

Economic Overview: China and Beijing

Increasingly affected by the impact from the international financial
crisis, compounded by the human, social and economic costs of
the earthquake in Sichuan Province in May, the pace of growth of
China’s economy during 2008, its Olympics year, declined.
Preliminary data released from National Statistics Bureau for the
year indicated that the country's Gross Domestic Product (“GDP")
amounted to RMB 30,067 billion in 2008, with a year-on-year
growth rate of nine per cent compared with the previous year.

While still high in comparative terms, the nine per cent rate was
the lowest since 2001, when an annual rate of 8.3 per cent was
recorded, and it was the first time China’s GDP growth had fallen
into the single-digit range since 2003. As the widening global

ERIOR - A0 B AR
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Overview of the Beijing Grade A Office Market
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economic crisis continues to impact, China’s annual GDP growth is
predicted to decline further during 2009. According to the
Government'’s preliminary data released for 2008, a year-on-year
growth rate for the fourth quarter of 2008 of 6.8 per cent was
recorded, a decline from nine per cent recorded in the third quarter
and 9.9 per cent for the first three quarters of the year.

Declining sentiment towards China’s predicted economic
performance during 2009 is also echoed by the World Bank, which
has reduced its 2009 GDP growth forecast for the country to 7.5
per cent, the lowest forecast in nearly two decades; a forecast
made despite the Government unveiling of a RMB4 trillion stimulus
package to be spent on the construction of roads, railways and
other infrastructures, job creation in rural areas and financial
support for small businesses.

Beijing’s economic growth reflected that of the country generally
during 2008, with the city's GDP recorded at RMB1,048.8 billion,
up nine per cent from the previous year. While the Beijing
Olympics and Paralympics held in August and September 2008
were undoubtedly important catalysts for the city’s economy
during 2008, year-on-year GDP growth still declined significantly
from the average 12.4 per cent recorded between 2002 and 2007.

EREBAN - ZTNFHEE T K - RIEBUT
BN _TT/N\FOTEE  BR_TT/N\EH
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LR AR A E R ESRS ARE10,488(8 T -
BREFEABASZN BT \FREELR
R R B RELEES - —TEN\F/\A
ERABEMNILRREEREREERLLT =

ST N\FEOBENEEZECE - Am - BREER
ENRFERNABR ST _FE_TTLF
MRS HERFERAS 2 T BMEZT
BX o

Macro Economic Indicators, 2008

—2B \FRBOHER
China Beijing
FE] b=
Amount % YoY  Amount % YoY
Index BEEZE #WE [hER wE R R
GDP (RMB BIn) BEnEERE (ARE+TET) 30,067 +9.0 1,049 +9.0
Fixed Assets Investment (RMB Bln) 2 @B EEERE 17,229 +25.5 385 -3.0
— Investment in Real Estate —EHERZERE
(RMB BIn) (ARE+1ET) 3,058 +20.9 191 -4.4
Retail Sales (RMB BIn) tEHERTER (ARE+ET) 10,849 +21.6 459 +20.8
Urban Disposable Income (RMB) WIEE R A S B A
(AR®TT) 15,781 +14.5 24,725 +124
Consumer Price Index ERHBEERIEH +5.9 +5.1
Foreign Trade (USD BlIn) By N#ERE (+HE3=T) 2,561.6 +17.8 271.9 +40.8
Real Utilized Foreign ERFERINEIRESTE
Investment (USD Bln) (+18%7T) 92.4 +23.6 6.1 +20.1

Source: National Bureau of Statistics of China BHRR : HEERSH D
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Beijing Premium and Grade A Office Market

Supply and Stock

By year-end 2008, the city's total Grade A office stock was
recorded at 6.16 million sq m, with a year-on-year increase of 13.9
per cent. The previous year's predicted 1.6 million sg m of new
supply expected to enter the market during 2008 did not fully
materialise. Construction delays, resulting from Government
restrictions imposed in advance of and during the Olympic Games
and later, the rapid decline in sentiment related to global economic
conditions combined to limit new supply, with 0.75 million sg m of
new Grade A offices entering the market in 2008.

As a result, an additional 0.85 million sq m of Grade A offices
previously slated for completion during 2008 was delayed and is
now anticipated to come into the market during the course of
2009. This, in combination with new supply of 0.98 million sg m
already slated for completion that year, will bring the total new
supply entering the market in a single year in Beijing to a historic
high of 1.83 million sg m and the anticipated total Grade A office
stock in Beijing to 7.99 million sg m by year end 2009.

Given prevailing economic conditions, the strong possibility
remains that a portion of new supply anticipated to come into the
market during 2009 might in fact be delayed to 2010 or beyond.
However, if this is not the case, and new supply enters the market
in accordance with timings as currently indicated by developers,
the recorded pipeline of new Grade A office supply is set to
diminish drastically from 2010 onwards, with 0.7 million sg m
slated for completion in 2010, and negligible new supply currently
slated to enter the market in 2011 and 2012.

Whilst considerable in quantity, the geographic distribution of
Grade A offices is and will continue to remain substantially focused
within two specific locations in Beijing, the CBD and Beijing
Finance Street (“BFS"), which, by year end 2008 accounted for
54.5 per cent and 22.5 per cent respectively of the city’s total stock
of Grade A offices. By comparison, and following completion of the
91,000 sg m Ping An International Financial Centre in February
2008, the total stock of Grade A office space within the Lufthansa
submarket, the submarket where Gateway Plaza is located, was
recorded at approximately 738,000 sq m, or 12 per cent of Beijing’s
total Grade A office stock by year end 2008.

Annual Report 2008
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Beijing Grade A Office Stock, 2008 Year-end
REZBENFFRELEFRAPAEEFE
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Source: Knight Frank Research BRHOR : 3 BB AR

With only one Premium Grade A office, World Financial Centre
(177,800 sg m) launched on to the market during 2008, the total stock
of Premium Grade A offices reached 1.61 million sg m by year-end
2008, accounting for 26.1 per cent of Beijing’s current stock of Grade
A offices. At the same time, the majority of Beijing’s Premium Grade
A offices were located within the CBD, a trend that is set to continue
with slated new completions in the next two years. Gateway Plaza
remains the only Premium Grade A office building in the Lufthansa
submarket.

Since its completion in February 2008, Ping An International
Financial Center has established itself as the most directly
competing office building to Gateway Plaza within the Lufthansa
submarket. With a reported occupancy of between 35 and 40 per
cent at year-end 2008, this building is likely to remain the greatest
source of competition to Gateway Plaza through the course of
2009, both from occupiers moving into the submarket for the first
time, and from existing occupiers within Gateway Plaza seeking to
exert the threat of relocation to cheaper office space during the
course of lease renewal negotiations.
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Over the course of 2009 and 2010, only two Grade A office
buildings (Sunny Region and Phoenix City) offering a combined
196,800 sq m are slated for completion and expected to enter the
Lufthansa submarket. Neither building will be classified as
Premium Grade A, with the attraction of Phoenix City anticipated to
be negatively impacted as a result of its location in the less
favorable area north of the Airport Expressway and Sunny Region
as a result of market perceptions related to it having remained
partly-completed and on-hold for the past ten years.

As a result, limited supply of Premium Grade A offices will remain
the defining characteristic of the Lufthansa submarket over the
course of the next three years. While competition from Ping An
International Financial Center will likely remain high through 2009,
Gateway Plaza will continue to benefit from the lack of directly
competing buildings within the Lufthansa submarket in the
medium and long term, thereby consolidating its current position
as the foremost office building in that submarket.

Annual Report 2008
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Demand and Vacancy

By comparison with the historic high recorded the previous year,
demand for and take-up of Grade A office space in Beijing declined
significantly during 2008. Net take-up of offices was recorded at
approximately 0.53 million sq m for the year, similar to levels
recorded in 2004 (0.59 million sg m), 2005 (0.45 million sq m) and
2006 (0.51 million sg m), and approximately 50 per cent lower than
the 1.04 million sg m recorded in 2007.
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Analysis of demand trends during the course of 2008 highlights the
impact of both the Olympics-related construction and fit-out
restrictions and declining global economic sentiment on corporate
attitudes towards demand for offices in the city. Quarterly take-up
for the year peaked in the first quarter, at 192,400 sq m, declining
quarter-on-quarter thereafter through the remainder of the year.
Take-up in the second quarter was recorded at 138,800 sq m,
declining to 114,700 sq m in the third quarter.

The previously anticipated increase in take-up in the fourth quarter,
a projected result of pent-up demand resulting from construction
and fit out restrictions imposed during the Olympics period mid-
year, did not eventually materialise. With corporate sentiment
declining rapidly as a result of worsening global economic
conditions during the course of the second half of the year,
demand and take-up of Grade A offices continued to decline, with
companies increasingly delaying or cancelling previous relocation
or expansion plans in the city. A total 80,580 sq m of take-up was
recorded in the fourth quarter of 2008, a decline of over 58 per
cent compared with recorded take-up in the first quarter of the
year.
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Beijing Grade A Office Annual Supply, Take-up and Vacancy, 2001-2008
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The reduction in anticipated new Grade A offices coming into the
market in 2008 resulted in a more moderate increase in vacancy
rates than previously projected. By year-end 2008, average vacancy
rates across all submarkets were recorded at 17.9 per cent, an
increase from 16.1 per cent recorded at the same time the
previous year. At the same time, average vacancy rates within
Premium Grade A offices were recorded at 21 per cent. Although
3.1 percentage points higher than the average for Grade A offices,
the higher rate reflected both the relatively small size of Premium
Grade A office stock in Beijing generally, as well as the short-term
sensitivity of vacancy rates in this sub-class to new Premium
Grade A offices entering the market, particularly in 2007 and 2008.

Recorded vacancy rates for stabilised Premium Grade A offices
have historically remained well below those recorded within the
wider Grade A office market, generally falling within a range of
between five per cent and ten per cent. New supply aside, the
average vacancy for stabilised Premium Grade A office space in
Beijing was recorded at 5.8 per cent by year-end 2008, a marginal
decrease from 6.5 per cent recorded at the same time the previous
year. While comparatively low vacancy is a trend that is anticipated
to continue in the medium and long term for stabilised Premium
Grade A offices, it is likely that in the short term, increased
competition resulting from significant new supply entering the
market during 2009 will result in increasing vacancy rates within
this classification of office buildings.

Reflecting broader market conditions during 2008, year-on-year
demand for office space within the Lufthansa submarket also
decreased, with net take-up of 37,278 sq m of Grade A office
space recorded through the course of the year, compared with
91,040 sgq m recorded during 2007. While net take-up declined,
vacancy rates within the Lufthansa submarket continued to remain
below the wider market average. Ping An International Financial
Center included, the average vacancy within the Lufthansa
submarket was recorded at 15.4 per cent by year-end 2008, some
2.4 percentage points lower than the overall vacancy of Grade A
offices recorded across all submarkets in Beijing.
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Gateway Plaza, as the only Premium Grade A office building within
the Lufthansa submarket, continued to prove its ability to
outperform the submarket average, with a recorded vacancy level
of 11.4 per cent at year end 2008, some four percentage points
below the submarket average. While demonstrating the building’s
continued ability to retain existing and attract new tenants to the
building over the course of 2008, vacancy rates in the building
increased compared to that in the previous year, a reflection of the
commencement of the building’s lease renewal cycle and the
need, in current economic circumstances, for specific occupiers to
relocate to lower rent building options.
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The Lufthansa submarket has historically, and will continue, to
benefit from excellent accessibility by road due to its immediate
proximity to the North East Third Ring Road and the Airport
Expressway. In 2008, completion of both Metro Line No.10 and the
high-speed rail link to the newly opened Terminal Three of the
Beijing Capital Airport further enhanced the accessibility of this
location. Albeit in an increasingly competitive market through 2009,
in conjunction with limited supply of new offices slated to enter
the submarket in the next two years, the comparative benefits
provided by these infrastructure improvements will continue to
enhance the attraction of the Lufthansa submarket over time as an
office location.
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Market Rents

Average Grade A and Premium Grade A office rents reached a
three-year peak during the third quarter of 2008, recorded at

RMB 197.0 (USD 28.8) per sg m per month and RMB 238.2
(USD34.8) per sg m per month on average, based on gross floor
area, exclusive of management fees respectively. However,
declining global economic conditions increasingly impacted market
sentiment in the office sector from the beginning of the fourth
quarter onwards, resulting in a decline in rents by year end 2008 to
RMB 187.3 (USD 27.4) and RMB 230.9 (USD 33.8) per sq m per
month exclusive of management fees respectively. While rents
declined in the final quarter across all sectors of the office market,
Premium Grade A offices continued to command a 20 to 40 per
cent rental premium compared with Grade A offices generally.

Annual Report 2008
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Within the Lufthansa submarket specifically, overall Grade A office
rents were recorded at RMB 175.6 (USD 25.7) per sq m per
month, exclusive of management fees at year-end 2008. Gateway
Plaza, the only Premium Grade A office building within the
submarket commanded the highest market rent in that location at
RMB 240 (USD 35.1) per sq m per month, exclusive of
management fees. Although the recorded rental premium
commanded by the building compared to average Grade A offices
in the submarket compressed to 37 per cent (from 41 per cent in
2007) over the course of the year, the rental premium remained
significant, a reflection of tenant attitudes to the general quality of
the Property compared to the other buildings in the submarket.
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Market Rents for Office Space by Submarkets
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Grade A office rents are anticipated to decline between 10 and 15
per cent in 2009, a result of 1.8 million sg m of new office supply
entering the market in conjunction with uncertain economic
conditions. However, the greatest impact is likely to be felt within
Beijing's CBD submarket, where the majority of new supply is to
be located. Premium Grade A buildings such as Gateway Plaza, not
located in the high-supply submarkets, are likely to better
withstand downward pressure in rents during 2009 and 2010, with
rental growth anticipated at this stage to return across the market
from 2011 onwards.

There remain a number of factors impacting the short-term growth
of Grade A office rents in Beijing: challenging global and local
economic conditions generally; supply of new Grade A offices
entering the market; and reduced demand from office occupiers.
However, with Beijing positioned as the primary administrative
centre of China, a major hub within China’s still expanding
economy, and with its location at the core of Bohai Economic Rim,
the city remains extremely well placed to benefit when the global
€CoNoMmy recovers.
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Capital Values ERE

The average sales price for Grade A offices across all locations in —EENFIRETHE AR R AIEERSH T
Beijing was recorded at approximately RMB 22,500 (USD 3,300) per  i#5&@ (IREEmEESE) HAEFHKARK
sgq m based on gross floor area in 2008. According to the Beijing 22,5007T (3,300%7T) - B ETEREEeR

Construction Commission, the sales prices for strata-title offices fell  ymx  BHBAEHEBREKBLE - B2
within a range from RMB 17,000 per sqg m to RMB 34,000 per sq m, B EEARSEMEEARR  EEFES KA
depending on the location, building quality, floor zone and the unit 17 000728 T KA R34 0007T.2 [
size purchased. g -

Grade A Office Capital Value Index, Q1 2003 - Q4 2008
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Sales Transaction Records
HERXRZ L
Motorola
Metro World Jin He Capital Tower
Centre! Guo Ji? Tower'  EEILZEHL
Project Name HE BB gEHRLT SFERR? HEKRES RE
Grading Fih Grade A B R Grade A 4% Grade A FRAR  Grade A FR 4%
Location NE Chaoyangmen Zhongguancun CBD CBD
AR5 WestZone FREHKE HARAEBKE
RN AR
Transaction Date R5HH Q2 2008 Q32008 Q32008 Q42008
“EEN\E —FT\E —TT)\F —TI)\F
F-5 F=% F=% EuES
Transacted Area (sq m) B AZEAE (T K) 432,000 44,209 107,627 33,745
Reported Unit Sales Price (RMB/sqm) BHRKRZEE(ETARARET) 12,731 20,132 31,033  N.A TER
Purchaser -V SOHO China  SOHO China SK China Maple Tree
SOHO B  SOHO A [ SK AR

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Source: Knight Frank Research BERRR - BB AR

Notes PiEE

' Renamed to Chaoyangmen SOHO after the transaction. The property is a mixed-use complex KRR SR AFGPSOHO « ZMEAGARBNEER  Aoz=
with 26 per cent retail, 34 per cent office, 15 per cent residential and 25 per cent other TARBETZE - Ao =THAERAE 8oz +tREREEERA
components. DZ_+REEMAR -

2 Renamed to ZGC SOHO after the transaction. The property is a mixed-use complex with office 2 KR1ESHBAETEFSOHO - ZMEANARTEREARESE -
and retail components. 3 KREHERSKKE °

% Renamed to SK Tower after the transaction.
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Summary and Conclusion

Declining global economic conditions and the impact of the
Sichuan Earthquake negatively impacted the pace of economic
growth in China during 2008. Year-on-year GDP growth was
recorded at nine per cent during the course of the year, the lowest
recorded growth rate since 2001. China's economy is predicted to
come under further pressure during 2009, echoed by the World
Bank, which has reduced its 2009 GDP growth forecast to 7.5 per
cent, the lowest forecast in nearly two decades.

The construction and fitting-out restrictions imposed in advance of
and during the Olympic Games have resulted in 0.85 million sg m
of Grade A office previously scheduled for completion in 2008
being postponed to 2009. If currently reported completion
schedules are met, this will result in 1.8 million sq m of new Grade
A office space entering the market in 2009 and a further 0.7 million
sg m in 2010. Current global economic circumstances would
indicate that the delay in completion of some projects is likely.

Geographic distribution of new Premium and average Grade A
offices entering the market in 2009 and 2010 will remain
substantially focused within the CBD and BFS. The new supply
pipeline in the Lufthansa submarket, the third largest office
submarket in Beijing, is limited to 196,800 sq m within two
buildings in 2009. Ping An International Financial Center, completed
in 2008, will remain the most directly competing office building to
Gateway Plaza during the course of 2009. However, with projected
new supply within the Lufthansa submarket predicted to remain
limited in 2010 and beyond, Gateway Plaza will retain its position
as the only Premium Grade A office building in this submarket.

The Lufthansa submarket has historically benefited from its
proximity to both the North East Third Ring Road and the Airport
Expressway. Recently completed additional infrastructure
improvements, including Metro Line No. 10 and the Capital Airport
rail-link will significantly enhance accessibility to the submarket by
public transportation.
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Tenant demand for Grade A offices declined significantly through
the course of 2008, with a recorded net take-up of 0.53 million sq
m in 2008 compared with 1.04 million sg m in 2007. This is a result
of Government imposed restrictions in advance of and during the
Olympic Games and the deepening global financial crisis. This
trend is predicted to continue during the course of 2009.

The average market rents exclusive of management fees for both
average Grade A and Premium Grade A office buildings in Beijing
peaked in the third quarter of 2008 at RMB197.0 (USD28.8) per sq
m per month and RMB 238.2 (USD34.8) per sq m per month
respectively. Declining global economic conditions towards the end
of the year caused average rents to fall by year end to similar levels
in 2007. By the fourth quarter of 2008, the average market rents
exclusive of management fees declined to RMB187.3 (USD27.4)
per sg m per month for average Grade A office buildings and
RMB230.9 (USD33.8) per sqg m per month for Premium Grade A
office buildings. In 2009, the average market rents of Grade A
offices are projected to decline a further 10 to 15 per cent across
the board.

Annual Report 2008
—ZETNEER

“ETN\F  HEHFRPABHFTRKET
B BT FRISHFIRAE1048 T 75K
b —EEN\FNFRNEERA+=8YFA
K o BETY BB BUE & 2 Bl N B A 0 TA2
PRI R 2 IRE REEE(LPTE - At 2B H
“ETNFRENS -

IR —RPRRELREHAENTFIIMIEHE
& (TEREREB) N ST N\FE=FZ=3
=& - HRIATAEFHTRKARE197.07T (28.8
%x70) R REFHARARK238.25T (34.8%7T) ©
EHEERRATE —BFEEFE - BRFET
HHSBRER-_TTLFRERKT - RZTZ
NEFNE - —RPEHIENTEMHES (R
PREEEE) TREF AT L RARK187.3T
(27.4%7) - BERZFAEHTHEITERE (T
BIEEREE) ITKEE AT L KARK230.9
7T.(33.8%7T) © HEIEE R RM AN TS
SRR _BTNFRBETRADZTEBSZ T
ﬂ o

59

L



-

BN e
-




Cross leveraging the individual’s S EZEMH
expertise and talents to deliver the BERBAKE
best in performance



62

Chairman and Non-executive Director Age 47

Kurt Roeloffs is the Chief Executive Officer, Asia
Pacific for RREEF Alternative Investments, Deutsche
Bank's global alternative investment management
division. He is also the Asia Pacific Head of RREEF’s
Real Estate Opportunities Funds which makes real
estate-related private equity investments throughout
the world.

Mr. Roeloffs received a B.A. degree from Columbia
University and an M.B.A. degree from The Wharton
School, University of Pennsylvania, United States of
America. Mr. Roeloffs is currently based in Singapore.

Executive Director and Fund Manager Age 39

With more than 17 years of experience in the real
estate industry, Paul Keogh has been with RREEF
since 2004.

Mr. Keogh holds a Bachelor of Business degree in
Property from the Royal Melbourne Institute of
Technology and is a qualified Real Estate Valuer and
Licensed Estate Agent in Victoria, Australia. Mr. Keogh
is currently based in Hong Kong.
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Our People

Mr. Brian David CHINAPPI
Non-executive Director Age 37

Brian Chinappi is the Head of Acquisitions for RREEF
Asia Pacific. These investments include real
properties, property developments, non-performing

loan portfolios and real estate operating companies.

Mr. Chinappi received a B.A.degree from Georgetown
University in the United States of America. He is also
licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission to
carry on Type 4 and Type 9 regulated activities in Hong
Kong. Mr. Chinappi is currently based in Hong Kong.

Mr. Michael Eugene BUQUOI
Non-executive Director Age 63

With over 37 years' experience in real estate and
financial services, Michael Buquoi has been with

RREEF since 2000.

Based in Hong Kong, Mr. Buquoi is also both a Certified
Public Accountant and designated Counselor of Real
Estate. He holds an M.B.A. degree and a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from the University of
Texas in Austin, United States of America.

Annual Report 2008
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Non-executive Director Age 35

Niel Thassim joined Deutsche Bank AG in 2001 as
Business Manager for the Bank's Australian real estate
investment management business. He has over 14
years of finance, accounting and real estate investment
management experience. He is currently based in
RREEF's regional head office in Singapore and is the
Chief Operating Officer of RREEF Asia Pacific.

Mr. Thassim graduated from the University of Sydney,
Australia with a Bachelor of Economics (Accounting)
degree and is a member of the Australian Institute of
Chartered Accountants.

Non-executive Director Age 38

As the Chief Financial Officer of RREEF Asia Pacific,
So Tak Young has over 15 years of experience in
financial services and asset management. He is
responsible for the financial management of funds in
the Asia Pacific region, including investment funding,
tax, accounting, foreign exchange management and
financial reporting.

Mr. So holds an M.B.A. degree and a Bachelor of
Business degree from the University of Technology,
Sydney in Australia. He is also a Member of the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants,
Australia (CPA (Aust.)).

FHITEE 3558

Niel Thassimp? ZZEZ—FINBAEEER
17 HAEZBRITRMNEHEREBIREY
BVETEASIR o RIANRBATS ~ &t REHE
REEEES TIUFELR o MBS
MEEERGENER  BEEEERAR

g
RIBEE o

ThassimZE A BENRNEERE - 155
S (G5t B4 - WARNETS

FHIAEER -

FHTES 38%
HEDEREETARNMBHELE £
BERGLREEEE T AERBTIFRL
B MELARTARESHNUBERE -
BREEARE B g5t INEEER
RS -

BEERBRMNEERMBAZIRNEES
PR MR E TR o RIEM B

FEFMAEgE -



RREEF China Commercial Trust
FETEREFHEREERES

Independent Non-executive Director Age 54
Before retiring from Deutsche Bank in 2003, Mark

Ford was Head of DB Real Estate in Australia.

Mr. Ford is a commerce graduate from the New South
Wales University of Technology in Sydney. He also
holds a Company Directors Diploma awarded by the
Australian Institute of Company Directors and is a
Chartered Accountant in Australia. He is the Chairman
of the International and Capital Markets Division of the
Property Council of Australia, a Director of the same
Council, the Chairman of Cbus Property and a Director
of Trafalger Corporate Limited.

Independent Non-executive Director Age 62
Jack Rodman has more than 39 years of experience in
real estate consulting and transaction advisory services.

He retired from Ernst & Young LLC in early 2007.

Mr. Rodman received a Bachelor degree in Business
Administration from San Jose State University and a
Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of California at Los Angeles, United States
of America. He is a Certified Public Accountant in
California and Washington State and a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
is a visiting fellow at Harvard University Real Estate
Academic Initiative from 2006 to 2008.

Independent Non-executive Director Age 59

Since 1992, Meng Xiaosu has served as the Chairman
of the China National Real Estate Development Group.
He also acts as the Chairman of the Board of Happy
Life Insurance Co., Ltd. and Vice Chairman of China
Enterprise Con-federation China Enterprise Directors

Association.

Dr. Meng holds a Ph.D. in Economics from Peking
University. Dr. Meng received a special subsidy in
recognition of his academic achievement in business
administration as “An Outstanding Expert” by the
State Council of China in 2005.
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We are committed
to creating value for
our investors in all
that we do.

The Manager of RREEF CCT is wholly owned by RREEF through
DAPH. Responsible for the general management of RREEF CCT,
the Manager's expertise is enhanced by the global resources of
RREEF

For over 30 years, in up markets and down, RREEF has
demonstrated results and earned the loyalty and respect of its
clients. Its relationship with the parent, Deutsche Bank group,
connects it to a powerful network of expertise worldwide. RREEF
itself is backed by a global team of professionals with an
established track record of acquisition success and delivering
consistent value to investors.
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Proactive Asset Strategic
Property Lease Enhancement Strong Brand Asset Planning and Fund
Management Management and Maximisation Management Management Investment Management
YIER EBHEEE EERAREE BAMREE BEEER KR BRRE HeE®

Property Management #)¥£&E#

RREEF has over 1,400 dedicated investment professionals in 16
offices around the world, commanding a global presence and sharp
competitive advantage. Its deep understanding of local and global
market conditions is instrumental to helping the Manager develop
new strategies that embrace evolving markets.

RREEF also prides itself on its long-tenured senior management
team, whose extensive experience and direct involvement provide
a strong sense of perspective as well as stability to the
organisation.

Leveraging on these resources, the Manager ensures that RREEF
CCT is optimally structured through regular and consistent reviews
of the portfolio. The Manager proactively manages the portfolio to,
foremost, maximise income, and consequently, enhance investor
value for RREEF CCT's Unitholders.

Through all market conditions, the Manager remains unwavering in
its commitment to create value for RREEF CCT's Unitholders in
every undertaking.

Capital Management &£ &1
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The property management function of Gateway Plaza is
outsourced to Beijing Jones Lang LaSalle Property Management
Services Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of Jones Lang LaSalle listed on the
New York Stock Exchange.

Jones Lang LaSalle (NYSE:JLL) is a professional services firm
specialising in real estate. The firm offers integrated services
delivered by expert teams worldwide to clients seeking increased
value by owning, occupying or investing in real estate.

Jones Lang LaSalle has over 50 years of experience in Asia Pacific,
with over 17,500 employees operating in 80 offices in 13 countries
across the region. In 2009, the firm celebrates its 15th year in
China, where there are about 700 professionals and 5,000 on-site
staff, providing quality real estate advice and services in the areas
of retail, residential, commercial, industrial, property and facility
management services, investment, strategic consulting, project
and development services and research. Key clients include
various government agencies and developers, as well as owners of
high-end residential and commercial buildings.

The Beijing Jones Lang LaSalle team is an on-site team that
oversees tenancy management services (including leasing
services), property management services, rental collection and
repatriation services and entity accounting services on behalf of
RREEF CCT.

The Beijing Jones Lang LaSalle team is unwavering in its
commitment to providing proactive and professional operational
services to further accentuate the market positioning of Gateway
Plaza.
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RREEF (through DAPH)
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Unitholders
ELEMFFA

Investment in

RREEF CCT Distributions
Base fee and EQE;EW’E ik
variable fee ESHNRE
H2BAR
EFBHEA

D ;R RREEF China Commercial Trust
i E=PEEXEIWERECRES

Fund management

services i
Management Limited HeEBRRY iy o';gjgaﬁi‘?f
EETEERESERE -
BRAF 100%
BVI Property Company*
BVI #1%AT]
Ownership of shares
Fees and PR
leasing BERH
commissions o
BEAREERSE 100%
#
Towes Lang E HK Property 'C/(irfpany
LASALLE E — > EEYEAT]
fi Tenancy and property
Property Manager ma”:gzmem 100%
=5
WREEA other services
HERNFXEER
oyl Gateway Plaza
ERES
Notes iz
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Trustee's fees

ZEANER
<~ HSBC®iE

Assets held in
trust on behelf
of Unitholders

HSBC Institutional Trust
Services (Asia) Limited

: . E BB SRS
ERARESE]
%ﬁm%ﬁﬁ’yzg (M) BRAT

Unitholding/shareholding
ESBEMFE/ R
Distributions/dividends
P/ BRE

Payments and services
pursuant to contractual
relationships under the Trust
Deed and the Property
Management Agreement
BRBEAZIRYEEEHETH
ARBARNARRIRES

* The Beijing Gateway Plaza (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which holds all the HK Property Company shares.

Beijing Gateway Plaza (BV) Limited B REE 2 BES MK MR R - WRAMAEBEMERRRY °
# The HK Gateway Plaza Company Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong which holds the Property.
BRERBSAARAREBEMKINRGE  XHEWE -
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As an asset manager of BREEEBNEE
international repute, integrity is EEA BEFEEXK
ingrained in our values M MEE



72

RREEF China REIT Management Limited
Registered Office:

48/F Cheung Kong Center, 2 Queen’'s Road Central, Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2203 7872 Fax: +852 2203 7995
Website: www.rreefchinatrust.com
Investor Relations:

Tel: +852 2203 7894

Fax: +852 2203 7995

Email: enquiry@rreefchinatrust.com

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Kurt William ROELOFFS, Junior
Executive Director and Fund Manager
Mr. Paul Thomas KEOGH
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Brian David CHINAPPI

Mr. Michael Eugene BUQUOI

Mr. Niel THASSIM

Mr. SO Tak Young (Appointed on 31 July 2008)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Mark Henry FORD

Mr. Jack Richard RODMAN

Dr. MENG Xiaosu

Mr. Paul Thomas KEOGH
Ms. LOKE Mun See (Appointed on 22 April 2008)

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
1 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong

Clifford Chance
28/F, Jardine House,1 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

Tricor Investor Services Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Ms. LIN Siu Mui

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants
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Corporate Governance

Investor Relations
REEBR

The Manager Proactively Engages Investors

We endeavour to relay our business performance and developments with
clarity and accuracy to the investment and financial community and in a
timely manner. The Manager is committed to achieving best practice
standards in corporate governance and disclosure.

We place great importance on investor communications. The management
team has been actively involved in direct discussion with investors,
Unitholders and analysts through one-on-one meetings, regular conference
calls and overseas roadshows. Feedback and queries from the investment
and financial community are held in high regard and attended to regularly
and in a timely manner.

After each financial half year and full year, the interim and final results are
released to the public via the SEHK's and RREEF CCT's websites to ensure
fair and even disclosure. Following that, the management team will engage
the investor, analyst and media communities through briefings hosted by
the Manager. The Manager also participates in conferences and roadshows
on a regular basis.

All news and announcements on financial results, major business
developments and events are posted on our corporate website
www.rreefchinatrust.com for easy access by Unitholders, media and
members of the public.

RREEF CCT is listed under the stock code 625 on the SEHK.
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Your feedback is valuable. If you have any queries,
please contact us at:

Investor Relations
RREEF China REIT Management Limited
As the Manager of RREEF China Commercial Trust

48/F Cheung Kong Center

2 Queen'’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2203 7894

Fax: +852 2203 7995

Email: enquiry@rreefchinatrust.com
Website: www.rreefchinatrust.com

BTHREBRRER - e M TAEMNERRS
B R PR AR

REAERIE
EETEERESERARAR
EREETEREFSMEREEEESNEEA

BB

SRANEF2E

RIT&EEF 04812

B 3E: +852 2203 7894

{EH: +852 2203 7995

B H: enquiry@rreefchinatrust.com
#34E: www.rreefchinatrust.com

19 March 2009

—TENF=A+IE

30 April to 6 May 2009,
both days inclusive
—ZETNFMNA=THERAH
(BEEREMAB)

6 May 2009
—ZETNFHANRA
26 May 2009
—ETNFRA=TH
August 2009
—TTNFENA
November 2009
ZETNF+—A

March 2010
—T—FTF=H

Announcement of 2008 final results for the year ended 31 December 2008.

BE_ZT)\F+-_A=1T - RHUEFEN T/ \FRAXELM

Book closure dates for 2008 final distribution.

“REN\FRASKNEEHEESBEMBFPECAY -

Annual general meeting.

ESBAHHABEAS -

Payment of 2008 final distribution.
INZZBENFERPHIK

Announcement of 2009 interim results for the six months ending 30 June 2009.

BE_ZTAFAAZTHRLERNEAN ST NFERHEE DM -

Payment of interim distribution for the half year of 2009.
XN ZBBENFFFENRADIK ©

Announcement of 2009 final results for the year ending 31 December 2009.

BE_ZTAF+ A=t RUEFEN_TTAFRARELM

Note
* The dates listed are tentative and subject to change.
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Corporate Governance
Report

TERERHRE

With the objectives of establishing and maintaining high standards of
corporate governance, certain policies and procedures have been
established to promote the operation of RREEF CCT in a transparent
manner. The Manager has adopted a compliance manual, as reviewed and
revised from time to time which sets out key measures and procedures in
relation to the management and operation of RREEF CCT, with internal
checks and balances to ensure the relevant rules and regulations are duly
observed. During the Reporting Period, RREEF CCT and the Manager had
fully complied with the corporate governance policies laid down in the
compliance manual except for an inadvertent and non-material late
notification of interests by a Director of the Manager, which has already
been rectified. To the extent applicable, RREEF CCT and the Manager had
also met the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governance the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the SEHK.

Authorisation Structure

RREEF CCT is a collective investment scheme authorised by the Securities
and Futures Commission (“SFC") under section 104 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")and regulated by the provisions of the REIT
Code. The Manager is licensed by the SFC under section 116 of the SFO to
conduct the regulated activity of asset management. The Manager has two
personnel who are approved as Responsible Officers and one of them is an
executive director, pursuant to the requirements of section 125 of the SFO
and Rule 5.4 of the REIT Code.

The trustee of RREEF CCT, HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited,
(the “Trustee") is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. It is registered as a trust company
under section 77 of the Trustee Ordinance and is qualified to act as a
trustee for authorised collective investment schemes under the SFO
pursuant to the REIT Code.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Roles of the Trustee and the Manager

The Trustee and the Manager are independent of each other. The Trustee is
responsible under the Trust Deed for the safe custody of the assets of
RREEF CCT held by the Trustee on behalf of its Unitholders. The Manager’s
role under the Trust Deed is to manage RREEF CCT in accordance with the
Trust Deed and, in particular to ensure that the financial and economic
aspects of RREEF CCT's assets are professionally managed in the sole
interests of the Unitholders.

Functions of the Board of Directors of the Manager

The Board is responsible for the overall governance of RREEF CCT and the
Manager including establishing goals for management and monitoring the
achievements of these goals with a view to ensure that the fiduciary and
statutory obligations of the Manager to the Unitholders are met, and that
such duties have priority over all other duties including the interests of the
Manager’s shareholders.

Having regard to these responsibilities, the Board ensures that:
(a) it discharges its fiduciary and statutory duties and obligations;

(b) appropriate conflict identification and management practices are in
place;

(c) strategies are in place for achievement of the objectives of RREEF
CCT;

(d) business plans and budgets are approved, and monitoring of
performance against those plans and budgets is conducted;

(e) RREEF CCT's financial statements are true and fair and otherwise
conform with the relevant law;

(f) appropriate risk management, internal control and regulatory
compliance policies are in place; and

(@) management adheres to high standards of ethics and corporate
governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of RREEF CCT. The Board also carries ultimate responsibility for
the approval of property acquisitions, divestments and significant
transactions.

To assist the Board in its duties, it has established the Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee, the Disclosures Committee, the Management and
Investment Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
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The Board and the day-to-day management functions of RREEF CCT are
largely separated with the latter being in the hands of the Fund Manager?®
and its management team.

Board Composition of the Manager

With the aim of creating a board structure that is both effective and
balanced, the size of the Board has been set to provide for a minimum of
three directors and a maximum of twenty directors (“Directors”). Pursuant
to the Manager's corporate governance policy, independent non-executive
directors (“INEDs") must be individuals who fulfill the independence criteria
set out in the corporate governance policy adopted by the Manager.

The composition of the Board is determined using the following principles:
(@) the Chairman of the Board should be a non-executive Director;

(b) the Board should comprise of Directors with the ability and
competence to make appropriate business recommendations and
decisions, an entrepreneurial talent for contributing to the creation of
investor value, relevant experience in the industry sector, high ethical
standards, sound practical sense and a total commitment to the
fiduciary and statutory obligations to further the interests of the
Unitholders and achieve RREEF CCT's objectives; and

(c) at least one-third of the Board should be INEDs with a minimum of
three INEDs.

The Board currently comprises a total of nine Directors, consisting of one
Executive Director who is also the Fund Manager, five Non-executive
Directors (including the Chairman) and three INEDs.

All Directors shall retire from office at every annual general meeting of the
Manager and shall be eligible for re-election. Unless Directors decline re-
election in writing, the retiring Directors shall be deemed re-elected unless
the vacated office is filled by electing a person or persons at the annual
general meeting of the Manager, in accordance with its articles of
association.

Pursuant to the compliance manual and subject to re-election, INEDs will
hold office for three years, following their first appointment (or, if appointed
by the Board between annual meetings of the Manager, from the date of
the annual general meeting of the Manager immediately following their
appointment). An INED shall not hold office for more than nine years, or be
nominated for more than three consecutive terms, whichever is longer.

The Manager has received written annual confirmation from each INED of
his independence pursuant to the criteria for independence of INEDs as set
out in the compliance manual.

20 Refer to the glossary of this report.
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Currently, Mr. Kurt William Roeloffs, Junior is the Chairman of the Board.
The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, for the
efficient organisation and conduct of the Board’s functions, and for the
briefing of Directors in relation to issues arising pertinent to the Board.

Mr. Paul Thomas Keogh holds the positions of Executive Director and Fund
Manager. As Executive Director and Fund Manager, he is responsible for
establishing and implementing the overall strategy of RREEF CCT. With the
support of the Directors and management team, he is also responsible for
the overall management and day-to-day operations of the Manager and also
work with the Manager's staff to ensure that RREEF CCT is operated in
accordance with the stated strategy, policies and regulations.

The composition of the Board is reviewed periodically to ensure that the
Board has the appropriate mix of expertise and experience. The ongoing
review of the Board's composition and recommmendations on the
appointment and re-appointment of the Directors are matters within the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee.

(i) Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Directors are given written notices of Board meetings at least 14 days in
advance of the meetings. Suitable arrangements exist to allow Directors to
include items in the agenda for regular Board meetings. Agendas and
accompanying board papers are circulated to allow the Directors to
adequately prepare for the Board meetings. Board consents are given by
votes at the Board meetings or written resolutions signed by a majority of
Directors from time to time. Minutes of Board meetings and written
resolutions, together with any supporting papers, are kept in safe custody
by the Company Secretary, and are available to all Directors.
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(i) EBHFLHE

RBEHHE - SROTNAEESERSE - 282
MEFETR HEg FREMESENE (BEE
SRIB) HRAGIFTRIE R ERER AR - 815
EHMAEEERHEESNMEES - TEN
HEBEEFHMERESNFEES

(ii) Directors’ Attendance Records

During the Reporting Period, four regular Board meetings were held and
chaired by the Chairman who worked in conjunction with other Board
members, including the Fund Manager, to formulate strategy and to
supervise the business of the Manager, including review and approval of
the financial results of RREEF CCT, consideration and approval of the
annual budget of RREEF CCT.
EFeSKEROAESTSERSHNLELEE

The attendance records of each member of the Board at the four regular

Board meetings are set out below: R -
Attendance Records of Board Meetings
ESgeRLRAR
Board Meeting on  Board Meeting on  Board Meeting on  Board Meeting on
2 April 2008 16 July 2008 13 August 2008 18 November 2008
RZBENE R-BENE R-ZENE R-ZENE
mA=A +tA+xA NAt+=H +-A+NA
Directors £ NESES MESZES NWESSE NESEE
Chairman and Non-executive Director L /EFZIFEHITER
Mr. Kurt William ROELOFFS, Junior Kurt William ROELOFFS, Junior 4 V V v V
Executive Director and Fund Manager ~ #1172 E#ESTE
Mr. Paul Thomas KEOGH Paul Thomas KEOGH %t4 v v v \
Non-executive Directors FRTEF
Mr. Brian David CHINAPPI Brian David CHINAPPI %t 4 \ V \ \
Mr. Michael Eugene BUQUOI Michael Eugene BUQUOI 4 v v v v
Mr. Niel THASSIM Niel THASSIM %4 v v V \
Mr. SO Tak Young s NA NA y N
TiEf TiEfA
Independent Non-executive Directors BV IFEHiTEE
Mr. Jack Richard RODMAN Jack Richard RODMAN %4 i v \/ v
Mr. Mark Henry FORD Mark Henry FORD %4 \ V v v
Dr. MENG Xiaosu REEET V V v V

Note
Mr. So Tak Young was appointed as a Non-executive Director to the Board of the Manager on 31

1

July 2008.
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Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee was appointed by the Board.
At least three members of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee are
required to be INEDs, at least one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Currently, the members of the Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee are Mr. Jack Richard Rodman, Mr. Mark Henry Ford and Dr.
Meng Xiaosu as INEDs, Mr. Kurt William Roeloffs, Junior and Mr. Niel
Thassim as Non-executive Directors. Mr. Mark Henry Ford is the Chairman
of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee. The role of the Audit, Risk
and Compliance Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities by monitoring the Manager’'s compliance with the SFC
licensing requirements, the Trust Deed, the REIT Code and other regulatory
requirements and by reviewing its compliance, operational risk
management and internal audit programs. The objective of the Audit, Risk
and Compliance Committee is also to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities by reviewing the integrity and quality of RREEF CCT's
financial statements and disclosures, and reviewing RREEF CCT's auditing,
accounting and financial reporting processes.

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee’s responsibilities also include,
among other things:

(a) reviewing the treatment of significant conflicts of interests arising in
the business of RREEF CCT, including related party transactions;

(b) reviewing the evaluation of the adequacy of RREEF CCT's operational
risk management processes;

(c) reviewing the accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Manager and compliance with accounting standards, the REIT Code
and relevant legislation;

(d) reviewing the procedures for the selection and appointment of the
external auditor and for the rotation of external audit engagement
partners; and

(e) approving engagements for all audit services and for non-audit
services of an amount greater than or equal to HK$1,000,000.

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee held four regular meetings in
2008 and during the year of 2008 had reviewed the final results for the
period ended 31 December 2007, interim results for the period ended 30
June 2008 and other internal controls, risk management and compliance
matters of RREEF CCT. The attendance rate of these meetings was 100
per cent.
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Disclosures Committee

The Disclosures Committee was appointed by the Board. The Disclosures
Committee consists of the Executive Director and Fund Manager, Mr. Paul
Thomas Keogh, two Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kurt William
Roeloffs, Junior (as chairman of such committee) and Mr. Brian David
Chinappi and one INED, Mr. Jack Richard Rodman. The role of the
Disclosures Committee is to review matters relating to the disclosure of
information to the Unitholders and public announcements or circulars. The
Disclosures Committee also works with the management team to ensure
the disclosure of information is accurate, complete and made in a timely
manner.

The Disclosures Committee's responsibilities include:

(@) reviewing and recommending to the Board corporate disclosure issues
and announcements, financial reporting, connected party transactions,
and potential areas of conflicts of interest;

(b) overseeing compliance with applicable legal requirements and the
continuity, accuracy, clarity, completeness and currency of information
disseminated by or on behalf of RREEF CCT to the public and
applicable regulatory agencies;

(c) reviewing and approving all material non-public information and all
public regulatory filings on behalf of RREEF CCT prior to such
information being disseminated to the public or filed with applicable
regulatory agencies, as applicable; and

(d) reviewing periodic and current reports, proxy statements, information
statements, registration statements and any other information filed
with regulatory bodies.

The Disclosures Committee held four regular meetings in 2008 and had
reviewed the final results for the period ended 31 December 2007, interim
results for the period ended 30 June 2008 and other corporate disclosure
related matters of RREEF CCT. The attendance rate of these meetings was
100 per cent.
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Management and Investment Committee

The Management and Investment Committee was appointed by the Board.
The Management and Investment Committee consists of the Executive
Director and the Fund Manager, Mr. Paul Thomas Keogh, and four Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Kurt William Roeloffs, Junior (as the
chairman of such committee), Mr. Michael Eugene Buquoi, Mr. Brian David
Chinappi and Mr. Niel Thassim. The role of the Management and
Investment Committee is to assist the management team in the direction,
implementation and monitoring of the Manager’s plans and strategies.

The Management and Investment Committee's responsibilities also
include:

(@) reviewing and recommending investment transactions to the Board;
(b) monitoring service levels with all external service providers; and
(c) monitoring all treasury related transactions.

During the Reporting Period, five meetings were held with 80 per cent
attendance rate.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was appointed by the Board and consists of
two Non-executive Directors, Mr. Kurt William Roeloffs, Junior (as
chairman of such committee) and Mr. Niel Thassim as well as one INED
Mr. Mark Henry Ford. The role of the Remuneration Committee is to
oversee all aspects of Directors’ and executives' remuneration and
performance evaluation.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities also include reviewing and
recommending to the Board, among other things:

(@) remuneration strategy, including the design of short and long-term
employee incentive schemes;

(b) Directors’, executives' and employees’ remuneration, having regard to
performance;

(c) aggregate annual short and long-term incentive pools; and

(d) Directors’ and executives’ succession plans.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting was held with 100 per cent
attendance. The Remuneration Committee had also recommended to the

Board the appointment of Mr So Tak Young as a Non-executive Director of
the Manager effective from 31 July 2008.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

During the Reporting Period, fees paid and payable to the auditors of RREEF
CCT for audit and audit related services and for non-audit related services
relating to tax advisory amounted to HK$1,890,000 and HK$970,000
respectively (of which HK$250,000 and HK$945,000 in respect of audit and
its related services as well as non-audit related services respectively, were
accounted for as professional costs in connection with the investigation and
related work in the financial statements).

Internal Controls

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee is responsible to the Board for
ensuring the existence and implementation of an effective system of
internal controls.

During the year, the Deutsche Bank Group Internal Audit Division, which is
independent of the Manager, conducted an internal audit so that all
material controls in financial, operational, compliance and risk management
functions were in place and functioning effectively. In addition to that,
PricewaterhouseCoopers was engaged to review the internal control
systems and operating environment of the RREEF CCT.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control systems
through the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee during the Reporting
Period.

Management of Business Risk

The Board meets quarterly or more, if necessary and reviews the financial
performance of the Manager and RREEF CCT against a previously
approved budget. The Board also reviews any risks to the assets of RREEF
CCT, examines liability management and acts upon any comments from
the auditors of RREEF CCT.

The Manager has designed a system of risk oversight, management and
internal control to identify, assess, monitor and manage risk, and to enable
the Manager to keep the Unitholders informed of material changes in
RREEF CCT's risk profile. This system includes the establishment of the
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee.

The Manager has also appointed experienced and well qualified
management to handle the day to day operations of the Manager and
RREEF CCT. In assessing business risk, the Board considers the economic
environment and risks within the property industry. It reviews management
reports and feasibility studies on individual projects prior to approving major
transactions.
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The Manager has instituted the following procedures to deal with conflicts
of interest issues:

(a)

The INEDs act independently for the interests of the Unitholders.
Furthermore, the management structure of the Manager includes the
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee and the Disclosures
Committee which identify and address any potential conflicts of
interest.

All connected party transactions are managed in accordance with the
procedures set out in the compliance manual.

Any Director with a material interest in a transaction or arrangement is

required to declare his interest to the Board at the earliest meeting of

the Board at which the question of entering into the contract, business

or arrangement is to be discussed.

A Director shall not vote (or be counted in the quorum at a meeting) in
relation to any resolution concerning any contract or arrangement in
which he, to his knowledge, is materially interested. This prohibition
shall not apply and a Director may vote and be counted in the quorum
in relation to any resolution concerning any one or more of the
following matters:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

granting him any guarantee, indemnity or security in respect of
any debt or obligation incurred by him at the request of or for the
benefit of the Manager (in its own capacity and not in its capacity
as manager of RREEF CCT) or any of its subsidiaries;

granting a third party any guarantee, indemnity or security in
respect of any debt or obligation of the Manager (in its own
capacity and not in its capacity as manager of RREEF CCT) or any
of its subsidiaries for which the Director has assumed
responsibility in whole or in part and whether alone or jointly
under a guarantee or indemnity or by the giving of security;

any contract concerning the Manager (in its own capacity and not
in its capacity as Manager of RREEF CCT) or any of its
subsidiaries and any other company (not being a company in
which the Director beneficially owns five per cent or more) in
which the Director is interested directly or indirectly as an officer,
employee or shareholder;
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(iv) any contract concerning the adoption, modification or operation of
a pension fund or retirement, death or disability benefits scheme
which relates both to Directors and employees of the Manager or
of any of its subsidiaries and does not provide in respect of any
Director as such any privilege or advantage not accorded to the
employees to which the fund or scheme relates;

(v) any contract for the benefit of employees of the Manager or of
any of its subsidiaries under which the Director benefits in a
similar manner to the employees and which does not accord to
any Director as such any privilege or advantage not accorded to
the employees to whom the contract relates; and

(vi) any contract for the purchase or maintenance for any Director or
Directors of insurance against any liability.

No Director was materially interested in any contract of significance during
or at the end of the Reporting Period.

RREEF Asia Pacific — Client Investment Allocation Policy

In order to maximise RREEF CCT's growth opportunities, the Manager
exclusively engages the acquisition resources within RREEF to identify and
assist in executing suitable acquisition opportunities for RREEF CCT.
RREEF is active in the property investment and fund management
businesses globally including the Asia Pacific region. RREEF established
network and experience will provide the Manager with strong support for
its future acquisition activities.

As a manager of multiple products for multiple clients, RREEF allocates
property acquisition opportunities to its clients and managed funds in
accordance with its Client Investment Allocation Policy which is based on a
transparent rotation system to ensure that all RREEF clients are treated in a
consistent and equitable manner. The rotation system means that in the
event of multiple clients or managed funds having similar investment
strategy, a client or managed fund that most recently invested in a
transaction that was allocated to it will be moved to the bottom of the list
and will have to wait until all clients or managed funds before it in the list
are allocated property acquisition opportunities before it is allocated another
property acquisition opportunity.

In exchange for access to RREEF's acquisition resources, RREEF CCT shall
refer any property acquisition opportunities which it becomes aware of to
RREEF. Such acquisition opportunities may or may not be allocated back to
RREEF CCT in accordance with the said allocation policy.
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The Board, including INEDs, ensures that RREEF CCT is treated in a
consistent and equitable manner under the rotation system. The Manager
will inform the Unitholders if future changes to the said Client Investment
Allocation Policy will materially and adversely affect the interests of the
Unitholders.

General Meetings

RREEF CCT will in each year hold a general meeting as its annual general
meeting in addition to any other meetings in that year. The Trustee or the
Manager may at any time convene a meeting of the Unitholders. Pursuant
to the Trust Deed, the Manager shall also convene a meeting if requested
in writing by not less than two Unitholders registered as together holding
not less than ten per cent of the issued and outstanding Units for the time
being. At least 14 days’ notice of the meeting will be given to the
Unitholders, except that 21 days’ notice will be given to the Unitholders
where a special resolution is proposed for consideration at such meeting,
and the notice will specify the date, time and place of the meeting and the
terms of any resolutions to be proposed thereat.

Two or more Unitholders present in person or by proxy registered as
holding together not less than ten per cent of the Units for the time being
in issue and outstanding will form a quorum for the transaction of all
business, except for the purpose of passing a special resolution of the
Unitholders. The quorum for passing a special resolution of the Unitholders
will be two or more Unitholders present in person or by proxy registered as
holding together not less than 25 per cent of the Units for the time being in
issue and outstanding.

Matters to be Decided by Unitholders by Special
Resolution

Pursuant to the Trust Deed, decisions with respect to certain matters
require specific prior approval of Unitholders by way of special resolution.
Such matters include among other things, removal of the Trustee and the
auditors of RREEF CCT.
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Reporting and Transparency

RREEF CCT prepares its financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, with a financial year-end of 31
December and a financial half-year of 30 June for each calendar year. In
accordance with the REIT Code, the annual reports and accounts for RREEF
CCT are published and sent to Unitholders no later than four months
following each financial year-end and the interim reports and accounts no
later than two months following each financial half-year end.

As required by the REIT Code, the Manager will ensure that public
announcements of material information and developments with respect to
RREEF CCT will be made on a timely basis in order to keep the Unitholders
apprised of the position of RREEF CCT.

New Units Issued

To minimise the possible material dilution of holding of the Unitholders, any
further issue of the Units will need to comply with the pre-emption
provisions contained in the REIT Code. Such provisions require that further
issue of the Units be first offered on a pro rata pre-emptive basis to existing
Unitholders except that Units may be issued free of such pre-emption
rights up to an aggregate maximum in any financial year of 20 per cent of
the number of Units in issue at the end of the previous financial year and
free of the pre-emption rights in other circumstances provided that the
approval of the Unitholders by way of an ordinary resolution is obtained.

During the Reporting Period, no new Units were issued.

Repurchase, Sale or Redemption of Units

There were 20,239,000 Units repurchased on the SEHK during the
Reporting Period which were cancelled by 31 December 2008.
Consequently, the total number of Units in issue was 464,161,000 as at 31
December 2008.

Public Float

Based on publicly available information and to the best knowledge of the
Manager, more than 25 per cent of the issued Units of RREEF CCT were
held in public hands as at 31 December 2008.

Review of Annual Report

The annual report of RREEF CCT for the Reporting Period was reviewed by
the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee and the Disclosures Committee
of the Manager in accordance with their respective terms of reference.
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Interests of and Dealings in the Units by Directors, the
Manager or the Significant Holders

To monitor and supervise any dealings of the Units, the Manager has
adopted a Dealings Code containing rules on dealings by the Directors and
the Manager on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out
in the Model Code pursuant to the Listing Rules Appendix 10. Pursuant to
this code, any Director or the Manager wishing to deal in the Units must
first have regard to provisions analogous to those set out in Part XIII and
XIV of the SFO with respect to insider dealing and market misconduct. In
addition, a Director must not make any unauthorised disclosure of
confidential information or make any use of such information for the
advantage of himself or others.

Directors who are aware of or privy to any negotiations or agreements
related to intended acquisitions or disposals which are significant
transactions or any price-sensitive information must refrain from dealing in
the Units as soon as they become aware of them or privy to them until
proper disclosure of the information in accordance with the REIT Code and
any applicable Listing Rules. Directors who are privy to relevant
negotiations or agreements or any price-sensitive information should
caution those Directors who are not so privy that there may be unpublished
price-sensitive information and that they must not deal in RREEF CCT's
Units for a similar period.

Similarly, where the Manager is in possession of any unpublished price-
sensitive information, it must refrain from dealing in the Units as soon as it
becomes aware of them or privy to them until proper disclosure of the
information in accordance with the REIT Code and any applicable Listing
Rules.

During the period commencing one month immediately preceding the
earlier of:

(a) the date of the meeting of the Board for the approval of RREEF CCT's
results for any financial year, half-year, quarter or any other interim
period; and

(b) the deadline for RREEF CCT to publish an announcement of its results

for any financial year, half-year, quarter or any other interim period,

and ending on the date of the results announcement (the “Black Out
Period”), a Director must not deal in any Units unless the circumstances

are exceptional, for example, where a pressing financial commitment has to

be met as described in the immediately following paragraph. In any event,
he must notify the Chairman of the Board or in his absence, the Fund
Manager of his intention to deal in the Units, and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before any dealing.
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In each case, (i) a response must be given by the Manager's representative
within five business days to the Director who makes a request for
clearance to deal; and (ii) the clearance to deal is only valid for a maximum
of five business days from receipt of such clearance.

Effective from 1 April 2009, the Black Out Period will also be extended to
cover a period of 60 days and 30 days immediately preceding the
publication date of the annual results and the half-year results respectively,
or if shorter, the period from the end of the relevant financial year/half-year
period to the publication date of the results.

If a Director proposes to sell or otherwise dispose of the Units under
exceptional circumstances where the sale or disposal is otherwise
prohibited under the Dealings Code, the Director must satisfy the Chairman
of the Board or the designated Director that the circumstances are
exceptional and the proposed sale or disposal is the only reasonable course
of action to the Director before the Director can sell or dispose of the Units.
The Manager shall give written notice of such sale or disposal to the
Trustee as soon as practicable stating why it considered the circumstances
to be exceptional. RREEF CCT shall publish an announcement in the
newspapers immediately after any such sale or disposal and state that the
Chairman of the Board or the designated Director is satisfied that there
were exceptional circumstances for such sale or disposal of the Units by
the Director. An example of the type of circumstances which may be
considered exceptional for such purposes would be a pressing financial
commitment on the part of the Director that cannot otherwise be satisfied.

The Manager is subject to the same dealing requirements as the Directors.
Such dealing requirements may also be extended to senior executives,
officers and other employees of the Manager as the Board may determine.
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The Manager has adopted procedures for monitoring the disclosure of
interests by the Directors, the Fund Manager and the Manager. The
provisions of Part XV of the SFO shall be deemed to apply to the Manager,
the Directors, the Fund Manager, and each Unitholder and all persons
claiming through or under them.

Under the Trust Deed and by virtue of the deemed application of Part XV of
the SFO, Unitholders with a holding of five per cent or more of the Units in
issue will have a notifiable interest and are required to notify the SEHK and
the Manager of their holdings in RREEF CCT.

The Manager keeps a register for these purposes and it records in the
register, against a person’s name, the particulars provided pursuant to the
notification and the date of entry of such record. The said register is
available for inspection by the Trustee and any Unitholder at any time during
business hours upon reasonable notice to the Manager.

RREEF CCT has made specific enquiry of all Directors, and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set
out in the Dealings Code throughout the Reporting Period.
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Connected Party
Transactions

BAEALRS

Connected Party Transactions with the Trustee’s
Connected Persons and Manager’s Connected Persons

The following tables set forth information on the connected party
transactions (as defined under the REIT Code), if any, between RREEF CCT
and the Trustee (and its Directors, senior executives, officers, controlling
entities, holding companies, subsidiaries and associated companies) and
the HSBC Group?' (collectively, the “Trustee’s Connected Persons”) and;
the connected party transactions between RREEF CCT and the Manager

Group? (the “Manager’s Connected Persons”) during the Reporting Period.

Ordinary Banking and Financial Services*
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HESEABEATIREEABEAL
HNEEALTRS

TERUIINBESRE  FEFNEESBTRA
(REEE  BRITBAL  BABE - 2HE
i ERAR - WEARRMEAR) RELEE
(GBAIZRABEAL)) 2T OEER
EESTAMENMEALRS WB) - RER
BHEESRERARE? ((FEAMEALDZ
FETOMEALIBER -

—RBTREBIREE 2

Relationship

with RREEF CCT
Name of Connected Person HEERME
BEALERE HEmWBR

The Hongkong and Shanghai Trustee's Connected

Banking Corporation Limited Persons
B8 DSESIRITERAR XEABEAL

Income/(Expense) for
the Reporting Period
Nature of Connected REHIBMBA ~ ()

Party Transaction HK$°000
FEXZHMEE FER
Interest income

received/receivable 3,164

B A B MRA

The Manager confirms that during the Reporting Period, there was no
ordinary banking and financial services transactions entered into between
RREEF CCT and the Manager Group.

Lease Transactions

Both the Manager and Trustee confirm that during the Reporting Period,
there was no lease transaction entered into between RREEF CCT and the
Manager Group or the HSBC Group.

HSBC Group refers to The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and its
subsidiaries and, unless otherwise expressly stated herein, excludes the Trustee and its
proprietary subsidiaries (being the subsidiaries of the Trustee but excluding those subsidiaries
formed in its capacity as the Trustee of RREEF CCT).

Manager Group refers to the Manager and its Directors, senior executives, officers, controlling
entities, holding company, subsidiaries and associated companies including Deutsche Bank AG
and its subsidiaries.

Ordinary banking and financial services include bank deposits and interest earned therefrom.
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Corporate Finance Transactions

Both the Manager and Trustee confirm that during the Reporting Period,

there was no corporate finance transaction entered into between RREEF

CCT and the Manager Group or the HSBC Group, except for the following.

EEBERS
EEARZFAZELERANREDRE - &5
FPHEESREE ASEIES KB EHTE
AIRRBMERS M TSR

Name of Connected Person

BMEALER

Deutsche Securities Asia Limited
EEEBFLFTMNER AR

Relationship
with RREEF CCT

of the Manager
B A MBS AR

PLRE=NAN

HEEFHEESHNRAR

Associated company

Brokerage Fee

Charged for the

Reporting Period

wmEHR

Nature of Connected L ER

Party Transaction HK$°000

BEXSHME FHET
Brokerage Commission

Riems 194

I —
BEIFATESER - LA ERER ST —

Each INED confirms that the above corporate finance transactions have

complied with the following general conditions on an on-going basis:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the connected party transactions are carried out at arm's length, on
normal commercial terms and in the interests of the Unitholders as a
whole;

the Manager has implemented internal controls and compliance
procedures to ensure that the connected party tranactions are
monitored and undertaken on terms in compliance with the REIT
Code;

the INEDs are satisfied with the Manager's internal controls and
compliance procedures, such as implementing “Chinese Walls"”, to
ensure that the operations of the Manager is independent of the other
banking, financial services and other business functions and operations
of Deutsche Bank AG and its subsidiaries; and

provisions are incorporated in the Trust Deed which require the Trustee
to take actions or commence proceedings on behalf of RREEF CCT, as
necessary (including against the Manager or its Connected Persons as
defined in Rule 8.1 of the REIT Code published by SFC in relation to
any transactions or agreement entered into for and on behalf of RREEF
CCT with such persons).
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*

During the Reporting Period, no new transactions had been entered into NIBEHRR - BHEEREAEEE (BXE
between Mr. Tin Lik and his related group (“Tin's Group”) and RREEF CCT. B) mEEEMERESWREMMETRS  BIR
EESBEUFEEANEENZ  BEEABRKLET
MBS ERMERS EHEEHIEAMEL -
S REEZBEB KR EZSEDE

To protect the interest of Unitholders as a whole, the Manager terminated
the two leases as stated below which were in place at the time of listing of
RREEF CCT and has been engaging legal advisors to assist in repossessing
the premises.

Rental Deposits
Received as at
31 December 2008
Income for the R-BENF
Reporting Period +=A=+—H
Relationship with Nature of HEHBHBA B sRe
Name of Tin’s Group Mr. Tin Lik’ Transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
HEKEEEHB B2 1 S EMRR THHHE TET TET
Beijing Bestride Estate This company
Development Co. Ltd. is an affiliate of Leasing 2,607 —
I REREME Mr. Tin Lik HE
FEARAA ZAARE DL
HEEEE AT
Beijing Bestride Gateway This company
Leisure Club Co. Ltd is an affiliate of Leasing 5,970 —
b ERR AR (Z BIRR R Mr. Tin Lik HE
BLLBER AT ZARRENTE
HOEEEE A L
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Note Bt
T Mr. Tin Lik was a Connected Person of RREEF CCT for the purposes of the REIT Code until 18 T BEHERAERESTANE  BEE-TTN\F-_A+/\BHEI%
February 2008. Based on the notification received by the Manager on the deemed application of EREEFMEELSNBEAL - RIEBEEABRES REEEBHIZEXV
Part XV of the SFC, Mr. Tin Lik was holding 45,376,000 Units of RREEF CCT representing 9.78 R4S B R PR E | ROB AN - B SR 45,376,000E8 B B HE
per cent of total outstanding Units issued as at 31 December 2008. ESESEN HER-TTN\E+_A=+—BHEZTHARBEEE

SEMABENTS BN -
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Connected Party Transactions
BEALRS

Confirmation by the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Manager

Save as disclosed above with respect to the two leases of Tin's Group, the
INEDs of the Manager confirm that they have reviewed all relevant
connected party transactions during the Reporting Period and they are
satisfied that those transactions have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of RREEF CCT;

(i) on normal commercial terms (to the extent that there are comparable
transactions) or, where there are not sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to RREEF CCT than terms available to or
from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements and the Manager's
internal procedures governing them, if any, on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Unitholders of RREEF CCT as a
whole.

Confirmation by the Auditors of RREEF CCT

Pursuant to the waivers from strict compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 8 of the REIT Code, the Manager has engaged the auditors
of RREEF CCT to perform certain factual findings procedures in respect of
connected party transactions on the ordinary banking and financial services,
leasing transactions and corporate finance transactions, where applicable,
for the Reporting Period in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on
Related Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures
Regarding Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The auditors have performed these procedures and reported to the Board
their factual findings.
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Interests of Connected
Persons in Units

FAEATRESENVNESR

Interests of Connected Persons in Units BEATRESENNESR

The REIT Code requires disclosure in the annual report holdings of each EHEREEFTESTIRTERESCHSHE
Connected Person (as defined under the REIT Code) to the scheme. The At (BEEREHEREETESTE]) - ARE
provisions of Part XV of the SFO are also deemed by the Trust Deed WA BRI ER - BBEANEEEHEESH
constituting RREEF CCT to apply to the Manager, the Directors and the fE5E4 - BH R EAE GBI EXVEBRIIE S IMEAR
Fund Manager of the Manager and to persons interested in or having a BERREEA BEEANESRESLE - U
short position in the Units of RREEF CCT. EREEFMHEESES EMNEEERSARN

AL
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As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions in Units of the
Manager, the Directors and the Fund Manager as recorded in the Register
of Interests required to be kept by the Manager under Schedule 3 of the
Trust Deed were as follows:

F_gj)\iﬂ— A=+—B  REBAREE

MR =FFENER ST - &8
/\ CBEERESKENES B MSER AR
W

Notes

' Based on 464,161,000 Units in issue as at 31 December 2008.

2 Based on 466,191,000 Units in issue as at 30 June 2008.

3 Mr. Brian David Chinappi was reported to be beneficially interested in 500,000 Units as at 31
December 2008.

4 Mr. Jack Richard Rodman was reported to be beneficially interested in 75,000 Units as at 31
December 2008.

5 As at 31 December 2008, the long position of 900,000 Units was held by Pangaeia Investments
Limited which is wholly owned by Mr. Kurt William Roeloffs Junior and his wife.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, the Manager, the
Directors and the Fund Manager had no other interests in the Units of
RREEF CCT. Please refer to the tables on the following page and the notes
thereto in relation to other Connected Persons interests.

As at 31 December 2008 As at 30 June 2008
R-BB\F+=-A=+—8 R-BBNAFXA=1+H P =
Number of Percentage Number of Percentage change in
Units held of unitholdings * Units held of unitholdings 2 interest
Name of Director FisES FisESBEN FisES FsEEEN B
BERAR BU#AE B! BU#AE BHALE? B
Mr Brian David CHINAPPI®
Long Position
Brian David CHINAPPI %t 43 500,000 0.1 350,000 0.08 +0.03
wa
Mr Jack Richard RODMAN#
Long Position
Jack Richard RODMAN %4 4 75,000 0.02 40,000 0.01 +0.01
TR
Mr Kurt William ROELOFFS Junior®
Long Position
Kurt William ROELOFFS Junior 5t4° 900,000 0.19 600,000 0.13 +0.06
HA

MT.&
BER—FTFTN\F+-A=1+—BEHTELENI464,161,000fEt
H o

2 @?Jiﬁé:??)\ﬁ/\ﬂ =+ BB TE S ¥11466,191,0001EH °

3 OBHE KT 7/\¢+ A=-+—8 ' Brian David Chinappi 54
7500,0001E £ £

4 BEE ﬂ,?g}\iqL ﬂ + B + Jack Richard Rodman 5E4

\i‘# ﬂ + H 900,000 S BAMFAA
Pangaeia Investments Limited#% : Pangaeia Investments Limited
ThEKurt William Roeloffs Juniorse £ R EEZEF2EHA ©

F?J:Y??EZ EENN RBBNF+_A=+—
EEA - %%&Eﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ% REBEME

%iﬁﬁ%é SRR ke - AREMLE

ALFFsHER - B2 T EER AN -
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As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions in Units of every WA -_ZTFENE+_-_HA=+—H ' &Z2EMFFA2
person holding five per cent or more interest in the Units of RREEF CCT % REEENEESNESSNTREES Y
(other than the Manager, the Directors and the Fund Manager of the Tl AR S A+ (G LSRR EEA

= 7 Y N g >

Manager as stated above) as recorded in the Register were as follows: . s o N
EEANERRESEIRGIN NES BN ATRE

@mMRBAT ¢
Significant Unitholders A_s z!t_:_-zl DeceTber_ 2008 A_sat _30 Jur\le 20_08
(as Defined by the REIT Code) R=2F/\Ft-A=1—H R=2F/\FXA=1H Percentage
FEESBENEEA Number of Percentage Number of Percentage Change in
(ERREHEREETESH) Units Held of Unitholdings * Units Held of Unitholdings 2 Interest
Name FFES MFELEN FiES FBELEN B
£ BNHE R BNEE Aob? Aok
Daniel Saul OCH @
Long Position 119,043,500 25.65 110,006,000 23.60 +2.05
e
Short Position 119,043,500 25.65 — — +25.65
/9=
Och-Ziff Capital Management
Group LLC 3
Long Position 119,043,500 25.65 110,006,000 23.60 +2.05
e
Short Position 119,043,500 25.65 — — +25.65
/9=
OZ Management L.P. ¢
Long Position 119,043,500 25.65 110,006,000 23.60 +2.05
e
Short Position 119,043,500 25.65 — — +25.65
/9=
OZ Asia Master Fund, Ltd.*
Long Position 69,426,800 14.96 65,983,800 14.15 +0.81
e
Short Position 69,426,800 14.96 — — +14.96
/9=
Government of Singapore Investment
Corporation Pte Ltd ®
Long Position 48,054,000 10.35 50,604,000 10.85 -0.5
IR BT EBR AR
e

Please refer to page 99 for the notes. B2M9BE B M -
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Other Unitholders Holding

Five Per Cent or More Interests
(Not Being Connected Persons)
BEEI 2R LEREK
HESENHEEA
(FEEEEAL)

Name

£
China Real Estate Opportunities
Limited ©
Long Position
e
TIN Lik 7
Long Position
HA
e

OZ Master Fund, Ltd®
Long Position
e
Short Position
9=
Prudential Plc °

Long Position
R

The Real Return Group Limited '©
Long Position
e

Veritas Asset Management (UK)
Limited 1°
Long Position
e

Please refer to page 99 for the notes.

As at 31 December 2008
R-ZBENE+=-A=1+—H

As at 30 June 2008
R-ZENEXA=1H

Number of Percentage
Units Held of Unitholdings *
FiRES FRESLEN
BUHE EpilA
152,514,500 32.86
45,376,000 9.78
43,698,700 9.41
43,698,700 9.41
34,547,000 7.44
32,724,000 7.05
32,724,000 7.05

Number of Percentage
Units Held of Unitholdings 2
FRES FRESLEN

EfgHE Bakk?
45,376,000 9.73
38,781,000 8.32
32,635,000 7.00

BRAMERF2MEIA -

Percentage
Change in
Interest
EREH
Ao

+32.86

+0.05

+1.09

+9.41

+0.44

+7.05

+7.05
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Notes to the tables on page 97 and 98.

' Based on 464,161,000 Units in issue as at 31 December 2008.

2 Based on 466,191,000 Units in issue as at 30 June 2008.

¢ As at 31 December 2008, OZ Management L.P. held a long position of 119,043,500 Units and a
short position of 119,043,500 Units through its wholly owned subsidiaries OZ Asia Master Fund,
Ltd., OZ Master Fund, Ltd., Gordel Holdings Ltd., GPC LVII LLC, Goldman Sachs & Co. Profit
Sharing Master Trust, OZ Global Special Investments Master Fund, L.P. and OZ Select Master
Fund, Ltd.. OZ Management L.P. was wholly owned by Och-Ziff Holding Corporation which was a
wholly owned subsidiary of Och-Ziff Capital Management Group LLC. Mr Daniel Saul OCH owned
79.10 per cent of Och-Ziff Capital Management Group LLC. The long position of 119,043,500
Units and the short position of 119,043,500 Units held by OZ Management L.P. in its capacity as
investment manager represented the same parcel of Units in which Mr Daniel Saul OCH, Och-Ziff
Capital Management Group LLC and Och-Ziff Holding Corporation were deemed to be interested
in by virtue of the SFO.

4 As at 31 December 2008, OZ Asia Master Fund, Ltd. was reported to be beneficially interested in
the long position of 69,426,800 Units and the short position of 69,426,800 Units.

5 As at 31 December 2008, the long position of 48,054,000 Units was held by Government of
Singapore Investment Corporation Pte Ltd in its capacity as investment manager.

5 As at 31 December 2008, China Real Estate Opportunities Limited was reported to be beneficially
interested in a total of 152,514,500 Units including the 119,043,500 units (representing 25.65%
of the total issued Units of RREEF CCT as at 31 December 2008) it held through physically settled
unlisted derivatives.

7 As at 31 December 2008, Mr TIN Lik was reported to be beneficially interested in 45,376,000
Units.

8 OZ Master Fund, Ltd. was reported to be beneficially interested in the long position of 43,698,700
Units and the short position of 43,698,700 Units as at 31 December 2008.

9 Prudential Plc was controlling the entire issued share capital of Prudential Holdings Ltd which in
turn was holding 100 per cent interest in Prudential Corporation Holdings Ltd. Prudential Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Ltd was a wholly owned subsidiary of Prudential Corporation Holdings
Ltd. The long position of 34,547,000 Units as at 31 December 2008 held by Prudential Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Ltd represented the same parcel of Units in which Prudential Plc,
Prudential Holdings Ltd, Prudential Corporation Holdings Ltd were deemed to be interested in by
virtue of the SFO.

s

The Real Return Group Limited was controlling the entire issued share capital of Veritas Asset
Management (UK) Limited. The long position of 32,724,000 Units as at 31 December 2008 held
by Veritas Asset Management (UK) Limited in its capacity as investment manager represented
the same parcel of Units in which The Real Return Group Limited was deemed to be interested in
by virtue of the SFO.

S

9

97 % 98B [BlR Z MI5E °

RER—ZTEN\F+_A=1—HEBRTELE
R Z\FRAZHHBE#ITES B11466,191,0001H
R=ZTZT)/\F+=A=+—0 ' OZ Management L.P. ;& BE 2 &K}
& AR0Z Asia Master Fund, Ltd. + OZ Master Fund, Ltd. -~ Gordel
Holdings Ltd. * GPC LVII LLC * Goldman Sachs & Co. Profit Sharing
Master Trust * OZ Global Special Investments Master Fund, L.P. %
0Z Select Master Fund, Ltd. #7%4119,043, 500185 & Bz 2 4T A &
119,043,5001EE & B 242 - OZ Management L.P.fOch-Ziff
Holding Corporation®&#% * ifiOch-Ziff Holding Corporation &
Och-Ziff Capital Management Group LLCHI2 & i @A &) ° Daniel
Saul OCHZ%t 4474 Och-Ziff Capital Management Group LLC B9 2
B —EHEE o BRIBEHFREEG - HOZ Management L.P.
RIREBEBEASHAFR119,043,500EELEMZIFAR
119,043,500 8% B 2 %A #§Daniel Saul OCHYEAE + Och-Ziff
Capital Management Group LLC & Och-Ziff Holding Corporationi§
BRESEENR—HES B -

BHE  R=ZZT)N\EFE+=-F=+—H  0Z Asia Master Fund, Ltd.
#069,426,8001HE S B 2 1A 169,426 800 HE L B 2 KB WA
Bkl

WZZENF+=A=+—H - 48,054,000{EE & BfL 2 47 A T
BRI ERRAFNEEEEATGEE

BHE R=FT/\F+=-A=+—8 ' China Real Estate Opportunities
LimitediA & #£152,514, 500 EE S B A B st - BELEBAEYR
WEE ETA T AR AE)119,043, 500HE S B (FEEFHEREESHN =
22 \F+-A=+—ANBEBTES EE#25.65%) °

BilE - R-ETN\F+-A=1—H  BA5%E%E45376,000(EE

22 N\FE+=-F=+—H ' 0Z Master Fund, Ltd.’¢
43,698,700 {AE & B2 472 243,698 700[AE L B 2 AR HAE
iR -

Prudential Plc#%Prudential Holdings Ltd2#BE S /TARA «
Prudential Holdings Ltd#§% Prudential Corporation Holdings Ltd &
52— B HIHEZS  Prudential Asset Management (Hong Kong) Ltd
/A Prudential Corporation Holdings Ltd¥)2 &M B AR) - BIEEZH &
HEED - R=ZZTN\F+=-A=+—H ' fPrudential Asset
Management (Hong Kong) LtdFi#%#734,547,000{8 & & 81 2 i &
#§Prudential Plc * Prudential Holdings Ltd * Prudential Corporation
Holdings Ltd#48 A Az AR —HtES B «

The Real Return Group Limited#Z ll\Veritas Asset Management (UK)
Limited 2 ZPE BT - IRIBES RAKKEN - R=TT/\F+=
B=+—8 ' #Veritas Asset Management (UK) Limited A& & &
B A S5 FT#5EN32,724,0008E £ B 2 472 #The Real Return
Group Limited#4% A IR —HES BT -
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Upon making reasonable enquiry and according to information available to
the Manager, the following Connected Person of RREEF CCT, held Units of
RREEF CCT set out below as at 31 December 2008:

WEHABERREBIBZERAMERR B
FPHEESH TIEEALTR_ZZNF+_
=+ —BAREMEERHERSNES BN

As at 31 December 2008
R=BB/\F+=-A=+-—H
Number of Percentage
Units held of unitholdings*
Name of Connected Person FiES FiES
BEATER BUHA BuFak’
Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft®
Long Position 2,219,000 0.48
55

Notes
" Based on 464,161,000 Units in issue as at 31 December 2008.

2 Based on 466,191,000 Units in issue as at 30 June 2008.

3 Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft (“DB-AG") was controlling the entire issued share capital of
Deutsche Asia Pacific Holdings Pte Ltd which in turn was holding 100 per cent interest in the
Manager. As at 31 December 2008, DB-AG held 2,219,000 Units of which 7,544 Units were held
as beneficial owner and 2,211,456 Units were security interest.

Save as disclosed above, the Manager is not aware of any Connected
Persons of RREEF CCT holding any Units as at 31 December 2008.

As at 30 June 2008
RZBENFARA=ZTAH

Percentage

Number of Percentage change in
Units held of unitholdings? interest
FisEs FisESEN [ 53 1)
BUHA BaAkk? B

2,219,000 0.48 =

2 N\F+=A=+—BBE#TELENI464,161,000fEt

o
2 REBR-TFTN\FRA=THEBTELH(466,191,000/85H -
3 Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft ([DB-AG)J) {2 #lDeutsche Asia
Pacific Holdings Pte Ltd#) 2 #8E2 B4 TR - ifiDeutsche Asia Pacific

Holdings Pte LidiF B BIEAB D 2 —BR#ED - R=TT/\F+=
H=+—H ' DB-AG 52,219,000/ & & L7, 5A4EE S
BAEARSEEARA - 2,211,456(EE S B I{EARRER
#E .

B EXFIREES  EBALTAEEEEHE
EeNEMBEALTR_ZETNF+_A=1+—
BisH ERESEA -
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Trustee’s Report

ZFEABRE

We hereby confirm that, in our opinion, the Manager of RREEF China
Commercial Trust has, in all material respects, managed RREEF China
Commercial Trust in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed
dated 28 May 2007, for the financial year ended 31 December 2008.

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
(in its capacity as Trustee of RREEF China Commercial Trust)

Hong Kong, 19 March 2009

BEERIER  BERARNEBE_ZTN\F =
HA=1T—HLLHMEREE EETREREFHER
AERESNEEAEMERRIEHEZN -
ZRLFRAA - T N\BFTZNEERONGE
BEETRBEFSMEREEEED -

ELRIBETEIRS GEMN BRAE
(UEEHEIEFEHERE SRS ZTEAL
217)

&% “PEAF=ATAA
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B R RENRE

Annual Report 2008

ZBTN\FFH

RINA

Independent auditor’s report to the Unitholders of
RREEF China Commercial Trust

(a Hong Kong collective investment scheme authorised under section 104 of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong))

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of RREEF China
Commercial Trust (“RREEF CCT") and its subsidiaries, (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 105 to 146, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in net assets
attributable to Unitholders, the distribution statement and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Manager’s responsibility

The Manager of RREEF CCT is responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the relevant provisions
of the trust deed dated 28 May 2007 (the “Trust Deed”) and the relevant
disclosure requirements set out in Appendix C of the Code on Real Estate
Investment Trusts issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong (the “REIT Code"). This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Appendix C of the REIT Code, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BEETERERHERESRES
WESBENFEANB L XBERE
(RIBEB B L BIE 671 E 775 REIENKBIZE 10415
SRR BB LB A E)

EEEEXF105BEFE146EFENE =P BEIE
(XEHERACHES ((EERHMEES]) RH
MEBAR (REIEEE]) OReMsHRE - &P
BRER-_ZETZNF+_A=T—BNGEEESR
fEX HE_ZZN\F+-_A=+—ALFEH
RelmE  ESBURBEARGGRAEEETE
BEER DRRRGEERERERAREEZSE
BRI R H Ath i AR R o

EEANEE
BERMEESHEBAAEBEREE S
ARBHOBEBNERELR R -BELER
A=+ NBEHTIMEERG (EER4A)) 0ER
X RESBES RS SHERESSRANE
AR A E IR S TR ([EiERES TAI)) HiERC
BN EEREATREREEMA L YR
EEABBRE - RSEARER Bk
BERES T AR TA AL IIREA BEREIE
HOPORBESIR + LAEARA B IS SRR T IFIE B BREE
NS ETMERNE AL R  RERRAEE
MBEHEE « RIREREL A BB -

BBETNEE
BENETARETSNBERURSEAMBR
KERER - BEREFHEESTHIHRCHA
E - EnEBRESBUREARE « RILZ -
BENRETAMAELMAR - BEHETHAR
ENNBHEMETALRERRERE -

EEERBEEES I ASRMGNTERER
ETEZ RSEUEREFETREBER
0 WREAIFMNTER NEEREXTHEEH
BiR D EE AR -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B SR B R R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Manager of RREEF
CCT, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the disposition of the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2008 and of the Group'’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure requirements set out in
Appendix C of the REIT Code.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2009

BRP RHUTIZ P AU B4R & B S SRR P K
SRERARBEENNERERE - IEENEFE
IREVZBENE HET - BIERT A BN REFS R T
BEGEUBMRTFAEANERRANEAR - £
AR ERBE  RBMREZARREREE
R # 3 $RiR A T R AR M N AR EREE - 3R
EENERIER - BUEE ARSI AIEZEL
BRMEBRRER - BRI REMEEEEHES
SERAMRREIBERZABEERAAEL &5
ETEVR IR - URFHEAR S B RN ERT|
HAA -

BEERE  BEMESNEZERTRREE
RESNELE RIRHER

=R
EERR  RERAUBBRRERBEREMBER
SHENEEMAAMRREEEAR —TTN\F+

“A=T-BEMBEEREERENRL Rk A&
BEEZALFEZHRRASRE  YERR
ERERAIRE R R F AR <7 ISR C AT
MARNERTEZ SR

EEREHMERA
HEEERTED

BEETIR
HEFTE10%5%
ANFARESE

—ETNEFE=RA+NHE
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Consolidated Income Statement

e lmx

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-FTN\F+A=+—RAILFE UETIIR)

Period from
22 June 2007

Year ended to 31 December
31 December 2007
2008 —TT+FA-TH
HEZ-ZTT)N\F E_TTHF
+=A=t+-8 +=A=+-8
WHFE 1EHAR
Note $7000 $'000
k=S Fx T
Turnover BEE 3&9 225,124 107,762
Property operating expenses Y EAE AT 4 (23,156) (9,947)
Net property income L EIL NS 201,968 97,815
Other revenue HAnlg A 5 14,091 7,463
Administrative expenses GG (32,824) (13,576)
Finance costs AEKA 6(a) (62,991) (45,218)
Net exchange gains T W T8 117,346 73,599
237,590 120,083
(Decrease)/increase in fair value of BREYENRDABE
investment property (R, 380 1 (430,530) 7,280
Excess of interest in fair values of the WU E A BRI F A E
acquiree’s identifiable net assets AR EER RSB
over cost of business combination AR AN K BRER 16 — 148,753
(Loss)/profit before taxation and HNBHEREESSENES
transactions with Unitholders AR SATH(ER),=F 6 (192,940) 276,116
Income tax Ffs®t 7(a) 19,356 (11,504)
(Loss)/profit after taxation and before MERBIIEE K AR 5TEE
transactions with Unitholders HESBUBEARS
W (Es1E)E A (173,584) 264,612

The notes on pages 112 to 146 form part of these financial statements.

F112EZ 146 B TR UL FHTERRAIM
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HmeEERER

As at 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZTZN\F+ZA=+—HB GUETIIT)

2008 2007
—EENF —TT+F
Note $7000 $'000
k=S Fir T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment property "B 11 3,631,153 3,822,187
Current assets RENVEE
Trade and other receivables JE UK AR R e L Ath JE LA R IR
and prepayments NEEUNE-N 12 14,202 4,841
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRSEEY 13 531,639 715,093
545,841 719,934
Total assets mEE 4,176,994 4,542,121
Current liabilities REEE
Rent receipts in advance AW S 15,323 3,630
Trade and other payables FERTERSR - HAbFER K1
and accruals RFEETE A 14 66,887 86,900
Tenants' deposits HEEZES 15 51,861 52,410
Current taxation AREAFIIE 7(c) 32,646 29,017
Amount due to the Vendor B EH A 17 27,286 54,065
194,003 226,022
Net current assets REEETFE 351,838 493,912
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBER 3,982,991 4,316,099
Non-current liabilities, excluding net assets kRBERB(FEEESEN
attributable to Unitholders BEAEBLEERE
Bank borrowings, secured BHEFRITER 18 1,385,405 1,381,205
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAE 7(d) 152,414 184,160
1,537,819 1,565,365
Total liabilities, excluding net assets HWEE(TEEESEN
attributable to Unitholders BEAERGLEERE) 1,731,822 1,791,387
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE HEEB e AERL
TO UNITHOLDERS EEFE 2,445172 2,750,734
Number of Units in issue ERTESENHE 19 464,161,000 484,400,000
Net asset value attributable to ESBUBEAELN
Unitholders per Unit BEESENEETFE $5.27 $5.68

Approved and authorised for issue by RREEF China REIT Management
Limited, as the Manager of RREEF China Commercial Trust on 19 March

2009 and signed on its behalf by:

R-EZNF=ZAT+NLBEEETEEEESE
BERAR (EARETEREFHEREGHR
BEEN) HARBRENE - WHA AT

£

Kurt William ROELOFFS, Junior
Chairman

IE

The notes on pages 112 to 146 form part of these financial statements.

Paul Thomas KEOGH

Executive Director

HiTEZE

F12EE B 146 AL L EH B MK AFLD ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

EeBURAABEGERERERDR

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_TENF+_A=1+—1FE CUBTIIR)

Period from
22 June 2007
to 31 December

Year ended 2007
31 December —TT+EF
2008 ~A=—t=H
BE-TZN\F E-TTALF
+=A=+-H +=A=+—~
IHFE 1EHARE
$'000 $'000
Fr i
Balance as at 1 January 2008/ R-BENEFE—A—8/
22 June 2007 “EEEFEARAS T HWKEE 2,750,734 —
Net proceeds from issuance of Units to RERAHABRERDESEN
Unitholders upon initial public offering BEARTESEMNWNE
(less costs of issuance) FRIEFEE (R R 1TRAN) — 2,409,665
(Loss)/profit for the year/period, before RetERESENEEA
transactions with Unitholders REBNE/ R (B18),H5R (173,584) 264,612
Distributions paid to Unitholders EAESEMNRFEAIMTHNDIK (173,728) —
Repurchase of Units and related costs EREESENRERER (79,177) =
Exchange difference ERERE 120,927 76,457
Balance as at 31 December 2008,/2007 R=ZBENF =—ZZLtF
+TZA=t—AWEE 2,445,172 2,750,734

The notes on pages 112 to 146 form part of these financial statements. F112BEF 146 B MBI SHISHRERAID ©
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Distribution Statement

7 kR

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_FTN\F+A=+—HILFE UETIIR)

Period from
22 June 2007
to 31 December

Year ended
31 December
2008
BE-ZTZN\F
+=A=t-8
ILFE
$'000
Fr
(Loss)/profit after tax and before transactions | 4 HAREIHIBRFLBE &
with Unitholders for the year/period RETHESBURBEARS
) (B518) s A (173,584) 264,612
Adjustments: TR
Decrease/(increase) in fair value of REMENARBERD
investment property /(g hn) 430,530 (7,280)
Deferred tax EREFIIE (43,053) 728
Excess of interest in fair values of the WU E BB FEEAAEBEN
acquiree's identifiable net assets over cost e R TS A R AR EEE
of business combination (note 16) (FfzE16) — (148,753)
Non-cash finance costs IEHE S BE A 4,200 2,205
Net exchange gains EH M F R (117,346) (73,166)
274,331 (226,266)
Distributable income for the year/period FHRRSREA 100,747 38,346
Total distributions: PIRAEEE -
Interim distribution, paid B E SR
— distributable income — A DR A 53,020 =
— additional distribution (note (ii)) —EaSN Ik (B (i) 33,844 —
86,864 —
Final distribution, to be paid to Unitholders #BE N TEEBAREANRAD K
— distributable income — A PIREA 47,727 38,346
— additional distribution (note (i) —RESN IR (BT EE ) 34,614 48,518
82,341 86,864
Total distributions paplid b 169,205 86,864
Distribution per Unit: SEESENIIK :
— Interim distribution per Unit, paid (note (iii)) —BENEEESEND
AR ARSIk (REE (i) $0.18717C $ —
— Final distribution per Unit, to be paid — BN TESBLFEANESE
to Unitholders (note (iv)) HEBAHRAD IR (FEEGV) $0.1774 T $0.17937C
Total distribution per Unit BEES BN KA $0.36457T $0.17937T
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Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the Trust Deed, RREEF CCT is required to ensure that the total amount
distributed or distributable to Unitholders shall be not less than 90 per cent of its
annual distributable income for each financial year. The policy of the Manager is to
distribute to Unitholders as dividends an amount equal to 100 per cent of RREEF
CCT's annual distributable income for the period from the listing date to 31
December 2007 and thereafter at least 90 per cent of RREEF CCT's annual
distributable income for each financial year. The Manager also has the discretion to
distribute additional amounts if and to the extent the Trust, in the opinion of the
Manager, has fund surplus to its business requirements.

RREEF CCT's first distribution to Unitholders after the Listing Date was the final
distribution for the period from the listing date to 31 December 2007.

(ii) The additional distribution of both interim and final distribution is applied from the
available cash reserves of RREEF CCT to give a total distribution of $0.3645 (2007:
$0.1793) per Unit.

(i) Subsequent to the announcement of the interim results of RREEF CCT on 13
August 2008, a total of 2,030,000 Units were repurchased by RREEF CCT since 30
June 2008 and the actual interim distribution paid on 26 November 2008 was
$0.1871 per Unit, based on 464,161,000 Units in issue as at 11 November 2008.

(iv)The 2008 final distribution of RREEF CCT is expected to be paid on or around
Tuesday, 26 May 2009 to Unitholders whose names appear on the register of
Unitholders on 6 May 2009.

B -

(i) RIFEFERY - BEFHEESARRNSEMHRE
EDIREA 2R TEE ELFE ARNRARERNED
REZEFEADREANE D Z N+  HER AR
K REMAREE_TZRLF+_A=1+—HIH
R AESEMNHAADIKEENE B HEESH
FEADRKEABD Z —BROZREARE @ ITXEE
BROBEYBRFEDREEFHEERSNFEADIK
WAELBED 2N+ - EBATAIRBEDIREINK
B IREEEARRGTRARBEEBMENE
DA

BEFMERESN LT HPRNERDIRA LT HE
ETRLF+ A=+ AR READIK o

(ii) P EI R AR HIH SN IR ZIB S B & Bt E RS A Al
AR HEERN M EEES 81036457 (2T
+4F : 0.17937T) KR DK °

i) A=TENENA+=ARhE=EHERESHHE
B2 1% #E052,030,000EESENEH =TT //\FX
A=+HE®E=ERMEESLOE  MRER=-ZZ
NFE+—A+—BE%17464,161,000{EE % BEf75t
& ERZZETNFE+—A-t+ABINEEAESE
BB E S K A0.18717T ©

(VEEFMERSN —TTN\FRASIKBHHN=F
ZNFRAZTAB EPDMEINTFETAF
T ARNBRIIRESEMHE NG ENES B
BA-



110

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_FTN\F+A=+—HILFE UETIIR)

Period from
22 June 2007

Year ended to 31 December
31 December 2007
2008 —TET+FA-TH
BE-_TEN\F BE-TTHF
+=A=+-A +=A=+-8
WHFE 1EHARE
Note $'000 $'000
k=S Fir T
Operating activities KEEH
(Loss)/profit before taxation and HRBIEREESSEMIFEA
transactions with Unitholders RFZE12 (E18) mF (192,940) 276,116
Adjustments for: FEE -
— Interest income from bank deposits — RITERFBIA (13,920) (7,463)
— Net exchange gains —E N WESFEE (122,351) (68,293)
— Decrease/(increase) in fair value of —REMENDREE
investment property B (35h0) 430,530 (7,280)
— Excess of interest in fair values of the — B E BRI FEE
acquiree’s identifiable net assets over cost AR BEESBLER
of business combination AR AN R BRER 16 — (148,753)
— Finance costs —BER A 62,991 45,218
Operating profit before changes SELESEHAN
in working capital R F 164,310 89,545
Increase in trade and other receivables FEURBRZR - EfhFEUL
and prepayments FRIB R TR R IE R N (16,302) (18,990)
Increase in rent receipts in advance TEUHE S H92E N 3,277 3,630
Decrease in trade and FERTERER - HAFER SR
other payables and accruals R IERH & RRRE (38,568) (3,142)
(Decrease)/increase in tenants’ deposits HFESH OBd) /18N (3,874) 1,679
Cash generated from operations EEMBES 108,843 72,622
Tax paid EASFIE
— PRC withholding income tax paid — B ETRIRFTE (21,915) (10,280)
Net cash generated from operating activities | & EEFFBREFE 86,928 62,342
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Period from
22 June 2007

Year ended to 31 December
31 December 2007
2008 —TT+FA-TH
HEZ-ZTT)N\F E_TTHF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-8
WHFE 1EHAR
Note $7000 $'000
k=S Fx T
Investing activities REEE
Interest received BUFIE 12,612 7,326
Acquisition of subsidiaries, BB AR
net of cash acquired (ORI EERIR ) 16(ii) — (1,322,586)
Compensation received from the Vendor BEHBEREES 161(ii) — 299,429
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREFEE (FTA)
investing activities REFE 12,612 (1,015,831)
Financing activities mMEEE
Distributions paid BRI (165,236) —
Interest paid BEAFE (60,105) (41,529)
Issue costs paid BT EITR AR — (84,995)
Other borrowing costs paid B EMEERA — (21,000)
Payment of repurchase of Units [0 B8 E & 3R (79,177) —
Proceeds from issuance of MESEMFEAET
Units to Unitholders E& ENFSH0E — 2,245,194
Proceeds from new bank loan REFERITERAFTEIE — 1,400,000
Repayment of bank loan ERIBITER — (1,837,700)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FrA),~
financing activities FBEREFE (304,518) 1,659,970
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BERBLEEY D)/
cash equivalents EHNFE (204,978) 706,481
Cash and cash equivalents R-ZBENF—HF—RB/
at 1 January 2008/ —EELEXRAZ+ZHW
22 June 2007 HEeERREEEY 715,093 —
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes INEERESE 21,524 8,612
Cash and cash equivalents R-BENE/—TELEF
as at 31 December +=ZH=+—BHERE
2008/2007 REESEY 13 531,639 715,093
The notes on pages 112 to 146 form part of these financial statements. F112B 2 FE 146 B MM B It SRR AT ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BR=EER - AESBEAETIIT)

1

(a)

General

RREEF China Commercial Trust (“RREEF CCT" or the “Trust”) is a
Hong Kong collective investment scheme constituted as a unit trust
by a trust deed (the “Trust Deed"”) entered into between RREEF China
REIT Management Limited, as the manager of RREEF CCT (the
“Manager”), and HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, as
the trustee of RREEF CCT (the “Trustee"”) on 28 May 2007 and is
authorised under section 104 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
RREEF CCT was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “SEHK") on 22 June 2007.

The principal activity of RREEF CCT and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) is to invest on a long-term basis in a
diversified portfolio of institutional quality office and mixed-use
properties (where a significant portion of the property has been
designated for office use) located in major cities in China, including
Hong Kong and Macau. The Manager's registered office is located at
48/F, Cheung Kong Center, 2 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Code on Real Estate Investment Trusts (the “REIT Code") issued
by the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC") and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by RREEF CCT is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group. However,
none of these developments are relevant to the Group’s operations.
The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 25).

(a)

—REE
BETEREFSHEREGRES ([BE
WEES|RMEFE) HIREREETERFT
HESEHARAR (FAEERHEESNE
EA(MEEAD) BESHBEFERS GEM)
BRAR (EREEFHEESHREA (X
FADRZZZLFRHA = +/\BFIZHE
FERH (MEFERA]) ABRLEEES AR -
WAREGE R HE RO 1 0MRER TN E
BERBKRENE - EEFHEESN _TT
TERNAZT_BEREERERSABERA
& ([B22P)) £ e

EERHEES RENBAR (REIEAE
B HEEXEBRUZ TR EHRES RBE
BRI AR EEZRT - BEEEREMA
WEBESTERZ RN (KRR HM
EIETIERAE) - BB ARGFMREEMR
BRBERRNEFR2FERIEBF 48 -

FEETER

HHIE

AR S M TS 3RR TIRIR AR B AKE B 53R
HEAD (LS EEEESAMASRMAN
EEREBHMBRELER) - (BEETE
) ([BEEHEA) RRBAREE—RA
REtRA) MRH - WiraMBHRE TN
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(b)

(c)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements comprise RREEF CCT and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment property is stated at its fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out in note 2(e).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with
a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed
in note 24.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken
into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated

in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAMBRRME
2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination
over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested annually for
impairment.

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of a business combination is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair value. Any
gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement
or disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 2(n).

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, except for property held
under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis, and if classified as investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a finance lease.

(d)
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(g)

(h)

(i)

1]

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Unitholders’ funds

In accordance with the Trust Deed, RREEF CCT has a limited life of 80
years less 1 day from the date of commencement of RREEF CCT, and
RREEF CCT is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90 per
cent of its annual distributable income for each financial year.
Accordingly, the Units contain contractual obligations to pay cash
dividends and also, upon the termination of RREEF CCT, a share of all
net cash proceeds derived from the sale or realisation of the assets of
RREEF CCT less any liabilities, in accordance with their proportionate
interests in RREEF CCT at the date of its termination. The Unitholders'
funds are therefore classified as financial liabilities in accordance with
HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation.

Units repurchase

Upon repurchase of the Trust's own units, the respective Units are
subsequently cancelled and the net assets attributable to Unitholders
of the Trust is reduced by the payment made including related costs
incurred. No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the
repurchase of the Trust's own units.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised when
there is objective evidence of impairment and are measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the asset's original
effective interest rate where the effect of discounting is material.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about events that have an impact on the
asset's estimated future cash flows such as significant financial
difficulty of the debtor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAMBRRME
2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

1]

(k)

n

Trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses for trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash
flow statement.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
periods.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised.
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n

(m

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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FEMBmRMEE

(n)

(o)

(p)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned. Rental income is
stated after deduction of business tax.

(ii) Car park income
Car park income is recognised as revenue on an accruals basis. Car
park income is stated after deduction of business tax.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the year in which
they are incurred.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during each year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.
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(p)

(q)

(r)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in a separate component of net assets attributable to
Unitholders.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognised relate to that foreign operation is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant influence
over the Group in making financial and operating policy decisions,
or has joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which the
Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group
or the Group's parent, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is
an entity under the control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit
of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.
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REMBHRRMET

(s)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is
engaged either in providing products or services (business segment),
or in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets mainly include investment properties and rental

receivables, and segment liabilities mainly include operating liabilities.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that
are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial assets, interest-bearing
loans, borrowings, tax balances and financing expenses.

Turnover

The principal activity of the Group is property investment in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

Turnover represents rental income and car park income, net of
business tax. The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover during the year/period is as follows:
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Period from
22 June 2007

Year ended to 31 December

31 December 2007

2008 RZZTTLFRA

BEZ-88/\f _—t+-RAZE-TTtHF

+=A=+-8 +=A=+—A

fl=:3: 4 1EHARS

$’000 $'000

Fr Fr

Rental income AU A 219,945 105,619
Car park income {FHEIZUA 5,179 2,143
225,124 107,762
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4 Property operating expenses
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Period from
22 June 2007

Year ended to 31 December
31 December 2007
2008 RZZT+LFARA
BE-ZEN\E —t+HE_ZTLF
t=A=+-AH +t=A=t—A8
WHFE 1EHAR
$'000 $'000
Fow T
Urban real estate tax W EHER 16,733 8,625
Commission to leasing agents HEREBEARE 3,336 —
Property management fee MEERE 2,222 1,133
Bad debts written off AR M8 389 —
Land use tax TR AR AR 335 289
Stamp duty EPIFERS 137 —
Others Efh 4 —
23,156 9,947

5 Other revenue 5 HfgA
Period from
22 June 2007
Year ended to 31 December
31 December 2007
2008 RZZTTLFRA
BE-ZEN\E —t+-HE_ZTLF
t=A=+-AH +t=A=t—A8
WHFE 1EHARS
$'000 $'000
Fow T
Interest income from bank deposits SRITEHATF SR A B UL A 13,920 7,463
Forfeiture of rental deposit RIRH SRS 171 —
14,091 7,463




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
REMBHRRMET

122

6 AFPEREESBNFEARS
AT (&518) A
R BERELS BB AR SR (5
1) SEFIB R GEA) THIEA -

6 (Loss)/profit before taxation and transactions with
Unitholders

(Loss)/profit before taxation and transactions with Unitholders is
arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Period from
22 June 2007

Year ended to 31 December
31 December
2008
BE-_ZTEN\F
=A==
WHFE
$'000
Fr
(a)  Finance costs: (@) BAEMRA :
Interest on bank borrowings RITEERNS 58,791 43,013
Other borrowing costs HAEERA 4,200 2,205
62,991 45,218
(b) Other items: b) HAIEE :
Manager's fees EEBEAEBR 22,774 9,388
Trustee's fee ZEABE 1,253 720
Auditor’s remuneration ZERE
— audit services — BR 1,150 1,150
— other services —H iR 515 278
Valuer's fee fHERME S 70 326
Other legal and professional fees HiZEREEER 2,918 273
Bank charges RITE A 39 7
Rental receivable from investment REVERKES
property less direct outgoings of B B B 57.23,156,0007T
$23,156,000 (2007: $9,947,000) (ZZZ£4F : 9,947,0007T) (201,968) (97,815)

HE_ZZN\F+_A=+—HIEFER=
ZRAFE+_A=T—HILHRH  EEFM
EESHMBEZEEMNES  MAKEMERE
REMES -

RREEF CCT did not appoint any directors and the Group did not
engage any employees during the year ended 31 December 2008 and
period ended 31 December 2007.
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7
(a)

(b)

Income tax

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
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(a) HFRMERANMEHE

Period from
22 June 2007

Year ended to 31 December
31 December 2007
2008 RZTT+EFRA
HE-BBN\E —t-_RZE-_TTi&
t=A=+-AH +t=A=t—A8
IHFE 1EHAR
$'000 $'000
Fow T
Current tax AREAR IR
Provision for PRC withholding income F HINPETER
tax for the year/period FriS it 23,697 10,776
Deferred tax IEFER IR
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences TR ERMNELE RER (43,053) 728
(19,356) 11,504

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group
did not earn any income assessable to Hong Kong Profits Tax during

the year/period.

Pursuant to the PRC income tax law that was passed by the Standing
Committee of the Tenth National People’s Congress on 16 March
2007, the PRC withholding income tax is now calculated based on ten
per cent of the gross rental income with effect from 1 January 2008,
instead of calculating based on ten per cent of the rental income, net

of business tax.

STUERDIA - BB R FE TS
B -

REN-FTZLF=A+BERNETES
BARKRKRARGEBHE B S BB BME
BE  B-TT/\F—H—BiE - BREAEH
TR WAREN B D 2 +5tHE - MAEER
HEWA IREER WBDZ T5HE -

Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense and accounting (loss)/ (b) FRERGER) STHMZEARRTENES
profit at applicable tax rate: 5T (B18) # FIRER ¢
Period from
22 June 2007
Year ended to 31 December
31 December 2007
2008 RZTT+EFRA
BE-_ZTENF
+=A=+-A
WHFE H
$'000 $'000
Fow T
(Loss)/profit before taxation for FHRRE A
the year/period (&518) /&5 F (192,940) 276,116
Withholding income tax computed &R R BB R
by applying tax rate in the PRC FTETRRATEH (19,294) 27,612
Tax effect of non-taxable income SRR AR T2 (13,143) (22,982)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A S R IS e 22 13,081 6,874
Actual tax (credit)/expenses for the FHNERFIE
year/period (&) X iH (19,356) 11,504
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HEMBRRME
7 Income tax (continued) 7 Fﬁ?§$ﬁ (€]
(c) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents: (c) BEEBBERAMNAHRIESR
Current taxation in the balance sheet represents PRC withholding BEEBBRANANPHEIEEREE BT
income tax payable at the balance sheet date. TEIRRIEATISHL
(d) Deferred tax liabilities (d) EEFRIEEE
The component of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RAEEABRNEEREER B ENK
consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the year/period o RE/HRESIT
is as follows:
Period from
22 June 2007
Year ended to 31 December
31 December 2007
2008 RZZT+FARA
BE-_TEN\F
+=A=+-8 =
WHFE 1EHARS
$'000 $'000
5 Fr
Deferred tax arising from revaluation of TAYEENAEEE
investment property: RRAERIIE
As at 1 January 2008/22 June 2007 R=FZENF—A—8/
—ETEFAAZTZA 184,160 176,383
Exchange difference JE R ZRER 11,307 7,049
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss BsRER GIA) ik (43,053) 728
As at 31 December 2008/2007 R-ZTNF—ETLF
+=-A=+—8 152,414 184,160
8 (Loss)/earnings per Unit before transactions with 8 ARIHESBENRFEARZW

Unitholders

The basic loss per Unit before transactions with Unitholders for the
year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to $0.37 (period from 22
June 2007 to 31 December 2007: earnings per Unit of $0.55). The
calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per Unit before transactions with
Unitholders is based on the Group's loss after taxation and before
transactions with Unitholders of $173,584,000 (for the period from 22
June 2007 to 31 December 2007: profit of $264,612,000) and the
weighted average of 473,786,858 (2007: 484,400,000) Units in issue
during the year/period.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per Unit is not presented as there is no
potential dilution of (loss)/earnings per Unit for the year/period.

SEESEN (R BF

HE_ZZN\F+_A=T—HILFENE
B B AT EE S B IFE ARSI
ENEBE0ITL(H=ETLF A+ =
BE_EZ+F+-_A=+—H8 15[ :
EE S B (1 AF)0.657T) ° Kt EE S B3
BAR SR BEES BAEAR (B18) /AT
TR B AE B M AN AR KR B E
T BAFE AR SHEE173,584,0007T (B
R FANA T ZAETTEF =
A=+—H 18 : %%51264,612,0007T) &
IMEFEHAENERTESEMN
473,786,858 (ZZ T4 : 484,400,000) &

s
==
al -+ °

HAARE,EIEEES B MBS (5
1B) /B8R YR SEESBMEE
(&) /B87 -



RREEF China Commercial Trust
FETEREFHEREGRES

9

(a)

Segment reporting

The Group's operations are primarily located and carried out in the
PRC and the sole principal activity of the Group is property

investment.

Segment revenue and results

Property investment
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9 ZEHE
AEBNELHEERPEET  AREOR
—EEEBANERE -

(a) 2 HPUHER A

in the PRC Head office Consolidated
ReEWERE @ sy
Period from Period from Period from
Year ended 22 June 2007 Year ended 22 June 2007 Year ended 22 June 2007
31 December  to 31 December 31 December  to 31 December 31 December  to 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
RZTE+EA RZTTHF R-ZTTtE
HBz-%% f-ftZRZEZ Bz-%% ~AZTZH Bz-%% AAZHZA
NE+=A TTL5TZR NE+=A EZTTLF NE+=RA z
=t-7 =t-8 =t-8 t-A=t-8 =t-A
L5FE IR Jiz:3:4 Jiz:ilE LFE 1A
$'000 $:000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
Fr Fr Tr v Fr T
Segment revenue HEplkes 225124 107,762 — — | 225124 107,762
Segment results DEPELE 202,139 97,815 (32,824) (13,576) 169,315 84,239
Interest income from PATEROFEHA
bank deposits 13,920 7,463
Net exchange gains R SR 117,346 73,599
Finance costs BHERA (62,991) (45,218)
237,590 120,083
Excess of interest in fair WU EEE TR
values of the acquiree’s FEERAEBER
identifiable net assets EmBERA
over cost of business PR EEE
combination — 148,753
(Decrease)fincrease in fair RENEDAEE
value of investment property (mib) /1 (430,530) 7,280 — — | (430,530) 7,280
(Loss)/profit before taxation and R HEREES SN
transactions with Unitholders RBEAR SRR
(B18) /&7 (192,940) | 276,116
Income tax TS Ht 19,356 (11,504)
(Loss)/profit after taxation NEFBEgEREES
and before transactions BAEAARZAIN
with Unitholders (&8) /5 (173,584) | 264,612
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FEPBMEME
9 Segment reporting (continued) 9 PEHE@®
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) HIPEEREE
Property investment
in the PRC Head office Consolidated
ReERIERE e Y
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
—EE\F & X —2E/\F “2TtE —FEN\F “2TtE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fi I F7 Fi T Fi
Segment assets DHEE 3,922,577 | 4,163,243 254,417 378,878 | 4,176,994 | 4,542,121
Segment liabilities SHHEE 82,523 74,591 78,665 120,931 161,188 195,522
Interest payable FERFIS 169 1,483
Current taxation AEFE 32,646 29,017
Bank borrowings, secured EARITER 1,385,405 | 1,381,205
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 152,414 184,160
Total liabilities “ZeE 1,731,822 | 1,791,387
Net assets attributable HEBURBEA
to Unitholders EEEERE 2,445172 | 2,750,734
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10 Subsidiaries 10 KB A =]
Details of the subsidiaries of the Group are as follows: AEBWE A RFFBERHINAT ¢
Proportion of ownership interest
gL tatdY
Issued and Held by
Place of fully paid RREEF CCT Held by Principal
Name of company incorporation share capital BERME subsidiary activity
GIE FE AR S TR BRI R RKRA EERHAE HEBARRE FEEE
Beijing Gateway British Virgin 1 share of 100% — Investment
Plaza (BVI) Limited Islands US$1 holding
("BVI Gateway") NBRELHS 1REREE BB
1€ HIAR D
HK Gateway Plaza Hong Kong 100 shares of — 100% Property
Company Limited BB $1 each investment
("HK Gateway") 100 FAREE in the PRC
BRERESBR AR 1TTHIRR D TEREIH
([BBEERD YR E
11 Investment property 11 BEYE
$'000
T
Acquired through business combination BIBERE IR 3,668,502
Exchange difference JEN ZRE 146,405
Increase in fair value N EEEN 7,280
As at 31 December 2007 RZZTLHF
+-A=+—¢8 3,822,187
As at 1 January 2008 R=TENF—A—H 3,822,187
Exchange difference ERZERR 239,496
Decrease in fair value AR EBERD (430,530)
As at 31 December 2008 RZZTENF
+-A=+—8 3,631,153
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11 Investment property (continued)

The investment property, Gateway Plaza, was revalued as at 31
December 2008 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ"), whose
valuers are Fellows of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of property being
valued, on an open market value basis, calculated by reference to the
capitalisation of the net income allowing for reversionary income
potential, and where appropriate by reference to sales evidence as
available on the market.

The investment property is held in the PRC under a medium-term
lease. As at 31 December 2008, the investment property had been
pledged to secure a banking facility granted to the Group (note 18).

All land and properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property are classified as
investment property.

The Group leases out its investment property under operating leases.
Leases typically run for an initial period of two to six years, with some
having the option to renew, at which times all terms are renegotiated.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

11 BEVH @

BRERTERAR ([RERT) EEHKRE
MEERBESN_EZEN\F+-_A=1+—H
MEE - WEBMEMASTEHIEMNBESER
8 - BETHEDFOME FRRIE LS
&5 o MEMRBKRNER Gt RUBERAE
L) WEREE - RIER - 2M%5 LA
SHHERE - Ut E AR ENEEET
g

REWMERBHHBONPTERFE - R=F
ZENE+A=+—H REMFERTAE
SEHRITERERER (Hi18) -

REFARENEERURBLLBNITE
BFTE TR - BRBAIRENE -

AEEREBELBOHEELREYE - BY
—ROTBHEMENRTF - B EEES -
JE R R T RE R PR 16RK -

AREEREN A BEHALEMHE BRI
MR AN SRR T

2008 2007

—EENF T

$’000 $’000

Fi F7

Within 1 year —FR 162,230 206,265
After 1 year but within 5 years —FLAEBERFUA 141,433 254,003
After 5 years AFLE 31,820 47,653

335,483 507,921
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12 Trade and other receivables and prepayments

(a)

(b)
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2008 2007
28 )\F —TTiF

$'000 $'000

Fow T

Rental receivables EWES 1,139 2,368
Other receivables HAth e U R 1,435 2,463
Deposits and prepayments Be RIERMR 11,628 10
14,202 4,841

The amount due from the Manager of $980,000 included in other
receivables as at 31 December 2007, which was unsecured, interest-
free, was settled during the year.

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2008 are
rental receivables with the following ageing analysis:

(a)

MR-BZHF+— A=+—AHHEMEUR
I8 - B BEEIETE AFTEI80,0007T 7%k
B AERR - R EWERFRBEE -

R 0 A

REZZZNE+ZA=+—H s ARKER
RN E At e R SRV SRR B AR B AR R D AT 40
THEEES

2008 2007
—seNF B s
$'000 $'000
Fow T
Less than 1 month past due BEE—E AR — 1,014
1 to 3 months past due ERHA—==EH 1,058 1,106
More than 3 months but less than BRE=FANE

12 months past due TZEAMURA 81 248
1,139 2,368

Rental receivables that are not impaired (b) IFREMEWES

Rental receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent tenants. The Manager considers that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as the Group has
either obtained a bank guarantee or collected rental deposits from its
tenants equivalent to 2 to 3 months’ rental which the Manager has
considered adequate to cover the outstanding rental receivables. The
Group's credit policy is set out in note 21(a).

ERHEYERENEKESEEIHFE
H o BIEARRBEARZEHEBRIEHRER
- AASEERESRTERIEREERS
WEEENME=EAR SRS RS Gk
BEARRRABHRN EEAESR) - A5EH
M EEBERERHEE21() °
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13

14

Cash and cash equivalents

13 RERBAEEEY

2008 2007
—EENF —TT+F

$7000 $'000

Fr FT

Deposits with banks SRITRI R HATE 3K 494,963 371,109
Cash at bank and in hand RITFER MRS 36,676 343,984
531,639 715,093

As at 31 December 2008, included in the balance are deposits and
cash at bank of approximately $264,736,000 (2007: $337,195,000)
denominated in Renminbi, maintained in a bank account in the PRC.
The remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to the
prevailing exchange control and tax regulations.

Trade and other payables and accruals

RZZZENE+ZA=+—H  xEEHRS
RRESEEYREFNTENRITRE AN

$R1TIR S 49264,736,0007T (
337,195,00070) (AAREEEHE) ©

PR

—=

HEHRIA

EE L RE ST BRI TINEE BER R

B

14 BEAERRREMENRER

FETtE R
2008 2007
—EENF ZTTF
$'000 $'000
Fr FiT
Creditors and accrued charges ERBERRENER 59,591 78,588
Manager's fees payable ENEBABER

(note 22(c)(ii) (FF5E22(c) (i) 2,809 —

Other amount due to the Manager HAbEAEEAKIEA
(note) (H%%) 4,487 8,312
66,887 86,900

All creditors and accrued charges are due within one month or on
demand and expected to be settled within one year. Included in
creditors and accrued charges is amount due to Trustee of $29,000
(2007: $190,000) which is unsecured and interest-free.

Note:  The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment
terms (note 17(iv)). During the year, $3,825,000 had been paid to the
Manager.

BB BRR R BT & AR —E A A E|H

Sk ESKEIE - TEHAT R —FAER - BT

BRI EET & B IR FE (S 25T A 5/3829,000

TT(ZZZ 4 : 190,0007T) @ ZFIE A

HRBE

Mzt : ZRIBAEIER 28 BVEETERD
R (FEE17Gv) > RER - EREEAX
143,825,0007T °
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16

Tenants’ deposits

The amount of tenants’ deposits expected to be payable after more
than 1 year is $23,169,000 (2007: $39,452,000).

Business combination

In prior year, pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 4
June 2007, (“the S&P Agreement”), on 22 June 2007, RREEF CCT
acquired the Gateway Plaza, the investment property, through the

acquisition from Mr. Tin Lik (“the Vendor”) of the entire issued ordinary

share capital of Beijing Gateway Plaza (BVI) Limited (“BVI Gateway"”),
which holds the entire issued share capital of a property holding
company, HK Gateway Plaza Company Limited (“HK Gateway"”).

Details of the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in

prior year were as follows:
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HEZS

FBERR —F AR INNHFREN SRR
23,169,0007t (=T L4 : 39,452,000
o) °

EBa6t

RE—FE  RER-_FZTLFAMAF]
YHWEERZ((BEEHE])  RZTTLF
ANAZt+=H EERHEESHBHLE
([&EH]) ¥ iEBeijing Gateway Plaza (BVI)
Limited ([BVI Gateway|) GZA BB —E4
¥R AREBERBESERAR ([BHBE
) EIEBITRA) I E BT LR
AN R B ERES o

RE—FEMRBEERAFAEREARE
ERFBIT -

2007 2007
ZETF ZTTF
Note $'000 $'000
lik=S T T

Investment property A 3,668,502
Trade and other receivables JE U B R e L A W R IR 1,275
Cash and cash equivalents Re KRS EEY 216,647
Tenants' deposits HEEZS (48,882)
Trade and other payables FERTRR R % H At FE T3R8 (15,997)
Dividend payable to the Vendor ERERRRE (50,000)
Current taxation NN (27,428)
Secured term loan BEBTHER (1,837,700)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBA G (176,383)
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed | FINIBEERFIRESR 1,730,034
Total consideration as determined at WRE R E VKB

the time of acquisition 2,009,654
Adjustment to consideration HREELHAR (i) (428,373)
Adjusted consideration RARNNRE 1,581,281
Excess of interest in fair values of the W ETREFEE

acquiree’s identifiable net assets AREMREREH

over cost of business combination EREHRANEE 148,753
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16 Business combination (continued) 16 ¥ 50w
Notes: FI5E -
i) WebEt% - uﬁillﬂﬁii)\ﬁ’\ijtihﬂwLElﬂ

(i) Subsequent to the acquisition, as stated in the Manager's announcement

dated 10 September 2007 and in the 2007 Annual Report, certain
discrepancies were discovered to the effect that the amounts received
directly from tenants were noted to be less than the amounts set out in the
tenancy agreements disclosed to the Manager at the time of the acquisition.

The Manager took steps to investigate and ascertain the cause and impact of
the discrepancies and sought compensation from the Vendor. The Board of
the Manager resolved on 26 October 2007 that the Vendor be removed,
effective immediately, as a director of the Manager and notice was served to
that effect on the Vendor on the same day. Following that, on 18 February
2008, the majority shareholder of the Manager, in exercise of its contractual
right, purchased the Vendor's shares in the Manager. The Vendor undertook in
writing to make any further payment that was necessary upon the Manager’s
request. The Manager, having obtained legal advice, sought payments from
the Vendor and, exercised its rights of set-off against funds potentially owing
to the Vendor, including retention sum held by the Trustee in respect of
warranties made by the Vendor in the S&P Agreement, to compensate for the
following which the Manager considered as an adjustment to the
consideration payable for the acquisition:

(a) At the demand of the Manager, the Vendor made an upfront, immediate
payment of $278,526,728 (the “Sum”) into the account of the Trustee on
an unconditional non-recourse basis, in respect of the expected difference
in rental payments over the remaining lease periods from September 2007.
Other payments totalling $20,901,851 were made by the Vendor during the
prior year in respect of the differences on rental payments from 22 June to
August 2007.

(b) As stated in the Manager's announcement dated 28 October 2007, the
Manager and the Trustee noted a diminution of $69,663,000 in the net
asset value attributable to the unitholders of RREEF CCT (excluding
deferred taxation) as at 30 September 2007 after taking into account the
updated property valuation and the Vendor's payment of the Sum to the
Trustee. The Manager claimed such loss by setting off against the amount
due to the Vendor (note 17(iv)).

(c) Under the S&P Agreement, the Vendor guaranteed the payment of the
relevant rentals under the advertising right agreement by the lessee and
covenanted to indemnify HK Gateway for any losses in this regard. As the
lessee had failed to pay the rentals due under the advertising right
agreement and such agreement was terminated in February 2008, the
Manager claimed the loss in rentals under the advertising right agreement,
to the extent not recovered through the updated property valuation (note
(i)(b) above), of $41,171,392 by setting off against the amount due to the
Vendor (note 17(iv)).

(d)Rental receivables collected by the Vendor and amount due from a related
party, which was a company owned by the Vendor, totalling $7,007,808 at
the time of acquisition, which the Manager considered to be non-
recoverable and claimed by setting off against the amount due to the
Vendor (note 17 (iv)).

(e)Under the warranties made by the Vendor in the S&P Agreement, the
Manager claimed $10,000,000 in respect of certain defective equipment
acquired with the investment property. This amount was set off against the
amount due to the Vendor (note 17(iv)).

MAER-ZETLFFRME - BRAEFER
WEREYHE & £ B D T URFB R [7) B 32 A B ER A7 4
FAAEEES S o

EREABRREEASRBEEZERNRARY
2 WREHRE EEAEFEN_TTLHF
TAZHRAFR BB EETEAZS
BUBRGL - AR B RIE T RERE o g - BT
ZZNF_A+N\R  EBAXERRENITE
HETXBENRBEREEANESRD - EHE
EEAGEREEABRKSITNR - EEARE
KEFERE  EEREARR - WEATRRA
BHEBEERA (BEZEAREIREZ HE
FIERE M #FH AR ©) WIEHE - URER

AR B HWE AR EN RN T EIHED
e

(@) BHEEEAZRGE ST LF N ARG
T TERT & = RBEEHE E R TG E Y
B —;x'\$321#278,526,7287%((EZ@%EJ)
BAZEARE - EARE—FER=-FZT
ERAZ+-HAEN\ANHSER|ELAE
20,901,851 T E AR 3R o

b) BB AR =TT F+A=1+/\B I
AERT - BEREEYEGBERBE AT
FEAZZEEE  EBARTEATESD
BERMEESNESENFEAN_TTL
FNA=TBEEEEFE (TRIEELERHE)
J5269,663,0007T © EEAC B BIKEENE
HRBREGBER FIE170v) ©

(0 RIBEEx - BHREEEABIBESER
AT RS - WETHRERSERZMT
EMEAIEL - AR ARGE S N ESHER
HE A S - BZRRe R N\E
ZARIE - BB AD B BREENE SRR
RERSHERHE TBHEE41,171,3927T
(HEE17(v) - BEEREFYEGERKE
HE AR (XM D) °

d EAFREEHEKE e RERREEA LT (BR
AN —BAR) RERKRERE RS
7,007,8087T * MEIRARRBZERBETA]
e - 7 8 1 BE e S B T sRIB R (E (MY R
17(iv)) °

) BEEHNEE HalFLrRE - BEARIK
BREVEFNETERBHRERE
10,000,0007T ° ;&7 MEE{EFERT B 5 I K
34 (FF3E1760v) ©
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ERRC)

16 Business combination (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(f) The Manager considered there was an under payment of listing expenses
amounting to $1,102,177 by the Vendor which, pursuant to the
Supplemental Deed dated 8 June 2007, was set off against the amount
due to the Vendor (note 17(iv)).

The aggregate of the above items of $428,372,956 was considered by the
Manager, after taking legal advice, as being an adjustment to the
consideration payable for the acquisition and was accounted for and disclosed
in the accounts for the period ended 31 December 2007.

Further, the Manager or the Trustee are holding funds potentially owing to the
Vendor, in which rights of set-off have been, and may continue to be,
exercised to the extent necessary to compensate any claims for further losses
or additional expenses incurred by the Trust in this connection (note 17).

(i) The net cash flow attributable to the acquisition in the prior year was as

( BEEARE  BHHWAKR EMHE1,102,177
TT 0 MRER = EEF A\ BRI AT
Y - ZEFUECRENE S BRI (T
FE17(v) °

ERAREREEERERA - LA KR8
428,372,956 T T AT BEEAERAE - I
B ARREZE=—TT+F+=—A=+—HILH
FEﬁE’UE\'E El ‘:F‘ HE °

BEoh - BEARFZEAE RGBS HBEE
& WEL KA B BB UL 1T R (AR S
fEREBLIL E A R E MBS TR sk BB SN S BUE T R R
RS rEAR) (H:E17)

(i) EFEOPERIERSREFRAT

follows:
2007
ZTTHF
Note $'000
lik=S Tt
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WBELENRSRETE
Cash consideration paid BEERE 1,539,233
Cash acquired IEENRE (216,647)
1,322,586
Compensation received from the Vendor BB 5 A E (i)(a) (299,429)
Net cash outflow REREBEE 1,023,157
Major non-cash transaction: FEFBRERS
Pursuant to the S&P Agreement, part of the consideration amounting to RIEE Eih# - B585249,466,000 T DA

$249,466,000 was settled by the issuance of 48,440,000 Units to the Vendor
in the prior year.

BERNEFE BB S $1748,440,000fHE &

BADEE -
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17 Amount due to the Vendor

17. ERE R FIE

Notes:

(i) The amount represents US$20 million ($156 million) retention sum held by
the Trustee as security pursuant to the S&P Agreement with the Vendor in
respect of warranties made by the Vendor therein. Under the S&P
Agreement, the release of the retention sum is subject to there being no
material breach of the warranties, which in the sole opinion of the purchaser
acting on the recommendation of the Manager, will have a material adverse
effect on, inter alia, the financial condition, earnings or assets of the Trust.

(i) The amount comprises the remaining balance of initial consideration unpaid
to the Vendor amounting to $64,955,000 which is subject to the post-
completion adjustment mechanism set out in the S&P Agreement, and
$50,000,000 of dividend declared by BVI Gateway in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2006 payable to the Vendor prior to the acquisition by
RREEF CCT. The settlement of this balance of $50,000,000 is subject to the
unconditional completion of certain obligations of the Vendor under the S&P
Agreement within a set time period.

(i) The amount represents the Trust's interim distribution to the Vendor as
Unitholder for the period ended 30 June 2008. Such amount is retained by
the Manager, on the basis of legal advice, pursuant to the Trust Deed as there
are claims against the Vendor and therefore amounts are payable by the
Vendor to the Trustee or the Manager.

(iv) The Manager and the Trustee, pursuant to the S&P Agreement and on the
basis of legal advice, have exercised their rights of set-off against funds
potentially owing to the Vendor but which are under the control of the Trustee
or the Manager to compensate claims for losses and expenses.

During 2007, on the above basis the Manager had claimed the following
amounts against the Vendor:

—  Adiminution of $69,663,000 in the net asset value attributable to the
Unitholders of RREEF CCT (excluding deferred taxation) as at 30
September 2007 (note 16(i)(b));

—  Loss in rentals amounting to $41,171,392 under the advertising right
agreement guaranteed by the Vendor (note 16(i)(c));

— lrrecoverable rental receivables collected by the Vendor and amount due
from a related party, a company owned by the Vendor, at the time of
acquisition of $7,007,808 (note 16(i)(d)) and subsequent to acquisition of
$13,031,533;

—  Claim for certain defective equipment acquired with the investment
property amounting to $10,000,000 under the warranties in the S&P
Agreement (note 16(i)(e));

2008 2007
—zEnfF —TTeH
$'000 $'000
Fx Fr
Retention of proceeds WHEFTSFERE &
on acquisition (note (i) (GEAD) 156,000 156,000
Balance of initial unpaid EP NN
consideration (note (ii)) KRB L5 BIFEi) 114,955 114,955
Retention of the Vendor's BERHESBUDIK
Unit distribution (note (iii) REBE (FIEEi) 8,492 —
Amounts set off (note (iv)) I $H 5k IE (T 5% (v) (252,161) (216,890)
27,286 54,065

B

(i) RIREE D AT BE ek - A RIERFEAR
BIERIEMMAI208 83T (156 B BB TT) AR
BE  MERENBITEE T HOXARE
REEE RS - RESHOBREVANEREE
RRE - BUEE ) CARBEERANEREE R
BRITEY) EARBEKE (Kb 81F) (FrE i
KR BRNHEEERERTHFE -

(M ZABERERNTFEABAREAR T AR
64,955,0007T (AT EN B = e 3214
SEEMHFTER) » LAKBVI GatewaysiE E —TE
NETZA=T—RHIEFE  REEEHEES
URBERT - T 5 M S KAVAR E50,000,0007TFT
PR + %50,000,0007TA5BRZETFE 77 718 E BARR A
EIEHTEREE R ® NETEERADEHE -

(ii) R SRR E S (FAESBAFA A) (R
WEZE-—ZTENFA=+THILEENTHS
K - ZRBRRBEERR - WRBEFEEZAE
K RBHEEARE  RRERAESRENRE
REFAMZFEAREE AR

M EBARZTEACREERRARIEEER 17
ERTEAREIRAFEHIR N E T EEEERN
HERE - UK B IR R R o

RoTTLF  BRARE LML DERE
F N TR -

- EERMEESNESBENRFAEARZ
TLFNA=TAEEEEFENRD
#369,663,0007T (T BEELERE) (FizE
16(i)(b)) ;

- REEHIMEROESEHEZASE
2%+ #41,171,3927T (FFEE16() () ¢

— B AU AT e ) e Uk R < K P UK R
BEAL(EHFBEAN—HAR)KE  »®
W iERs A7,007,8087T (FiFE16()(d) + RIE
Uy %1% & UWe 913,031,533

— REREERHELNORE - pHRERE
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17 Amount due to the Vendor (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv) (continued)

Under payment of listing expenses amounting to $1,102,177 to be borne
by the Vendor pursuant to the Supplemental Deed dated 8 June 2007
(note 16(i)(f));

Legal fees, professional costs and investor relations costs totalling
$63,640,636 in connection with the investigation and related work;

Loss in Manager's fees of $8,311,614 as a result of the discrepancies in
rental payments (note 14); and

Rental receivables of $2,962,000 due from affiliates of the Vendor,
Beijing Bestride Gateway Leisure Club Co., Ltd (“Leisure Club”) and
Beijing Bestride Estate Development Co., Ltd (“Beijing Bestride ") for the
period ended 31 December 2007, which were not expected to be
recovered.

During 2008, on the basis of legal advice, the Manager has continued to
exercise its rights of set-off for the following amounts:

Further rental receivables of $8,576,828 due from Leisure Club and
Beijing Bestride for the year ended 31 December 2008 which are not
expected to be recovered and loss in rentals arising from both leases up
to the expiry of the contractual lease terms amounting to $8,071,780;

Unpaid management fee of $3,308,483 due from Leisure Club and
Beijing Bestride, payable to the property manager of Gateway Plaza (the
“Property Manager”) for the year ended 31 December 2008 and loss in
management fee arising from both leases up to the expiry of the
contractual lease terms amounting to $1,418,108;

Additional claim for defective equipment acquired with the investment
property amounting to $6,862,000 under the warranties in the S&P
Agreement; and

Stamp duty, urban real estate tax and related penalty interest totalling
$7,033,392 paid in 2008 and claimed pursuant to the S&P Agreement
and the tax indemnity under the Deed of Tax Covenant (note 17(vi)).

(v) The balance of the amount due to the Vendor at year end will be retained by
the Trust pending the Trust being satisfied that there are no other claims
against the Vendor. As at the date of approval of the financial statements, the
Manager has not been notified of any challenge to the exercise of those set-

offs.

(vi) Pursuant to the Deed of Tax Covenant entered into by the Vendor and the
Trustee dated 4 June 2007, the Vendor will indemnify the Trustee (for itself
and on behalf of the subsidiaries) in respect of any liability for any forms of
taxation resulting from or by reference to any event occurring on or before the
date of the Deed of Tax Covenant; and all costs, expenses and interest
properly incurred and payable by either the subsidiaries or the Trustee in
connection with a successful claim under the Deed of Tax Covenant.
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18 FiRHRITHN

18 Bank borrowings, secured

As at 31 December 2008, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

R=ZZBZNFE+_A=+—8  RITERA
R TYBHEE

2008 2007

=L L —TTrF

$'000 $'000

SFow T

Bank borrowings, secured RITIEE - A 1,400,000 1,400,000
Unamortised balance of up-front fee REHTET B AR (14,595) (18,795)
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERAFA 1,385,405 1,381,205

Under the banking facility agreement, the Group has been granted a
facility of $1,400,000,000 before transaction costs, for a five-year term
from the first date of drawdown under the term loan. The term loan
was fully drawn down by the Group on 22 June 2007. Pursuant to this
arrangement, the interest rate under the above loan is HIBOR plus 1.2
per cent per annum.

The bank borrowing under the term loan is secured by, among others,
the following:

— mortgage over the investment property with a net book value of
$3,631,153,000 (2007: $3,822,187,000) as at 31 December 2008
(note 11);

— assignment of rental income and all other proceeds arising from
and including all rights, title and interest under all tenancy
agreements relating to the investment property in case of breach
of covenants.

The Group's banking facility is subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet ratios, as are
commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If
the Group were to breach the covenants the drawn down facility
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Group's
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 21(b). As at 31
December 2008, none of the covenants relating to drawn down facility
had been breached.

The effective interest rate of the bank borrowing as at 31 December
2008 is 2.20 per cent (2007: 4.88 per cent). The carrying amounts of
the bank borrowing approximate their fair value. Details of the Group's
management of interest rate risk are set out in note 21(c).

BERITEERZ  AEEEER —HAH
1,400,000,0007t (FNR X SR AR BIfEE -
HEHERREREAEAHAE - AEED
F—??tﬂz/\ﬂ +-BEERNTEHE

o RIEALHE - LMERNEFERAEDE
ﬁEﬁH%ﬁ%bm =

EHERORITERR (EHEHE) THIER
{ERIE

— R\ F+A=1+—HBHEREFES
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D) FOIS A WEERIE (1)
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AEENRTEELHEREBERAAEREE
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19 Units in issue
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19 ERTEEEN

Number of Units

ESBEVHE
Initial public offering BRAREE 484,400,000
As at 31 December 2007 RZZET+F+=-A=+—H 484,400,000
As at 1 January 2008 R=ZTENF—A—H 484,400,000
Repurchase of Units g & BA7 (20,239,000)
As at 31 December 2008 RZZZNF+=-A=+—H 464,161,000

Upon listing on 22 June 2007, 484,400,000 Units at the price of $5.15
per Unit were issued, of which 435,960,000 Units were issued for
cash and 48,440,000 Units were issued to the Vendor as partial
settlement of the consideration for the acquisition of the subsidiaries.

AZETZHFENAZ+ZH EHE 0 BT
484,400,0001!%@%14 BFEESEMNERS
/55.157T » EFR435,960,0001EE % B 438
£ %17 M48,440,000fEES B JH3E1TF
B LABEID KB A RIMRE -

Repurchase of Units @Eﬁgﬁﬁﬁ
During the Reporting Period, RREEF CCT repurchased its own units on RERE R - BERERES R ATEE
the SEHK as follows: EZK%%@QUWT :
Highest Lowest
Number price paid price paid
of Units per Unit per Unit Aggregate
Date of repurchase repurchased BEESEMH BRESEMAM price paid
CILE) EMESERE BEE RIER Attt
$ $ $/000
7 7 Fr
2 June 2008 “ZT\EARAZA 1,040,000 3.90 3.79 4,017
3 June 2008 T \F A=A 353,000 4.00 3.84 1,392
4 June 2008 T \FAANA 552,000 3.96 3.93 2,177
5 June 2008 —EZ)\FXAAA 1,482,000 3.98 3.92 5,870
6 June 2008 “EENFAARAE 1,266,000 4.06 4.01 5,110
10 June 2008 “EENFAATH 3,501,000 4.05 3.95 14,049
11 June 2008 “ZZ\ERAT—H 1,171,000 4.00 3.98 4,683
12 June 2008 —ZE\FARAt=H 524,000 3.95 3.95 2,070
13 June 2008 —ZE\ERAT=H 1,875,000 4.05 3.96 7,448
16 June 2008 —ET\FARA+RE 700,000 3.97 3.90 2,744
17 June 2008 “ERN\ERATLR 5,745,000 3.94 378 22,274
9 September 2008 “EENFAANAE 37,000 3.29 3.29 122
16 September 2008 ZEEN\ENATAA 20,000 3.25 3.25 65
18 September 2008 | —EE/\ENAHB 41,000 3.03 3.02 124
19 September 2008 ZZEEN\ENATNE 90,000 3.18 3.18 286
22 September 2008 —ZT)\FAA=F=H 65,000 3.19 3.16 207
23 September 2008 | —EEN\EAA-+=H 51,000 3.16 3.15 161
24 September 2008 | —EE/N\EAA-+MA 12,000 3.15 3.15 38
29 September 2008 T \FNAZTNA 21,000 3.20 3.18 67
30 September 2008 | —EENEAA=1AR 15,000 3.20 3.20 48
3 October 2008 = \E+A=H 11,000 3.20 3.19 35
6 October 2008 —ZZ)\Ft+ AR 35,000 3.22 3.08 109
8 October 2008 “ZE\F+ANR 167,000 3.03 2.89 498
9 October 2008 “ZEN\FET+ANA 1,183,000 3.10 2.90 3,589
10 October 2008 “ZZ\E+ATH 280,000 2.90 2.88 811
13 October 2008 “ZTZ)\Ft+A+=H 2,000 2.70 2.70 5
20,239,000 77,999

137



138

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRME

19

20

Units in issue (continued)

Repurchase of Units (continued)

The repurchased Units were cancelled upon repurchase and
accordingly the net assets attributable to Unitholders were reduced by
the aggregate payment made in relation to the repurchase of own
units, including related costs incurred amounting to $79,177,000.

Capital management

The Group's primary objective is to provide its Unitholders risk-
adjusted, long-term capital growth through investing in a diversified
portfolio of institutional quality office and mixed-use properties located
in major cities in China, Hong Kong and Macau. The Manager aims to
support the fund'’s strategy by employing an efficient capital
management strategy using an appropriate mix of debt and equity
capital. The Manager believes that an efficient capital management
strategy will improve total returns while reducing risks for Unitholders.
The Manager actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to reflect the Trust's investment opportunities, its operating
and the general economic and regulatory environment.

In accordance with to clause 7.9 of the REIT Code and clause 16.3.1 of
the Trust Deed, RREEF CCT's aggregate borrowings shall not exceed
45 per cent of the total gross asset value of the scheme. In the event
that the limit is exceeded, the Unitholders and the SFC shall be
informed of the magnitude of the breach, the cause of the breach, and
the proposed method of rectification. In cases where there is a breach,
no further borrowing is permitted and the Manager shall use its best
endeavours to reduce the excess borrowings. Furthermore, the
Unitholders and the SFC shall be informed on a regular basis as to the
progress of the rectification. As at 31 December 2008, RREEF CCT's
aggregate borrowings represent 33.5 per cent (2007: 30.8 per cent) of
its total gross assets value.

19

20

ERTESENV @
ERESEN (@

BIF BN B R ERER RS @ Bt - S 8N
BEANBGEEFEERERDBERAGES
BN FTYEL RIS SR8 5E79,177,0007T (B 1EHE
BER) -

EEHE

AEENEERBREBRENTHE  BE
TRPIE B TR RBREN B RS AiE
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HERRREHBENRPESER - €12
AEEBEBRAERNESEELRE - LE
BHEBRRANES TR ES R - B2
AWBIE  BRHESEERIEEEBRET
woE - WRRFEESEURFEANE
% BEERASREBREPEZNERLER
g BURREENEERS K2R
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BB HEESTANET IFREFERIE
16.3.11§ - EEEMEESNARETISIE
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21 Financial instruments

(a)

(b)

Exposure to credit and interest risks arises in the normal course of the
Group's business. These risks are limited by the following policies and
practices described below.

Credit risk
Matters relating to the Vendor are referred to in other notes to the
financial statements.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of tenants and counterparties. The
carrying amount of rental receivables included in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to its financial assets.

Credit evaluations are performed by the Property Manager on behalf of
the Manager before lease agreements are entered into with tenants.
Rental receivables are due within 14 days from the date of billing and
tenants are requested to settle all outstanding balances. In addition,
the Manager reviews the recoverable amount of all individual
receivables regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
recognised for any irrecoverable debt. The Manager is of the opinion
that sufficient rental deposits are held to cover potential exposure to
credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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(a)

(b)

AEER R L4 BRFEZ S RAEAE
B o RERBRE A T B R TSt e R i
R4l -

EEAR
ARESOEES RHTERR MMM -

AEBVEEERBBREETHBER - FA
ZHRER D BN ZERPMETF - sStALZE
BEBEXRVENESREAERASESE
ERMBEEMRIHZIAEERR

HHPATZ A MER - MEEEASRE
B AETEERY - BEEENER AR
FHARREIE - P RSB ARMELR -
BESI - EIRAE Bt Y B M IR AT IR
Cl£H8 - MR ER AR EIRER 2 5
MEEE - EEARREEIFTHNELR
& RERAEEEERR -
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21 Financial instruments (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

21 BT Em

(b)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the
balance sheet date of the Group's financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current

at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be

required to pay:

RBES @

TR ANEESBBEREH BRBHS
HEIEE - RerA L2 R THRA LRI
Rene (BERBAEMESE (W72 1
H BERNEFE M SN ARAEE
ARERNRZ RF AHFE

2008
—BENF
More than More than
Total Within 1 year 2 years
contractual 1 year but less but less
undiscounted or on than than
Carrying cash flow demand 2 years 5 years
amount BRREEE 1R 1EE 2F D E
REE RERERTE RIBRER 2F LA 5F LR
$’000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Bank borrowings, IRITIER
secured Vg 1,385,405 1,506,845 30,780 30,780 1,445,285
Rent receipts in Al
advance 15,323 15,323 15,323 — —
Trade and other FETBRSK
payables and H b e 50E
accruals RIEtE R 66,887 66,887 66,887 — —
Tenants’ deposits izl =k 51,861 51,861 28,692 13,074 10,095
Amount due to the BB R E
Vendor 27,286 27,286 27,286 — —
1,546,762 1,668,202 168,968 43,854 1,455,380
2007
—TT+LF
More than More than
Total Within 1 year 2 years
contractual 1 year but less but less
undiscounted or on than than
Carrying cash flow demand 2 years 5 years
amount BHIREEE 1FER 1F A E 28 A E
FREE Remesn FIRER 2 LA 5 AR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Fit Tt T Fit
Bank borrowings, IRITIER
secured B 1,381,205 1,756,379 84,350 84,350 1,687,679
Rent receipts in Al
advance 3,630 3,630 3,630 — —
Trade and other FETBRSR
payables and H b e 50E
accruals K IERE A 86,900 86,900 86,900 — —
Tenants' deposits izl =k 52,410 52,410 12,958 26,012 13,440
Amount due to the BB R E
Vendor 54,065 54,065 54,065 — —
1,578,210 1,953,384 241,903 110,362 1,601,119
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21 Financial instruments (continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk primarily through its cash
and deposit balances and its interest-bearing borrowings from financial
institutions. Increase in interest rates would increase finance costs
relating to the outstanding variable rate borrowings and increase the
cost of new debt. The Group has not used any derivative instruments
to manage the interest risk during the year/period presented.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2008, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 (2007: 50) basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's (loss)/
profit after taxation and before transactions with Unitholders and the
net assets attributable to its Unitholders by approximately $4.3 million
(2007: $3.4 million). This has taken into account the effect of interest-
bearing bank deposits as at 31 December 2008.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the change in the Group’s
(loss)/profit after tax and net assets attributable to Unitholders that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2007.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk through its subsidiary’s holding
in investment property located in the PRC and its rental activities that
are denominated in Renminbi.

Since the functional currency of the subsidiary is Renminbi, it is
exposed to currency risk arising from the exposure of Renminbi
against Hong Kong dollars as its bank borrowings of $1,385,405,000
(2007: $1,381,205,000) and related interest expenses and the amount
due to the Trust of $364,531,000 (2007: $466,468,000) as at 31
December 2008 are to be settled in Hong Kong dollars. The Group has
not hedged any currency risk.

Annual Report 2008
—ZETNEER

21 I TEHm®

(c)

(d)
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F+=A :+—E » HER{T{E3R1,385,405,000
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21 Financial instruments (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that the effect on the property
holding company’s monetary assets and liabilities of a reasonably
possible increase/decrease in the foreign exchange rate in Renminbi
against the Hong Kong dollar of five per cent (2007: five per cent), with
all other variables held constant, would impact the Group's (loss)/profit
after taxation and before transactions with Unitholders by
approximately $86.7 million (2007: $92 million).

Results as presented above represent the effects on the property
holding company’s (loss)/profit after taxation and before transactions
with Unitholders measured in its respective functional currency,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to currency risk at the balance
sheet date, including inter-company payables within the Group which
are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into
the Group's presentation currency.

In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies and the
remittance of funds out of PRC are subject to the prevailing exchange
control and tax regulations.

Estimation of fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2007 and 2008.

21 I TH@
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22 Material related party transactions

(a)

(b)

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with
certain Connected Persons and / or related parties under the REIT
Code and HKAS 24, Related party disclosures:

Connected Person/related party

BEAL HBA

Annual Report 2008
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%5

Relationship with the Group
BEAEENRIER

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited (“the Trustee”)
EL B ETERS (&M BRAR ([ZFEAD

HSBC Holdings Plc and its associates
and other members of its group
(collectively referred to as “HSBC Group”)
ELERERATIREBMEALT
ARZEEEMKE AR (FEELEE])
RREEF China REIT Management Limited
EETRERESERARAA

Deutsche Securities Asia Limited (“DSAL")
EELERLFRMNERAR

DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ")
BEZTERAR ([BER17))

Mr. Tin Lik (the “Vendor”)
BALE(ER)

Beijing Bestride Estate Development Co., Ltd.
I REREHEREER AR

Beijing Bestride Gateway Leisure Club Co., Ltd.
I RERBEBRARBELITER AR
* As at 31 December 2008, Mr Tin Lik, the Vendor, held 45,376,000 Units
representing 9.78 per cent (2007: 9.37 per cent) of the total units of RREEF

CCT. Mr. Tin Lik was removed as a director of the Manager on 26 October
2007 and ceased to be a shareholder of the Manager on 18 February 2008.

Balances with Connected Persons and/or related parties as at 31
December 2008 are as follows:

The Trustee of RREEF CCT
BERMEESHNZTA

Connected Persons of the Trustee

REEAMBEAL

The Manager of RREEF CCT
EEREHEESHNEREA

Associate company
of the Manager
YN NG|

The Valuer of RREEF CCT
EEEEL SR ERD

" A shareholder of the Manager
* =30 AR

An affiliate of the Vendor
BETWEE A+

An affiliate of the Vendor
BETWEE A+

* RIEERENFT_A=t—H BHIREE
77)¥5545,376,000fBE B - (hEEF
EESNESBMNEENES Z BN (S
TRLF  BOZNE=1) - BAKERZ
EREF A HNANEREEAES -
B YR —ZFFN\F_A+N\BTBELAERE
ARIRER -

o) RZZZENFF+_A=+—HEBEALR
/S RRE R 2 BRI T

2008 2007
—sTN\F N
$7000 $'000
Fr F
Net amount due from/(to): Fedk () BRFUF 5B
— HSBC Group —E2EE — 128
— The Trustee —2FA (29) (190)
— The Manager —EEA (7,295) (7,332)
-DTZ —HRBRIT (40) (326)
Deposits and cash placed
with the HSBC Group FEAEEEENFRARRE 21,816 376,854
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22 Material related party transactions (continued)

(c)

23

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into
following material related party transactions during the year/period:

22 ERBEHERS @

(c) BRAGZEFEHRREMIBHOBFPENRS
BRON » NEBRE S HIAFT L N5 E KR
HR5

2008 2007
—eE)\F Ty
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
Rental income from Beijing Bestride I R ERARE BRI RERLLS
Gateway Leisure Club Co., Ltd. AR AYEEE 2 WA (5,970) (2,900)
Rental income from Beijing Bestride R R EREHERZEERAR]
Estate Development Co., Ltd. IS U (2,607) (1,266)
Interest income on bank deposits EEEEREITH
with the HSBC Group 17 HA B A (3,164) (6,430)
Brokers' fee in relation to Units EEREEFTDNERA T EE
repurchased charged by DSAL EoBEMIRERL L ER 194 —
Valuer's fee {HERT BN < 70 326
Manager's fees (note (ii)) EEABA (FEEG) 22,774 9,388
Trustee's fee (note (iii) ZEEAE A (ki) 1,253 720

Notes:

(i) These transactions were carried out on normal commercial terms and in the

ordinary course of business.

(i) The Manager's fees are calculated as the aggregate of a base fee of 0.4 per
cent per annum of the value of the Deposited Property and a variable fee of
three per cent per annum of the Net Property Income (as defined in the Trust
Deed). On this basis, the Manager's fees for the period ended 31 December
2007 amounted to $12,539,000. The Manager agreed to limit the fee for the
period ended 31 December 2007 to the amount of $9,388,000.

(i) Under the Trust Deed, the Trustee is entitled to receive a remuneration of not
more than 0.03 per cent per annum of the value of the Deposited Property (as
defined in the Trust Deed) which may be increased to a maximum of 0.06 per
cent per annum of the value of the Deposited Property, subject to minimum

fees of $50,000 per month.

Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2008 not

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

) SER S TRERT B I BT R
e

(i) BEEABRREFEEVERBENAD 2 T2 (A
FERFE) NEABRARYERNFE(ERAE
RN BEA 2= AFRFHE)NZEBEBER 28
EE B BE_TTHE+-A=1+—8”
1EHARS - B AE M A12,539,0007C ° EEAL
RESBEE-_TTLHF+-_A=1+—HILHHE
FABR £ £9,388,0007T, °

(i) RIBIEFERL - FEABRRDFEVE (X
BERRN) BETNRBBAN ZTHE= UAFR
B NME  MzMekgEnEssREE
MEEBENES 2T AFRE) -
{&& A A% A50,0007T °

23 BAKIE
R-EENF+-A=+—0  BEEEN
AW BB R BB EAREEDT

2008 2007
—ZENF ZTTHF

$'000 $:000

Fr T

Contracted for =EES) 916 —
Authorised but not contracted for BEHLEERETL 6,078 —

6,994 =
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24 SEHhETRHE

24 Accounting estimates and judgements

The key sources of estimation and critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group's accounting policies are described below.

Valuation of investment property

In arriving at the fair value of the investment property, the Manager
has considered information from different sources, including a
valuation performed by an independent firm of professional valuers
after taking into consideration the net rental income allowing for
reversionary income potential, and other available market survey
reports.

The estimation of the fair value involves certain assumptions on,
among others, current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, appropriate discount rates and expected future
market rents.

Negative goodwill and cost of combination

In arriving at the negative goodwill and cost of combination, the
Manager has exercised judgements in arriving at the fair values of
identifiable net assets acquired, and of the consideration.

Amount due to the Vendor

The amount due to the Vendor is net of amounts against which the
Manager, after obtaining legal advice, considers rights of set-off can be
exercised and may be subject to further revision.

RIERAEENEEORE - T2AFHIR
R R AT

BREMENEE
REBRENEN DA BER - BEEADZE
BRRNRHER - BEB FXMAERMT
TAZE SR 40 B BRI B L A S8 0O AT RE IR 1R PR
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By 2 38 R T -

FE BT RRIE
ENETRBDINRERARBIERER
RBRATEIR R SR A T IAE—
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25 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2008 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Manager is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group's results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or amended
presentation and disclosures in the financial statements:

25 EEMEREBE—ZEZN\F+2A

=+ — B FEEREMBISET
MEARZBETET RN
T

BERSHBREOS  BERHAAR
RS ERBE—TT\F+-A=1+—8
I FE MR E DRSS BRRFR
ISR » 3TEAIRRIE -

BIEALEHZEER]  FEAIRREED
RERAHARBROZEELRG - 25
FSHI iR AR B RT - 3R R
B U AREBNEEEE R IBERREK
BEAXE -

BESN - AN B R R RS ER B A TS AR AR 3T
RIRAERT 2 MMIEE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTFIRH

A ik

SR HRER

HKFRS 8, Operating segments
BRI EREERIESS - A& 55

HKAS 1 (Revised), Presentation of financial statements

EEETRERE R (KER]) - MEBEEXNEH

Amendments to HKAS 32 and HKAS 1, Puttable
financial instruments and obligations arising
on liquidation

BEEEIAERIFEI25% R E 158 (8F]A) -

Al R e 2 T AR ERMESE S BT

1 January 2009
—TTNF—R—H

1 January 2009
—TTNF—R—H

1 January 2009
—TTNF—R—H
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Valuation Report
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Valuation F09-000047
Report No.

Our Ref KFC/WKCl/jc
Date 11 March 2009

RREEF China REIT Management Limited

48/F Cheung Kong Center

2 Queen's Road Central

Hong Kong

(the Manager for RREEF China Commercial Trust)

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
Level 30, HSBC Main Building

1 Queen's Road Central

Hong Kong

(the Trustee for RREEF China Commercial Trust)

Dear Sirs,

Re : Gateway Plaza, 18 Xiaguangli, East 3rd Ring North Road, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, the People’s Republic of China
(PEARLMBELL m A5 R R =R E KX B 18 SRERES)

In accordance with the instructions of RREEF China
REIT Management Limited (as Manager of RREEF
China Commercial Trust) (the “Manager”) for us to
value the captioned property (the “Property”) situated
in Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
we confirm that we have carried out inspections, made
relevant enquiries and obtained such further
information as we consider necessary for the purpose
of providing our opinion of the market value of the
Property as at 31 December 2008 (the “Date of
Valuation”) for accounting purpose.

Instructions,
Purpose &
Date of Valuation

Basis of Valuation Our valuation of the Property represents its market
value which we would define as the estimated amount
for which a property should exchange on the date of
valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm’s-length transaction after proper marketing
wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion.

In valuing the Property, we have complied with the
requirements set out in Chapter 6.8 of the Code on
Real Estate Investment Trusts of the Securities and
Futures Commission and the requirements set out in
the Valuation Standards on Properties (First Edition
2005) published by The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors.

T ERE F09-000047
Fek
AARBERRE KFC/WKClic
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BEETREREESEREREAR
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(EETHRERHEREAERESHEEAN)
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Valuation
Assumptions

Method of
Valuation

Our valuation has been made on the assumption that
the owner sells the Property on the open market
without the benefit of a deferred term contract,
leaseback, management agreement, joint venture or
any similar arrangement which would serve to increase
the value of the Property.

No allowance has been made in our valuation for any
charges, mortgages or amounts owing on the Property
nor for any expenses or taxation which may be incurred
in effecting a sale. Unless otherwise stated, it is
assumed that the Property is free from encumbrances,
restrictions and outgoings of an onerous nature which
could affect its value.

According to the instruction, we have performed the
valuation as at 31 December 2008 based on the
existing rental schedule and other relevant information
provided to us by the Manager.

Discounted Cash Flow Analysis

We have adopted the Discounted Cash Flow Analysis
("DCF Analysis”) to assess the market value of the
Property. DCF Analysis involves discounting future net
cash flow of the Property to its present value by using
an appropriate discount rate that reflects the rate of
return required by a third party investor for an
investment of this type. The DCF Analysis, which
comprises annual rental income streams, is based
mainly on the following assumptions:

(i) We have estimated that market rent for Grade A
office in 2009 and 2010 will have a negative annual
growth rate of three per cent respectively. From
2011 to 2012, we have estimated an annual
growth rate of five per cent. Whereas, from 2013
to 2018, we have adopted a long term growth rate
of two per cent per annum for the market rent.

(i) We have made reference to the occupancy rate of
similar commercial and office developments in
Beijing and adopted a long-run occupancy rate of
90 per cent in our DCF Analysis.

(iii)  The discount rate adopted was 9.25 per cent. We
have taken into account the location, the income
and tenant mix of the Property and the return
requirement of property investors in determining
the discount rate.
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(iv) A terminal capitalisation rate of 7.5 per cent is
applied in the derivation of the present value of the
cash flows after year 2018. The terminal
capitalisation rate is obtained by reference to the
comparable Grade A offices in Beijing and
consideration of the characteristics of the Property.

(v) The operating period of the Property is based on
the un-expired term of the land use rights of 44.2
years according to the land use rights certificate of
the Property.

Investment Approach

We have carried out the valuation also by the
Investment Approach, which is a valuation method
commonly applied for investment properties. In the
Investment Approach, the net rental income derived
from the existing tenancies with due allowance for the
reversionary potential of the Property is capitalised at a
capitalisation rate. The fully leased net income is
capitalised over the remaining term of land use rights of
the Property at an appropriate market yield expected by
investors for this type of property. The market yield
adopted for capitalisation of the net rental income is
derived with reference to the comparable Grade A
offices in Beijing having considered the characteristics
of the Property. This expected return reflects implicitly
the quality of the investment, the expectation of the
potential future rental growth and capital appreciation
and the risk factor, and is based on our experience in
valuing other similar properties.

The market rentals are made by reference to the
rentals newly achieved in the Property and the lettings
of similar properties in the neighbourhood in the range
of RMB210 to RMB290 per sq m per month on gross
lettable area for office space. In arriving at our opinion
of value, we have adopted a market rental of
approximately RMB233 per sq m per month and
RMB254 per sq m per month for the low zone and high
zone office spaces of the Property respectively. The
average market rental adopted in our valuation of the
Property is approximately RMB243 per sq m per month
for the office portion and RMB303 per sqg m per month
for the retail portion.
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Source of
information

Direct Comparison Approach

We have also adopted the Direct Comparison Approach
as a supporting approach to the valuation. In this
regard, sales evidence of comparable sales of Grade A
offices and retail shops in Beijing around the date of
valuation are collected and analysed in terms of unit
price per square meter. Each of the analysed
comparable sales is adjusted to take into account of the
discrepancies between the Property and the
comparable sale, including the time, location, building
age, quality and facilities, accessibility and the like.

Reference to the market sales are made to en-bloc
transactions as well as individual properties of strata-
title in the neighbourhood or other districts in Beijing.
Such sales evidences are collected, analysed and
adjusted to provide a check for the valuation arrived at
from the DCF Analysis and Investment Approach.

We have relied to a very considerable extent on the
information given by the Manager and the Manager's
legal advisors on PRC law and have accepted advice
given to us on such matters as planning approvals or
statutory notices, easements, tenure, particulars of
occupancy, site and floor areas and all other relevant
matters. We have reviewed most copies of the tenancy
agreements and the updated rental schedule provided
to us by the Manager.

Dimensions, measurements and areas included in this
valuation report are based on the area survey report
dated 2 April 2006. We have assumed the information
provided to us by the Manager's legal advisors on PRC
law, which is material to the valuation, are true and
accurate. We also have assumed that any information
supplied is fair and reasonable, and that no material
facts have been omitted from the information supplied.
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Title Investigation In the course of our valuation of the Property which is

Site Inspection

Currency

situated in Beijing of the PRC, we have been provided
with a copy of, and have noted the legal opinion relating
to the title of the Property issued by the legal advisors
to the Manager. We also have been provided by the
Manager the various certified true copies of title
certificates of the Property. We have not, however,
searched the original documents to verify ownership or
to ascertain the existence of any amendments which
do not appear on the copies handed to us. We do not
accept a liability for any interpretation which we have
placed on information in respect of the legal title of the
Property which is more properly the sphere of the legal
advisors.

We have inspected the exterior and, where possible,
the interior of the Property. However, no structural
survey has been made by us, but in the course of our
inspection, we did not note any serious defect. We are
not, however, able to report that the Property is free
from rot, infestation or any other structural defect. No
tests were carried out to any of the services. Unless
otherwise stated, we have not been able to carry out
detailed on-site measurements to verify the site and
gross floor areas of the Property and we have assumed
that the areas shown on the documents handed to us
are correct.

Unless otherwise stated, all money amounts stated
here in the valuation are in Renminbi, the official
currency of the PRC.

Our valuation certificate is attached herewith.

Yours faithfully,

for and on behalf of
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DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited

Andrew K. F. Chan

China Real Estate Appraiser
Registered Professional Surveyor (GP),
MSc., M.H.K.I.S., M.R.I.C.S.

Director
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Property

Gateway Plaza,
18 Xiaguangli,
East 3rd Ring
North Road,
Chaoyang District,
Beijing,

the People's
Republic of China

* Denotes the average market rent of the Property for both office and retail portions.

VALUATION CERTIFICATE

Description
and tenure

The Property
comprises two 25-
storey towers known
as Tower A and Tower
B, plus a three-level
car park / ancillary
basement erected
over a land with a site
area of 17,690.24 sqg m
Levels One to Three of
the Property are
designed for retail /
banking / club uses,
whereas the remaining
upper floors of the
Property are for office
use. The Property was
completed in 2005.

The Property
comprises a total
gross lettable floor
area of approximately
106,393.8 sg m. In
addition, the Property
provides a total of 675
car parking spaces in
the basement levels.

The land use rights of
the Property have
been granted for a
term of 50 years due
to expire on 25
February 2053 for
composite and
underground car park
uses.

Particulars of
occupancy

As at the date of
valuation, portion of
the Property with a
total lettable gross
floor area of
approximately 93,911
sq m has been leased
to various tenants
with the latest
tenancy due to expire
on 7 September
2015.

The total rent of the
Property was
approximately
RMB18,100,000 per
month, exclusive of
management fees.

The overall occupancy
rate as at the date of
valuation was
approximately 88.6
per cent (including the
owner-occupied unit).

Market value in
existing state as at
31 December 2008

RMB3,197,000,000

Summary of analysis

Estimated Net
Property Yield: 5.8%

Average
Passing Rent
(sgq m/month):
RMB193

Average
Market Rent
Adopted*

(sg m/month):
RMB249
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Notes:-

(1)

)

Q)

4)

(5)

(6)

)

According to the Certificate for the Use of State-owned Land No. (2003) 0075
issued by Beijing Land Resources and Real Estate Administrative Bureau on 25
April 2006, the land use rights of the Property with a total site area of 17,690.24
sg m have been granted to HK Gateway Plaza Company Limited for a term due
to expire on 25 February 2053 for composite and underground car park uses.

According to a Building Ownership Certificate No. 10298 issued by Beijing
Construction Committee on 6 April 2006, the owner of the Property, with a total
gross floor area of approximately 130,488.07 sq m, is HK Gateway Plaza
Company Limited.

The Property excludes the staff canteen situated on Basement One and
Basement Two and the civil defence shelter situated on Basement Three.

According to the Contract for Grant of State-owned Land Use Rights No. (2003)
148 dated 26 February 2003, the land use rights of the Property have been
granted to Beijing Gateway Real Estate Development Co. Ltd. with the
particulars as follows:

Site Area : 17,690.24 sg m

Planned Gross Floor Area  : 103,800 sgq m (above ground)
34,995 sg m (under ground)

Land Use . Composite and underground car parking spaces
Land Use Term . b0 years from 26 February 2003

Completion Date : Not later than 31 December 2005

Land Premium : RMB166,197,500

According to the Planning Permit of Construction Works No. (2002) 0973 dated
30 July 2002, the Property has been approved for development with the
following detail:

Gross Floor Area . Total 139,495 sg m, including
35,697 sq m under ground

Building Height : 103.8 metres (above ground)
13.6 metres (under ground)

No. of Storey . 25-storey (above ground)
3-storey (under ground)

As advised by the Manager, Level Three of the Property will be renovated and
repartitioned for retail shops. The total expense for the renovation work is
estimated as approximately RMB 6,500,000, while the completion date for the
renovation is scheduled in mid 2009. We have taken into account such
renovation cost and completion time in our above valuation.

Pursuant to the Business Licence No. 36195083-000-11-07-4 issued by Hong
Kong Registrar of Companies, HK Gateway Plaza Company Limited is legally
established with its nature of business for property investment and
development.

The Property is subject to loan facility agreements with a facility of
HK$1,400,000,000 granted by The Royal Bank of Scotland, Hong Kong Branch
for a five-year term from the first date of drawdown under the term loan. The
term loan was fully drawn down by HK Gateway Plaza Company Limited on 22
June 2007.

Mt : —
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8)

(11)

In accordance with the Property owner's standard terms and conditions of the
tenancy agreements, the landlord is to be responsible for structural and external
repairs and the tenants are to be responsible for internal repairs of the leased
units.

Estimated net property yield is based on the net monthly rental incomes for
December 2008, exclusive of management fees and utility charges, business
taxes and property taxes and estimated operating expenses.

In the course of our valuation, we have taken into account the updated rental
schedule and copies of the tenancy agreements of the Property provided by the
Manager.

Annual Report 2008
—ZETNEER

(8)

(10

We have noted the legal opinion relating to the title of the Property issued by the

legal advisors to the Manager and have made the following assumptions in our
valuation:

(i)  the Property is transferable together with the residual term of land use
rights at no extra land premium or other onerous payment payable to the
government;

(i)  all land grant fees, costs of public utilities and ancillary infrastructure fees

have been fully settled,;

(i) the proposed design and construction of the Property have been approved

by the relevant government departments; and
(iv) the Property may be freely disposed to purchasers.

Based on the tenancy information provided by the Manager, our analysis of the
existing tenancy profile as at 31 December 2008 (excluding car parking spaces
and miscellaneous areas) is set out below:

Occupancy Profile

(1

RIEVEER ANTEE R EREGRGM - FE
ARRHABMMNERIERIMEEE - MAPRIA
B E HEEMLNAEDHEE -

EEDFERERIE T \F+ - ANESAFHE
SWAFE  TEBRERBERALRBER €%
B ER AT ERX

EEENHERRET  BECAREEAMREHRD
ENEEHES —BERIEE AR -

=
=

SLIRIEBANERERELARMEEE
HEEER  WEFFHMEREL TIIRE :

WEFER T E AR TR R - 8%
SRR 4R (B B S AN ERAT RO B b EE T30
I8

@i

ERKENAEITE -
HEE

(i) DHRIEE R REE

YR RS R R ERE A BBUR AP
iR
(v) DERBREETED -

REEEARHROEEER  BFHR_ZTN\F
TA=T—ANEERS TREAEM R ELE
) DATEFIAT -

(iii)

R
Type Gross Lettable Area % of total
bl A H A IR RN ES L
(sq m)
(FFF5°K)
Leased B 93,910.7 88.3
Vacant =8 12,163.8 1.4
Owner-occupied E3a] 319.3 0.3
Total st 106,393.8 100.0
Lease Commencement Profile
FHABAELR
Gross
Lettable Area

(sq m) % of  Monthly Rental % of % of

A HHFE Total (RMB) Total No. of Total

AR R4 A# {H4B5TH Tenancies {H4B5THY

(E73K) B (AR¥7T) B HOBE Bkt

2005 —ZTREF 9,714.5 10.4 1,764,903.9 9.8 4 4.7
2006 ZETRF 47,830.0 50.9 8,902,290.7 49.2 41 47.7
2007 —TT+F 18,591.5 19.8 4,118,348.2 22.7 26 30.2
2008 —ETN\F 17,774.7 18.9 3,319,655.5 18.3 15 17.4
Total F 93,910.7 100.0 18,105,198.3 100.0 86 100.0

155



156

Valuation Report

fHERE

* %

Lease Expiry Profile

HARER
Gross
Lettable Area
(sq m) % of Monthly Rental % of % of
Gkl Total (RMB) Total No. of Total
HmER {H5TH B# {H4AETH Tenancies {H45TH
(FFHK) Bk (AR¥7T) Bkl HAHE Bat
Dec-2008" —EENFFTZA 1,143.5 1.2 179,922.0 1.0 1 1.2
Dec-2009" —EEAFTR 35,347.5 37.6 6,989,211.3 386 44 51.2
Dec-2010""" e R 22,389.9 23.9 4,401,815.4 24.3 25 29.0
After —E-ZTF+=A
Dec-2010 218 35,029.8 37.3 6,534,249.7 36.1 16 18.6
Total st 93,910.7 100.0 18,105,198.3 100.0 86 100.0
This includes an office lease expiring on 31 December 2008. The Manager has * WEERC-EEN\FT_A=+—HBHRN—

already renewed the said lease as at the date of this report.

DIMAIEARL - RARERH - EEAERLE
MABHEE -

This includes an office lease which was terminated in 2008 but the subject = EER T N\FRIEN— GBI AERL -
tenant continues to pay the rent and occupy the premises. BZEE NS NS RIGRSH

This includes a retail lease which was terminated in 2008 but the subject tenant o WEER ST T NFRIEN—HTERLY - B
continues to pay the rent and occupy the premises. ZHPNEES NS RIEASH -

Lease Duration Profile

AN EHBR
Gross
Lettable Area
(sq m) % of Monthly Rental % of % of
A Total (RMB) Total No. of Total
AR R4 A# R4 Tenancies R4
(F773K) Bok (AR¥ ) Bk bizF Sk 4= BA
Below and up LA
to 2 years =RME 12,323.12 13.1% 2,774,851.8 193 17 19.8
More than A L
2 years and BR=F
up to 3 years 47,904.41 51.0% 8,987,435.1 497 52 60.5
More than =FPALE
3 years and BRAF
up to 5 years 27,807.50 29.6% 5,086,967.6 28.1 16 18.6
More than RAFENUE
5 years 5,875.71 6.3% 1,255,943.9 6.9 1 1.1
Total wst 93,910.7 100.0 18,105,198.3 100.0 86 100.0
Remarks: Bt
(i)  The rentals of two out of the total 86 leases were contracted in US dollars. () AP\ "EROFHRHBLONESAET
The above analyses are based on the exchange rate of US dollar to RMB at BEBENEIN o EAlSITRBR ST N\F+=
6.8346 as at 31 December 2008. A=+—B—XxHi ARY6.8346 THIE
EEHE o
(i) Our analysis of the above tenancies profile excludes the renewal tenancies (i) B LABENBERNS TN EEREER

which will come into effect after the date of valuation. AR LE BB EATR LY ©
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(12) The status of title and grant of major approvals and licences in accordance with
the information provided by the Manager are as follows:-

Real Estate Certificate/Certificate for Housing Ownership Yes
Certificate for the Use of State-owned Land Yes
Grant Contract for State-owned Land Use Rights Yes
Permit for Commencement of Construction Works Yes
Letter for Completion of Project Yes
Business Licence Yes

Office Market Overview

Overview

Investment activity in the past quarter has begun to slow down and rents
have begun to decrease. As a result, the average market price of office
properties has dropped. However, the limited amount of developable land
within Beijing’s key submarkets and strong end-user demand by state-
owned enterprises have helped to stabilise the market price for those well
situated core value Grade A office premises.

No major new supply entered the market during the fourth quarter of 2008.
Several office projects anticipated to enter into the market during the fourth
quarter of 2008 were further postponed due to delays brought forth by a
stop in construction during the 2008 Olympic and Paralympics Games.

The Beijing office market had experienced active leasing activities during
the fourth quarter in the past years. However, the slowdown in the
domestic and global economies over the past six months has produced
variant tenant behavior, which has distorted the traditional annual peak
market situation and is a premonitory of the down-cycle of the market.

Total net take-up volume in the Beijing office market has dropped
significantly from the previous quarter, while the overall vacancy rates have
continued to climb.
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Outlook

Due to the worsening economic conditions of the global and domestic
markets, the annual forecasts for GDP growth in China over the next two
years have been adjusted downward. The projected growth rate for the
years of 2009 and 2010 is ranged from six per cent to eight per cent per
annum. The most visible drag on the overall economy will come from the
real estate and export sectors. The decline in the growth rate of export
sector reflects China’s continued reliance on external demand for its
economic growth. In response to the weakening domestic economic
conditions, the central government, in cooperation with the central bank,
has put forth a stimulus plan consisting of monetary and fiscal policy
adjustments, aiming to boost the domestic demand and smooth the cyclical
downturn that is expected to occur in 2009.

The first phase of the proposed stimulus plan is already underway: a RMB4
trillion fiscal stimulus package will be implemented over the next two years
which can provide a hefty boost to China’s recent wavering growth.
Accompanying the fiscal stimulus package is the continuation of monetary
easing policy, which in the past few months included a series of four
consecutive lending rate cutting and the suspension of credit restrictions
previously placed on national lending institutions.

The combined force of fiscal and monetary stimulus is expected to provide
an expedient boost in domestic consumption that is deemed necessary to
avoid an otherwise prolonged period of stagnancy.

Leasing Demand

Low take-up levels, higher vacancies and softening rents in the Beijing
Market are results of increasing uncertainty towards the future outlook of
the global economy. The Beijing Grade A office market relies on a broad
base of international tenants to absorb the vacant stock and new supply. As
firms around the globe begin to make budget cut-backs, the existing and
potential tenants in the Beijing market will begin to re-evaluate their need
for office space. Representative offices, which under normal economic
conditions operate at a net loss, will be more quickly scaled back or
consolidated than offices with tangible business operations.

RE

HREREEARSNEEERRE - FRBER
ARBFNEEREFEERBAETHE - —F
ZNER-F-ZFNFALRTENTEFH
DZREBDZ/\ - REBEEERZABENEN
RERFEHERH A - A ZERERTRERER
BT AR KRB R SN SR M AR £ o TR
NCEERNESS - PRBUFEPRIRITEIE - H#
HERER MM RBERBARNRBEELR - &
EHEHEATR - REEBRBER-_ZZNFHE
HIR VB o

BERIMTRNE —FRBIRIERRF  RARKME
BEERARENEETOMBRESER - IR
BT B B TE I R IR E KRR ) - BREF
BRIBI RN - BT AEEE RS BRRER
WHNE KB A EE T RORE E RS AR E (= A
EHRAEEREBNEERS

EMBREMABS RARERT - BHTHE
PE BRI IS - BRBANLE - e
HERSGES T8

IERTISHERMNE  SEEXRESOHRTIEAE
EIREE R SHFE NI - LR PP A
BTISKBEREAS ARNEEFE KA HIE
B - AR 2HFZ A RRBEIREE - bRH5
BIRE MEERP EMBEH RSN A ER
MFEE - RIERLERR TREHSFHERNK
RE W FREREREGLEORERERES
HIRE A BF -



RREEF China Commercial Trust
FETEREFHEREERES

Supply

As projects anticipated for launch in the fourth quarter of 2008 have been
delayed, office supply expected to enter the market in 2009 will be
accumulated. Based on the expected scheduled of developments as
amended, of approximately 1.2 million sq m of Grade A office supply will
enter the market over the first half year of 2009. Over 60 per cent of the
anticipated new supply will be located in the CBD and East Second Ring
Road submarkets.

The forecast for the office market over the next six months is relatively
bleak. Demand for expansion space from existing tenants and the number
of new tenants are expected to decline. WWeakening demand coupled with a
continuous flow of new Grade A supply in submarkets such as the CBD,
will act as a catalyst in promoting a greater level of leasing competition.
Subsequent downward pressure on effective rentals will follow the
increased competition. However, there will be a possibility of further slow
down of the future supply by developers reacting to the weakened market
condition. This may reduce the volume of new supply.

With a large concentration of high quality new supply scheduled to enter
the market over the upcoming months and the market’s heavy reliance on
international tenants, greater increases in the aggregate and sector-specific
vacancies are to be expected. In the fourth quarter of 2008, we already saw
evidence of clients relocating to relative low-cost projects outside of the
CBD in commercial areas such as \Wangjing. These relocations to relatively
low-cost areas could be premonitory of the increasing price sensitivity of
MNC tenants.

Investment Activity

Investment activity will be slow in the next six months. However, the
indirect effects of fiscal stimulus, the loosening of restrictions previously
put forth on certain sectors of business from investing in the commercial
property sector and the loosening of monetary stringency could limit the
depth of the expected downturn.
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Glossary

A 5

2008 Distribtuion
Guidance

Average
passing rent

Average
spot rent

BFS

Board

BVI Gateway or
BVI Property
Company

CBD
Connected

Person(s)

DAPH

DB-AG

Director(s)

The distribution guidance of RREEF CCT for the year
2008, disclosed in the final results announcement for the
period ended 31 December 2007.

Denotes the monthly gross rent of the Property at a
specific point of time, excluding management fee and
other miscellaneous income.

Denotes the monthly gross rent of the Property,
excluding management fee, transacted during a defined
period of time, excluding leases which had contractual
renewal right with a predetermined rental review
mechanism.

Beijing Finance Street.
The board of directors of the Manager.
Beijing Gateway Plaza (BVI) Limited, a company

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which holds all
the HK Property Company shares.

Central Business District.

As defined in Rule 8.1 of the Code of Real Estate
Investment Trusts published by the Securities and
Futures Commission.

Deutsche Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Ltd., a wholly
owned subsidiary of Deutsche Bank AG.
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft.

Any director(s) of the board of the Manager.
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DTZ
Fund Manager

Grade A office
buildings

Group

HIBOR

HK Property
Company or
HK Gateway

HKASs

HKFRSs

HKICPA

Hong Kong or HK

HSBC Group

DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited
Refers to the Fund Manager of the Manager

Refers to office buildings which are located in
established commercial areas with easy access, good
supporting facilities and large floor plates. They are
developed and managed by experienced developers and
property management companies. These buildings
allow limited strata-titled sales and ownership of these
strata titles usually rests with reputable state-owned
enterprises or international companies.

RREEF China Commercial Trust and its subsidiaries

The Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate.

The HK Gateway Plaza Company Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, which holds the Property.

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’'s Republic of China.

Refers to The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries and, unless
otherwise expressly stated herein, excludes the Trustee
and its proprietary subsidiaries (being the subsidiaries of
the Trustee but excluding those subsidiaries formed in
its capacity as the Trustee of RREEF CCT).
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EEk

INED(s)

Listing Date

Listing Rules

Manager

Manager Group
or the
Manager's
Connected
Person

Market rent

PRC

Premium
Grade A

Property

Property
Manager or
Beijing Jones
Lang LaSalle

REIT

Independent non-executive director(s) of the Manager.

The date of 22 June 2007 when the units in RREEF CCT
were first listed and from when dealings therein are
permitted to take place on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
SEHK.

RREEF China REIT Management Limited as the
manager of RREEF China Commercial Trust.

Refers to the Manager and its Directors, senior
executives, officers, controlling entities, holding
company, subsidiaries and associated companies
including Deutsche Bank AG and its subsidiaries.

Defined as the estimated amount for which a property
should exchange on the relevant date between a willing
lessor and a willing lessee in an arm’s-length transaction
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each
acted knowledgeably, prudently and without
compulsion.

The People’s Republic of China

Defined as a sub-class incorporating a limited number of
office buildings with the highest technical specifications,
strongest tenant covenants, best locations, and
historically commanding the highest rents.

Gateway Plaza, the property held by RREEF China
Commercial Trust.

Beijing Jones Lang LaSalle Property Management
Services Co., Ltd., as the property manager of Gateway
Plaza

Real estate investment trust.
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REIT Code

Reporting Period

RMB

RREEF
Alternative
Investments or
RREEF

RREEF CCT
or the Trust

S&P Agreement

SEHK

SFC

SFO

sqm
Tin’s Group

Trust Deed

The Code on Real Estate Investment Trusts published
by the Securities and Futures Commission as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.

The financial year commencing 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2008.

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the People’s Republic
of China.

RREEF Alternative Investments is the global real estate
and infrastructure investment management arm of
Deutsche Bank's Asset Management division.

RREEF China Commercial Trust, a collective investment
scheme constituted as a unit trust and authorised under
section 104 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
subject to applicable conditions from time to time.

The sale and purchase agreement dated 4 June 2007,
under which the Trust acquired the Property through the
acquisition from Mr. Tin Lik of the entire issued ordinary
share capital of BVI Gateway, which holds the entire
issued share capital of the property holding company,
HK Gateway.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong.

The Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

square metre.
Mr. Tin Lik and his related group.

The trust deed dated 28 May 2007 between the Trustee
and the Manager constituting RREEF China Commercial
Trust and includes any amendments thereto.
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AR

Trustee

Trustee's
Connected
Persons

Unit(s)

Unitholder(s)

Vendor or
Mr. Tin Lik

HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited, the
trustee of RREEF China Commercial Trust.

The Trustee (and its Directors, senior executives,
officers, controlling entities, holding companies,
subsidiaries and associated companies) and the HSBC
Group

Unit(s) of RREEF China Commercial Trust.

Any person registered as holding a Unit of RREEF China
Commercial Trust.

Mr. Tin Lik, the seller of the BVI Property Company
under the S&P Agreement.

The English names of the PRC nationals, entities, departments, facilities, certificates,
titles and the like are translations of their Chinese names and are included for
identification purposes only. In the event of any inconsistency, the Chinese name

prevails.
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